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Chairman’s Statement
EEHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of DeTai New Energy Group Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to present the annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Since the performance of new energy business was
unsatisfactory for the past years, on 10 February 2021, the
Group disposed of new energy business to an independent
third party. Upon the disposal, the Group ceased to have any
interest in the new energy business. The disposal provided
the Group an immediate cash inflow and allowed the Group
to devote its resources to focus on other core business
segments of the Group.

Loss for the year ended 30 June 2021 attributable to
shareholders of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$35.4 million (2020: approximately HK$163.5 million). Basic
loss per share was approximately 0.23 HK cents (2020:
approximately 1.04 HK cent).

The decrease in net loss for the year was mainly attributable
to the net off of (i) the absence of impairment loss on
goodwill in relation to the hotel hospitality business of
approximately HK$57.0 million; (i) the decrease in impairment
loss on freehold land and building of the hotel hospitality
business of approximately HK$55.8 million and (iii) the
reversal of impairment loss on loans receivable of
approximately HK$8.8 million.

During the year under review, the hotel hospitality business
recorded a revenue of approximately HK$18.8 million (2020:
approximately HK$31.5 million) and a segment loss of
approximately HK$22.6 million (2020: approximately HK$135.3
million). The decrease in segment loss was mainly due to the
absence of the impairment loss on goodwill and decrease in
impairment loss on freehold land and building.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had loans receivable with
gross principal amount of approximately HK$200.6 million
(2020: approximately HK$201.8 million) with related gross
interest receivables of approximately HK$41.1 million for the
year ended 30 June 2021 (2020: approximately HK$20.4
million).
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

The money lending business recorded a segment profit of
approximately HK$13.3 million (2020: segment loss of
approximately HK$5.3 million). The segment profit was mainly
resulted from the reversal of impairment loss on loans
receivable.

The revenue of the liguor and wine business for the year
ended 30 June 2021 was approximately HK$0.4 million (2020:
approximately HK$2.5 million) and a segment loss of
approximately HK$0.8 million was recorded for the year
ended 30 June 2021 (2020: segment profit of approximately
HK$3.1 million). The Group had continually source the
customers to sell the inventories during the year.

APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my sincere appreciation to our staff
for their dedication and commitment as well as to our valued
shareholders, customers, suppliers and other business
partners for their support and encouragement to the Group
in the past year.

Charlie Lu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 September 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THBE WS Hh

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the Group was engaged in five business
segments, (i) hotel hospitality business; (i) provision of money
lending services; (iii) new energy business; (iv) trading and
distribution of liguor and wine; and (v) investments in fund.
Since the performance of the new energy business was
unsatisfactory for the past years, on 10 February 2021, the
Group disposed of the new energy business to an
independent third party. Upon the disposal, the Group ceased
to have any interest in the new energy business. The disposal
provided the Group an immediate cash inflow and allowed
the Group to devote its resources to focus on other core
business segments.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group’s continuing operations
recorded a revenue of approximately HK$24.1 million (2020:
approximately HK$46.9 million). The net loss for the year
ended 30 June 2021 was approximately HK$36.9 million (2020:
approximately HK$167.6 million) while the loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$35.4 million (2020: approximately HK$163.5 million). Basic
loss per share was approximately 0.23 HK cents (2020:
approximately 1.04 HK cent). The decrease in net loss for the
year was mainly attributable to the net off of (i) the absence
of impairment losses on goodwill in relation to the hotel
hospitality business of approximately HK$57.0 million; (i) the
decrease in impairment loss on freehold land and building of
the hotel hospitality business of approximately HK$55.8
million; and (iii) the reversal of impairment loss on loans
receivable of approximately HK$8.8 million.

Hotel hospitality business

During the year, the hotel hospitality business recorded a
revenue of approximately HK$18.8 million (2020:
approximately HK$31.5 million) and a segment loss of
approximately HK$22.6 million (2020: approximately HK$135.3
million). The decrease in segment loss was mainly due to the
absence of the impairment loss on goodwill and decrease in
impairment loss on freehold land and building.

Hotel hospitality business is the core business of the Group
which contributed approximately 77.9% of the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 30 June 2021. The hotel, One
Niseko Resort Towers (the “Resort Towers”), is located in the
famous Japanese skiing destination of Niseko, Hokkaido,
Japan. Niseko is one of the famous ski resort areas in Japan
and is well known for its heavy light powder snow and
spectacular backcountry. The Resort Towers consists of 110
units of high-end accommodation and has an onsen with an
indoor and outdoor bath. It attracts many tourists from world-
wide for skiing in the winter time.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THBEWE S Hh

In the course of preparing the financial statements, the
management had engaged an independent qualified valuer
(the "Hotel Valuer”) to determine the recoverable amount of
the cash generating unit of the hotel hospitality business (the
“Hotel Hospitality Business CGU"). For the sake of prudence,
the management had further engaged another independent
qualified valuer to conduct an independent review of the
valuation report issued by the Hotel Valuer on the valuation
methodology and key valuation parameters. Both valuers are
members of Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors and with
extensive experience in valuation of properties. In assessing
the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit of the
hotel hospitality business as at 30 June 2021, the fair value
less cost of disposal method was adopted which based on
direct comparison approach with reference to the recent
sales of similar transactions in the market.

Given the worldwide prevalence of the Novel Coronavirus (the
“COVID-19") pandemic, the Japanese Government adopted
the border enforcement measures, including in particular, the
denial of permission to entry for foreign nationals and the
gquarantine measures. As a result, there was a drastic
decrease in the number of visitors to Japan in the year under
review which affected the global financial markets and the
real estate market in Japan. As the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit of the hotel hospitality business as at 30
June 2021 was lower than its carrying amount, impairment
loss on freehold land and building was recognised for the
year ended 30 June 2021.

As at the end of each financial year, the Company was
required to assess any indication that its assets and/or cash
generating unit may be impaired (i.e. the carrying amount
may be higher than the recoverable amount). Recoverable
amount is the higher of the assets’ or the cash generating
unit's value-in-use and fair value less cost of disposal. The
value-in-use is developed under the income approach while
the fair value less cost of disposal is developed based on
direct comparison approach with reference to the recent
sales transaction evidences for similar premises in the
proximity. Comparable transactions vary along the change in
valuation date.

Direct comparison method under market approach is
considered to be the most popular and common valuation
approach in valuing the property. Moreover, income
approach has been indirectly adopted from the business
perspective in the calculation of the value-in-use of the Hotel
Hospitality Business CGU. Thus, direct comparison method is
adopted for valuing the fair value of property.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THBE WS Hh

The Company has consistently applied the same
methodology to determine the recoverable amount and the
fair value less cost of disposal was adopted for impairment
assessment as at 30 June 2021 and 2020.

The value-in-use calculation was the estimated future cash
flows discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflected current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the hotel
hospitality business. The calculation used in cash flow
projections was based on latest financial budgets covering a
period of 5 years with compound annual growth rate of
revenue of approximately 4.23% (2020: 1.43%). The
compound annual growth rate of revenue was determined
with reference to historical revenue in the current year and
the 5-year forecasted revenue taking into account of the
expected number of tourists who would visit Niseko. Due to
worldwide prevalence of the COVID-19 pandemic and the
travel restrictions imposed by most of the countries, the
revenue growth rate in 2021 was lower than that in 2020 by
approximately 40%. The Company expects the impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic would be contained and under control in
2022 and consider the vaccination program launched by the
government in different countries, the revenue in 2022 and
2023 would boost by approximately 57% and 11%
respectively. After the one-off event of the COVID-19
pandemic, the Directors expect the revenue would return to
normal level from the peak level and expected to record a
steadily annual growth rate of approximately 2% in the
subsequent years. The gross profit ratio of the forecasted
period was expected to be approximately 94% (2020: 91%)
with reference to the historical record. The pre-tax discount
rate of 18% (2020: 18%) was determined with reference to the
market conditions, such as company specific risk premium
and cost of debt of the hotel hospitality business. The cash
flow projections beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated
using a perpetual growth rate of 2% (2020: 2%) which was
referred to long-term growth rate of tourism in Niseko and
the long-term inflation rate in Japan.

The key assumption adopted in the fair value less cost of
disposal approach for 30 June 2021 and 2020 was the cost of
disposal which was 3.5% of the market value of the property.
It included the average market rate of brokerage fee and
other miscellaneous administrative and legal costs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THBEWE S Hh

Money lending services

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had loans receivable with
gross principal amount of approximately HK$200.6 million
(2020: approximately HK$201.8 million) with related gross
interest receivables of approximately HK$41.1 million for the
year ended 30 June 2021 (2020: approximately HK$20.4
million).

The loan portfolio comprises loans to independent third party
borrowers with term ranging from eight months to forty
months and interest rate ranged from 5.5% to 20% (2020:
5.5% t0 20%) per annum.

The money lending business recorded a segment profit of
approximately HK$13.3 million (2020: segment loss of
approximately HK$5.3 million). The segment profit was mainly
resulted from the reversal of impairment loss on loans
receivable.

In the course of preparing the financial statements, the
management had engaged an independent qualified valuer
(the “1st ECL Valuer”) to determine the expected credit losses
(the “ECL") of the Group’s loans receivable. For the sake of
prudence, the management had further engaged another
independent qualified valuer to conduct an independent
review of the valuation report issued by the 1st ECL Valuer on
the valuation methodology, the underlying assumptions, the
parameters and inputs used in the valuation for accounting
purpose. In assessing the ECL of the Group’s loans receivable,
a credit rating analysis of the underlying debtors was adopted
by reviewing the historical accounting information to estimate
the default risk. The Group applied different expected loss
rates to different classes of receivables according to their
respective risk characteristics. In determining the default risk,
factors including but not limited to, the ageing analysis of the
receivables, the Group's internal assessment of the debtors’
credit worthiness, historical and forecast occurrence of event
of default, existence and valuation of the collaterals, the
relevant regulatory framework and government policies in
Hong Kong and global economic outlook in general and the
specific economic condition of Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), would be considered. The rate
of ECL ranged from 0% to 100% (2020: 9% to 100%) depending
on the nature, probability of default and loss given default of
the loans receivable.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THBE WS Hh

The Group has adopted a credit policy to manage its money
lending business which includes compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations, credit assessment on
potential borrower and his/its assets, the credibility of the
potential borrower, the necessity in obtaining collaterals and
determination of suitable interest rate to reflect the risk level
of the provision of loan.

The Group has performed credit risk assessment before
granting the loans by (a) reviewing the financial information
of the potential borrower; and (b) performing an assessment
on the financial condition of the potential borrower and its
shareholder (for enterprises), such as the type and value of
assets owned by the potential borrower.

The Group also assesses and decides the necessity and the
value of security/collateral for granting of each loan, whether
to an individual or enterprise, on a case by case basis
considering factors, including but not limited to, the
repayment history, results of public search towards the
borrower, the value and location of the assets owned by the
borrower and the financial condition of the borrower.

For loan collection/recovery, the Group issues overdue
payment reminder to the borrower, instructs its legal advisers
to issue demand letter for loans overdue for a longer period
of time, negotiates with the borrower for the repayment or
settlement of the loan and/or commences legal actions
against the borrower.

Liquor and wine business

The revenue for the year ended 30 June 2021 of the liquor
and wine business was approximately HK$0.4 million (2020:
approximately HK$2.5 million) and a segment loss of
approximately HK$0.8 million was recorded for the year
ended 30 June 2021 (2020: segment profit of approximately
HK$3.1 million). The Group had continually source the
customers to sell the inventories during the year.

AEBEERMEEBREEEERERR &8
RETHRAEERARIER HEGREER
UREEE  BEEBEANAMEREEETE
EFHE - BEREAERmO B EEARETE
BEM XA RREEHEA BEROREBRKFE -

AEERREZEEFACETEERRRT
fh HER @FHNEEREANMBE
£ RO HEEREARERR (BEEM
MM BARIUETRHE - PIEERE
BEMBEERIIN(ESR -

AEBEZE(BREENRR) &R - &
EEANETARAENER BEAMES
BENEELMIEAREE AWM RS
AEE - REREEFERRAERLEEE
R(EwmETEALDE) L EME LK
R EE

SREFME WK E - AEEEEE AR
HBHMRME - BREARERRE
FEERELETBNE  BEEAE
BRENEFETHEL LEHEEARR
EETE) -

BEERER

EEEREENEE_E-_—EXA=1H
IFEFEE 2 WFL AM0000EFT(ZE-F
& #92,500,000/87)  MEBE-T——F
NAZTBELEFEASEIEEBEEY
800,000 T(—ZE_FF: HERNK
3,100,00087T) - AEERFAEEMER
FUHERFE -

10 DETAI NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Management Discussion and Analysis

THBEWE S Hh

Fund investments

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had invested into a fund with a
value of approximately HK$59.8 million (2020: approximately
HK$58.8 million).

TAR High Value Fund SP (the “TAR Fund”)

TAR Fund is a segregated portfolio created by TAR
Opportunities Fund SPC (“TAR SPC") which is a segregated
portfolio company incorporated under the laws of the
Cayman Islands with limited liability. TAR SPC is registered as
a “segregated portfolio company” with the Registrar of
Companies of the Cayman Islands and principally engaged in
the investment and fund related services. TAR SPC has
appointed TAR Fund Management (Cayman) Limited (“TAR
Fund Management”) as its investment manager. TAR Fund
Management is an exempted company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability. The director of TAR Fund
Management has over 10 years of experience in
manufacturing, management and investment and has been
involved in financial industries in the PRC and Hong Kong for
many years, and has considerable experience in stock and
derivative products. The purpose of TAR Fund is to carry on
the business of investing, holding, monitoring and realising
investments made with the principal objective of achieving a
high rate of return through capital appreciation through
investments that operates in or derive significant business
opportunities from the financial services, natural resources
and/or property investments sectors. Such investment can
be in form of equity investments and/or debt instruments
including but not limited to convertible or exchangeable
bonds, notes and debentures.

The value of the TAR Fund as at 30 June 2021 was
approximately HK$59.8 million, represented approximately
6.0% to the Group’s total assets. The TAR Fund had an
average return of approximately 0.95% and 1.05% for the
years ended 30 June 2021 and 2020 respectively.
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PROSPECTS

The worldwide prevalence of the COVID-19 pandemic has
affected every sector across the globe, and the hotel
hospitality business is among the hardest hit.

Given the outbreak and widespread of the COVID-19, the
Japanese Government adopted the border enforcement
measures, including in particular, the denial of permission to
entry for foreign nationals and the quarantine measures. As a
direct result, there is a drastic decrease in the number of
visitors to Japan.

Despite the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group is still optimistic
about the prospects of the hotel hospitality business in Japan
in the long run with reference to: (i) the policy adopted by the
Japanese Government in promoting the tourism in Japan with
an aim to attract approximately 60 million international
visitors to Japan in 2030; (i) Niseko (where the Resort Towers
is located) as a premium skiing and sightseeing destination;
and (iii) the passing of the integrated resort law in Japan in
2018 and the fact that the availability of integrated casino
resorts in Japan in future will attract more tourists travelling
to Japan.

Although the businesses of the Group had been disrupted by
the COVID-19 pandemic, the impact of the pandemic should
be temporary. Given that the COVID-19 vaccination programs
have been launched by the government in different countries,
the Directors are confident in the future prospects of the
businesses of the Group, especially the hotel hospitality
business. The Group has potential plans to further develop
the hotel hospitality business, namely, the renovation of the
Resort Towers and the development of adjacent land.
However, the implementation of the potential plans has been
disrupted by the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic and the
pandemic prevention measures adopted by the Japanese
Government. The Group expects to start the implementation
of the potential plans as soon as the end of the COVID-19
pandemic.

In the meanwhile, the Group will grasp investment
opportunities to diversify the Group’s business and, at the
same time, strive to control the costs to maintain stable
return to the shareholders of the Company.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board resolved not to recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 30 June 2021 (2020: Nil).

FINANCIAL RESOURCES, LIQUIDITY AND
GEARING

As at 30 June 2021, the Group has in aggregate approximately
HK$336.1 million (2020: approximately HK$360.2 million) in
deposits in a financial institution, pledged bank balances, and
bank balances and cash. The net current assets value was
approximately HK$397.5 million (2020: approximately
HK$473.3 million).

The Group’s gearing ratio as at 30 June 2021 was
approximately 0.16 (2020: approximately 0.18), being a ratio
of total interest bearing debts, including borrowings of
approximately HK$128.5 million (2020: approximately
HK$140.7 million) to the total equity of approximately
HK$802.9 million (2020: approximately HK$791.7 million).

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM RIGHTS ISSUE

The Company completed a rights issue on 13 June 2018,
pursuant to which the Company issued 10,463,687,800
ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.05 each as rights
shares at HK$0.052 per rights share on the basis of two rights
shares for every one existing share held on 18 May 2018. The
net proceeds from the rights issue (after deducting the
expenses) were approximately HK$523.6 million. The net
subscription price per rights share after deducting the related
expenses of the rights issue was approximately HK$0.050.
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As set out in the announcements of the Company dated 10
August 2018 and 17 January 2019, the Board resolved to
change its use of the net proceeds from the rights issue. The
proposed allocation of the net proceeds as stated in the
prospectus of the Company dated 21 May 2018 (the “Planned
Use of Net Proceeds”), the revised allocation of the net
proceeds (the “Revised Use of Net Proceeds”), the utilisation
of net proceeds as at 30 June 2021 (the “Utilisation of Net
Proceeds”) and the remaining balance of the net proceeds
are set out below:

BOARBEHR T \FNAATRAEZ
E-NEF-ATLRAZREHME EFa3
RENEARASFIRFE AR - ARA
BR-_ZT-N\FEA-t+-—HNBARER
Pl TS SRR R R 2% 0 B ([ TS sRIRF
AT EIRE ) - IRFIEFRNKETT N
(THEFBEFRELETRR])  R_F——
FRA=THEREREFRNAIBR (A
BRBEFENE

BRIEFEESABR]) RAT
REHHIAT

(Note 1)
(Hf5E1)

(Note 2)
(Hf5£2)

Planned Revised Utilisation
Use of Net Use of Net of Net Remaining
Intended use Proceeds  Proceeds  Proceeds balance
& & &
RIBFE MIBFE MIBFE
StERE RKRETRR BAER ERER
HK$ million  HK$ million ~ HK$ million  HK$ million
BEET BEET BEET BEAET
Repayment of outstanding EEHNAEREE
borrowings 19819 193.9 752 118.7
Contribution to the facility =3y BB S= N
to be made available BRABIKILZ
to a joint venture company &% R RIS AT ES
formed with Zhongke ZREFE
International Capital Limited 196.0 - - -
Expansion of the Group’s BRAKEZEE
money lending business Egis 100.0 111.3 111.3 -
Future potential investments KR EERE R~
and/or general working o—REEE S
capital 33.7 218.4 206.8 11.6
Total FEE 523.6 523.6 393.3 130.3
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Notes:

1. It is expected that the remaining balance would be utilised on or before
30 December 2021. The Company has been discussing with the bank
in Japan for early repayment of the bank loan since the completion of
the rights issue and in the hope of reaching a consensus with the bank
before making the early repayment of the bank loan in order to
maintain a good relationship with the bank. If a consensus on early
repayment of the bank loan can be reached with the bank, the
remaining balance of the net proceeds allocated for repayment of
outstanding borrowings would be utilised for early repayment of the
outstanding bank loan. If a consensus on early repayment of the bank
loan cannot be reached with the bank, the remaining balance of the
net proceeds allocated for repayment of outstanding borrowings would
be utilised for repayment of the remaining instalments of the
outstanding bank loan with the last instalment of the outstanding bank
loan to be repaid in December 2021.

The amount was equivalent to JPY1.65 billion with reference to an
exchange rate of JPY : HK$0.072 being the exchange rate used in the
prospectus of the Company in relation to the rights issue.

2. It is expected that the remaining balance would be utilised on or before
31 December 2021.

The unutilised net proceeds have been placed as the interest
bearing deposits with licensed banks and a financial
institution in Hong Kong.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 June 2021, the Group pledged hotel land and building
in Japan with an aggregated carrying value of approximately
HK$375.8 million (2020: approximately HK$407.1 million),
investment property in Hong Kong with an aggregate carrying
value of approximately HK$19.6 million (2020: approximately
HK$19.4 million), bank deposits of approximately HK$1.1
million (2020: approximately HK$6.1 million) and the entire
equity interest of certain subsidiaries of the Company to
secure borrowing facilities of the Group.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
During the year ended 30 June 2021, 569,550,406 share
options were lapsed.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had no other changes
in capital structure during the year ended 30 June 2021.
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INVESTMENT POSITION AND PLANNING
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or
Loss

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had invested in one unlisted
private fund with carrying amount of approximately HK$59.8
million (2020: approximately HK$58.8 million). The purpose of
the fund portfolio is to carry on the business of investing,
holding, monitoring and realising the equity investments and/
or debt instruments from the financial services, natural
resources and/or property investment sectors. The value of
fund portfolio was based on fair value.

Settlement Deed and Supplemental Settlement
Deeds in relation to the Profit Guarantee
Compensation

With reference to the Company’s announcements dated 26
April 2015 and 29 May 2015 in relation to the acquisition of
the electric cycles business, Mr. Lee Man Bun (“Mr. Lee") as
the vendor irrevocably warranted and guaranteed to the
Company that the after-tax audited consolidated net profit of
the electric cycles business for the year ended 30 June 2016
shall not be less than HK$100,000,000 (the “Guaranteed Net
Profit”).

In the event that the electric cycles business cannot achieve
the Guaranteed Net Profit, Mr. Lee has irrevocably
undertaken to the Company to pay to the Company in cash
within 10 business days from the date of receipt of the
certificate from the auditors of the Company an amount
equal to the shortfall (the “Profit Guarantee Compensation”).

In view of the loss recorded for the year ended 30 June 2016
of the electric cycles business, Mr. Lee had been requested
to settle the Profit Guarantee Compensation of
HK$100,000,000. After arm’s length negotiations, on 26
September 2016, Mr. Lee and the Company entered into a
settlement deed regarding the settlement of the Profit
Guarantee Compensation of HK$100,000,000 and the
additional amount of compensation of HK$850,000, in which
HK$70,700,000 was settled by Mr. Lee on 27 September 2016
and 21 September 2017.
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Pursuant to the supplemental settlement deed entered into
between Mr. Lee and the Company on 28 September 2018,
Mr. Lee shall pay HK$30,650,000 (being the sum of the
outstanding settlement payment of HK$30,150,000 and the
additional amount of compensation of HK$500,000) to the
Company in the following manner: (a) HK$10,000,000 shall be
paid to the Company on the date of the supplemental
settlement deed; and (b) HK$20,650,000 shall be paid to the
Company on or before 31 March 2019. The amount of
HK$10,000,000 was received by the Company pursuant to the
terms of the supplemental settlement deed. The amount of
HK$20,650,000 was still outstanding as at 30 June 2019.

Pursuant to the second supplemental settlement deed
entered into between Mr. Lee and the Company on 27
September 2019, Mr. Lee shall pay HK$21,050,000 (being the
sum of the outstanding settlement payment of HK$20,650,000
and the additional amount of compensation of HK$400,000)
to the Company in the following manner: (a) HK$10,000,000
shall be paid to the Company on the date of the second
supplemental settlement deed; and (b) HK$11,050,000 shall
be paid to the Company on or before 30 September 2020.
The Company received HK$10,000,000 from Mr. Lee on 27
September 2019.

Pursuant to the third supplemental settlement deed entered
into between Mr. Lee and the Company on 16 September
2020, Mr. Lee shall pay HK$11,220,000 (being the sum of the
outstanding settlement payment of HK$11,050,000 and the
additional amount of compensation of HK$170,000) to the
Company in the following manner: (a) HK$2,500,000 shall be
paid to the Company on the date of the third supplemental
settlement deed; and (b) HK$8,720,000 shall be paid to the
Company on or before 30 September 2021. The Company
received HK$2,500,000 and HK$8,720,000 from Mr. Lee on 16
September 2020 and 29 September 2021 respectively.

Details of the settlement deed and supplemental settlement
deeds are set out in the Company’s announcements dated
26 September 2016, 28 September 2018, 27 September 2019
and 16 September 2020.
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Disposal of a Land in the PRC

On 7 September 2017, Advanced System Group Limited,
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as vendor entered
into a sale and purchase agreement (the “PRC Land Disposal
Agreement”) with an independent third party as purchaser.
Pursuant to the PRC Land Disposal Agreement, the purchaser
agreed to acquire and the vendor agreed to sell the entire
issued share capital of Miracle True Investment Limited and
its subsidiary in the PRC, which holds a land in Huizhou City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC, and the shareholder’s loan in
cash at a consideration of HK$11,000,000, in which
HK$550,000 had been received on 7 September 2017 and the
remaining balance of HK$10,450,000 would be payable by the
purchaser within six months from the date of the PRC Land
Disposal Agreement. On 7 February 2018, 31 January 2019
and 31 July 2019, the vendor and the purchaser confirmed
their mutual agreement to extend the long stop date to 31
January 2019, 31 July 2019 and 31 December 2019
respectively or such other date as the vendor and the
purchaser may agree in writing. On 30 April 2019, the
purchaser further paid to the vendor HK$450,000.

On 16 December 2019, the vendor and the purchaser entered
into a supplemental agreement, pursuant to which
HK$3,000,000 was paid by the purchaser to the vendor on or
before 31 December 2019 and the remaining balance of
HK$7,000,000 shall be payable by the purchaser to the vendor
within twelve months from the completion date. On 15
January 2021, the vendor and the purchaser entered into a
2nd supplemental agreement, pursuant to which HK$500,000
was paid by the purchaser to the vendor upon the signing of
the 2nd supplemental agreement and the remaining balance
of HK$6,500,000 shall be payable by the purchaser to the
vendor on or before 30 June 2021.

A share charge was given by the purchaser in favour of the
vendor pursuant to which the purchaser created a first fixed
charge over the entire issued shares of Miracle True
Investment Limited. The disposal was completed on 30
December 2019 and the purchaser has settled HK$6,500,000
to the vendor on 21 June 2021.

The disposal was classified as a non-disclosable transaction
under Chapter 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD
Acquisition of 52% equity interest of natural
gas supply business

On 6 August 2021, Easy Nice Holdings Group Limited (“Easy
Nice"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company as
purchaser, entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the
“SPA") with Rich Rite Limited (“Rich Rite”) as vendor and Mr.
Frank Wang as guarantor. Pursuant to the terms of the SPA,
Easy Nice has conditionally agreed to purchase and Rich Rite
has conditionally agreed to sell 52% equity interest of the
target company at a consideration of HK$185,201,000, which
shall be satisfied by the issue of convertible bonds in three
tranches to Rich Rite by the Company. The target company
together with its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
constitution of long-distance natural gas pipelines and the
sale and supply of natural gas. The completion shall take
place on or before 6 September 2021.

On 3 September 2021, 17 September 2021 and 30 September
2021, Easy Nice and Rich Rite agreed to defer the date of
completion to 15 October 2021.

Details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 9 August 2021, 3 September 2021, 17
September 2021 and 30 September 2021.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 30 June 2021, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities (2020: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 30 June 2021, the Group had no significant capital
commitments (2020: Nil).

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Most of the Group's assets and liabilities are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and Japanese Yen which are the
functional currencies of respective group companies. The
Group has not entered into any instruments on the foreign
exchange exposure. The Group will closely monitor exchange
rate movement and will take appropriate activities to reduce
the exchange risk.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THBERR S

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had approximately 30 (2020:
77) employees in Hong Kong, the PRC and Japan. The Group’s
remuneration policy is reviewed periodically and determined
by reference to market terms, company performance, and
individual qualifications and performance. Other staff benefits
include bonuses awarded on a discretionary basis, medical
schemes and share option scheme.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed, the Company did not have any other
connected transactions which were subject to the reporting
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the
year ended 30 June 2021.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the
“2021 AGM") is scheduled to be held on Monday, 6 December
2021, at 10:30 a.m. For determining the entitlement to attend
and vote at the 2021 AGM, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Wednesday, 1 December 2021
to Monday, 6 December 2021, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be
registered. In order for a shareholder of the Company to be
eligible to attend and vote at 2021 AGM, all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited of Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 30 November 2021.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EFREREEREE

Biographical information of the Directors and the senior
Mmanagement of the Group as at the date of this annual report
is set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Charlie Lu

Mr. Charlie Lu (“Mr. Lu”), aged 61, has been appointed as the
Chairman and an executive Director since August 2021. Mr.
Lu has extensive leadership experience in investment
consulting. Over the past 20 years, he has proven to possess
progressive and comprehensive corporate development
knowledge. Mr. Lu is familiar with a variety of management
functions of an organization including initiating, developing
and implementing procedures to improve business
performance.

Mr. Cheng Chi Kin

Mr. Cheng Chi Kin (“Mr. Cheng"), aged 53, has been
appointed as an executive Director since August 2021. Mr.
Cheng obtained a Degree in Business Studies from University
of Glamorgan and a Master Degree in Business
Administration from University of Wales. He is a fellow
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of
International Accountants. Mr. Cheng is currently the
chairman and an executive director of Affluent Partners
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1466), the securities of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Cheng was an executive director of Ming Lam Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Sino Haijing Holdings Limited)
(stock code: 1106) from February 2017 to August 2018 and a
non-executive director of IRC Limited (stock code: 1029) from
February 2017 to March 2020, the securities of both
companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Cheng has over 26 years of working
experience in merger and acquisition, finance and
accounting, banking, asset management and funds
operations in various industries including real estate
developments, infrastructure developments, real estate
investment trusts (REITS), securities investments and natural
resources industries.

—7

RAFHAY  EZRAEESHERERE
BEREHIINT

RTEE

AREEE

aRBEE(ERE]D 61K BT —
FNABRBRERTIFERWITES - atLE
RIERAT HEESEEELR - NBE
205 RFEFERYEEPEADLRERA
B o BEARBABMARNSEE EBE
BEEE  HIERBEREARBRE RS -

BFEREAE

EFERSTAE ([#B5E4]) - 535 B2 =
FNABREZTARITES - %BﬁEEE?Téiti
L EE AR K B2 (University of Glamorgan) & 2
BT Z2M RE B LT K ZEUniversity of
WaIeS)IFﬁEEEEEiﬂ{j o BB AEETRD
RERBERSHAMBEERGE - BEER

BIREERERA TW%MW”1%@If
RHTESE ZAAEBHFRBSH TR E

ﬁo%%iﬁ_;—ti_ﬂﬁ_f J\F
NABE S EESFIERAER A (BIHEH
BlESERAER AT - BROKKE : 1106) 2
HTEE TR E—+F_AE-_F—F
FZAHEEETEIIREER AR (KM
KR 2 1029) 2 IEBMITEE » ZMERAIZ
BHEREBRFTER LT - BEERBIER
m%%% Eg FEHEREGETES
(REITS) - BHHERAABRELZ[E1THEZ
{ﬂzﬁ\% Eﬁ%&au‘l— fE ﬁ?%i@&%i
I T T TH RS 180 26 F TSGR o

T—FFHR o ERHFEREEERAR 21



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EFREREHEERRE

Mr. Liu Shihao

Mr. Liu Shihao (“Mr. Liu"), aged 26, has been appointed as an
executive Director since August 2021. Mr. Liu is also the
Chairman of the investment committee of the Company. Mr.
Liu obtained his master’'s degree in Finance from City
University of Hong Kong and bachelor’s degree in
mechatronic engineering from Chongging University in the
PRC. Mr. Liu worked for Cornerstone Financial Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8112), a company listed on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange, from July 2020 to November 2020, where
his responsibilities included investment analyzing and post
investment projects supervising. Mr. Liu worked for PacRay
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1010), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from July
2019 to July 2020, where his responsibilities included due
diligence and research of some potential investment projects.
Mr. Liu has years of experience in investment bank, fund and
commercial bank in the PRC and has extensive experience in
the area of investment and management.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EFREREEREE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Chiu Wai On

Mr. Chiu Wai On (“Mr. Chiu”), aged 51, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director since June 2009.
Mr. Chiu is also the chairman of each of the audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Company. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Chiu
possesses over 10 years of professional experience in
accounting and auditing services. Mr. Chiu is also an
independent non-executive director of New Times Energy
Corporation Limited (stock code: 166), a company listed on
the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Man Kwok Leung

Mr. Man Kwok Leung (“Mr. Man”), aged 74, has been
appointed as an independent non-executive Director since
May 2009. Mr. Man is also a member of each of the audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company. He is a solicitor of the High Court
of Hong Kong and a civil celebrant of marriages. Mr. Man has
extensive experience in the legal practice. He had been
appointed by Xinhua News Agency as a district advisor from
1995 to 1997. He is currently appointed as a director of
Apleichau Kai Fong Primary School, the deputy chairman of
Apleichau Kai Fong Welfare Association, the secretary of
Apleichau Promotion of Tourism Association and the
honorary legal advisor of Junior Police Officers’ Association.
Mr. Man is currently an independent non-executive director
of Hong Kong ChaoShang Group Limited (stock code: 2322), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EFREREEREE

Mr. Sheung Kwong Cho

Mr. Sheung Kwong Cho (“Mr. Sheung”), aged 40, has been
appointed as an independent non-executive Director in May
2021. Mr. Sheung is also a member of each of audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. Sheung holds a Bachelor of
Commerce in Accounting from Macquarie University in
Australia. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and has more than 15 years of
experience in corporate governance, mergers and
acquisitions, auditing and financial management. Mr. Sheung
is an executive director of each of Far East Holdings
International Limited (Stock code: 36) and Jimu Group Limited
(stock code 8187), the securities of both companies are listed
on the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yiu To Wa

Mr. Yiu To Wa (“Mr. Yiu"), aged 38, has been appointed as the
managing director and a member of the investment
committee of the Company since August 2021. He was an
executive Director from May 2021 to July 2021. Mr. Yiu
obtained his bachelor’s degree of business administration in
professional accountancy program from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 2005 and has been a certified
public accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since 2008. Mr. Yiu has over 15 years of
experience in financial accounting and auditing of listed
companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Yiu is currently an independent
non-executive director of each of China Environmental
Energy Investment Limited (stock code: 986) and Yuk Wing
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1536), the securities of
both companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Ms. Tsang Kwai Ping

Ms. Tsang Kwai Ping (“Ms. Tsang”), aged 42, has been
appointed as the company secretary of the Company since
June 2016. Ms. Tsang holds Master Degree in Corporate
Governance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
a Bachelor Degree in Accountancy from City University of
Hong Kong. Ms. Tsang is a member of both of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. She is also an
associate member of both of The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries) and The Chartered
Governance Institute in the United Kingdom. Ms Tsang is an
executive Director of Merdeka Financial Group Limited (stock
code: 8163), a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.
Ms. Tsang has extensive experience in accounting, financial
management and company secretarial matters.
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Corporate Governance Report
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Company is committed to maintain high standards of
corporate governance. The Board believes that effective
corporate governance practices are fundamental to enhance
the shareholders’ value and safeguard the interests of the
shareholders. Accordingly, the Company has adopted sound
corporate governance principles that emphasize an effective
internal control and accountability to all shareholders.

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Company has
complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules except for the following deviations:

Code Provision A.2.1

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Since the resignation of
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth in March 2020, the Company does
not have any officer with the title of Chief Executive Officer.
The overall responsibility of supervising and ensuring that the
Group'’s business in line with the order of the Board in terms
of day-to-day operations and execution is vested in the Board
itself.

Code Provision A.4.1

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. The existing independent non-
executive Directors were not appointed for a specific term as
required under the code provision A.4.1 but are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meeting in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company
(the “Bye-laws”). As such, the Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company has good corporate governance practices.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the full set of Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
the code of the conduct for securities transactions by
directors. The prohibitions on securities dealing and
disclosure requirements in the Model Code apply to specified
individuals including the Group’s senior management and
also persons who are privy to price sensitive information of
the Group. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the
Board confirmed that all Directors had complied with the
Model Code regarding directors’ securities transactions
during the year and up to the date of this annual report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises Six
Directors, with three executive Directors, Mr. Charlie Lu
(Chairman), Mr. Cheng Chi Kin and Mr. Liu Shihao; and three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Chiu Wai On,
Mr. Man Kwok Leung and Mr. Sheung Kwong Cho.
Biographical information of the Directors is set out in the
section “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

During the year ended 30 June 2020 and up to the date of this
annual report, the changes to the composition of the Board
were as follows:

— Dr. Wong Yun Kuen resigned as an independent non-
executive Director with effect from 23 December 2020;

— Mr. Sheung Kwong Cho was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 18
May 2021,

— Mr. Wong Hin Shek resigned as an executive Director
and the Chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”), Mr.
Yiu To Wa was appointed as an executive Director and
Mr. Chan Wai Ki was appointed the Chairman, with
effect from 27 May 2021;

— Mr. Chan Wai Ki resigned as an executive Director and
the Chairman, Mr. Yiu To Wa resigned as an executive
Director and Mr. Eric Todd was appointed the Chairman,
with effect from 22 July 2021;

— Mr. Liu Shihao was appointed as an executive Director
with effect from 2 August 2021,
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—  Mr. Eric Todd resigned as the Chairman and Mr. Charlie
Lu was appointed the Chairman, with effect from 16
August 2021;

— Mr. Cheng Chi Kin was appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 24 August 2021; and

— Mr. Eric Todd resigned as an executive Director with
effect from 1 September 2021.

An updated list of Directors identifying their roles and
functions is maintained on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

To the best of the knowledge of the Company, there is no
financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationship between Board members.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors. The Company is of the view that all the
independent non-executive Directors meet the guidelines for
assessing independence as set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and considers them to be independent.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and overseeing the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions and performance. Directors take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company. Some functions
including, inter alia, monitor and approval of material
transactions, matters involving conflict of interest for a
substantial shareholder or Director, the approval of the
interim and annual results, other disclosures to the public or
regulators and the internal control system are reserved by
the Board and the decisions relating to such matters shall be
subject to the decision of the Board. Matters not specifically
reserved to the Board and necessary for the daily operations
of the Company are delegated to the management under the
supervision of the respective Directors.

The Board meets regularly and at least four times throughout
the financial year. All Directors are given the opportunity to
put items on the agenda for regular Board meetings. All
Directors have access to the Company Secretary to ensure
that all Board procedures, rules and regulations are followed.
Full minutes of Board meetings are kept by the Company
Secretary and are available for inspection on reasonable
notice. Any Director may, in furtherance of his duties, take
independent professional advice where necessary at the
expense of the Company.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

In accordance with bye-law 86 of the Bye-laws, any Director
appointed to fill a causal vacancy on the Board shall hold
office only until the next following general meeting of the
Company and any director appointed as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

According to bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws and the CG Code, at
each annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of
the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every 3 years, and shall then be eligible for re-
election. Any further re-appointment of an independent non-
executive director, who has served the Board for more than
nine years, will be subject to separate resolution to be
approved by the shareholders.

In accordance with bye-law 86 of the Bye-laws, the
shareholders of the Company may by an ordinary resolution
remove any Director (but without prejudice to any claim for
damages under any contract) before the expiration of his
period of office, and may by an ordinary resolution appoint
another person in his stead.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

As at the date of this annual report, the Chairman is Mr.
Charlie Lu. The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of
the Board, ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of its role
for setting its agenda and taking into account any matters
proposed by other directors for inclusion in the agenda.

The Chief Executive Officer was responsible for supervising
the day-to-day management of the Group’s business. Since
the resignation of Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth in March 2020,
the Company does not have any officer with the title of Chief
Executive Officer. The overall responsibility of supervising and
ensuring that the Group’s business in line with the order of
the Board in terms of day-to-day operations and execution is
vested in the Board itself. The Board considered that this has
the advantages of allowing contributions from all executive
Directors with different expertise and the Company will
review the current situation from time to time and shall make
necessary arrangements when the Board considers
appropriate.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, including the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”),
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”),
the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) and the
investment committee (the “Investment Committee”) for
overseeing particular aspects of the Group's affairs. Details of
which are set out below. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of
reference which are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Chiu Wai On (the chairman of
the Audit Committee), Mr. Man Kwok Leung and Mr. Sheung
Kwong Cho.

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the
changes to the composition of the Audit Committee were as
follows:

— Dr. Wong Yun Kuen resigned as a member with effect
from 23 December 2020; and

— Mr. Sheung Kwong Cho was appointed as a member
with effect from 18 May 2021.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review
the Group’s financial reporting system, the nature and scope
of audit review; (i) review the effectiveness of the system of
internal control procedures and risk management and the
Company’s internal audit function; and (iii) review and
monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity.
In addition, the Audit Committee discusses matters raised by
the external auditor and regulatory bodies to ensure that
appropriate recommendations are implemented. The Audit
Committee meets as and when required to perform its
responsibilities and at least twice a year.
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During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the interim
and annual results with the external auditor and made
recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of the
external auditor, reviewed the risk management and internal
control systems and the effectiveness of the internal audit
function of the Company in accordance with the Audit
Committee’s written terms of reference. The Audit
Ccommittee also reviewed and approved the risk assessment
in relation to the hotel business in Japan.

The Audit Committee held two meetings and has a written
resolution done during the year ended 30 June 2021. The
attendance record of each member of the Audit Committee
is set out in the sub-section “Attendance Record of Directors
and Committee Members” below.

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Chiu Wai On (the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Man Kwok
Leung and Mr. Sheung Kwong Cho.

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the
changes to the composition of the Remuneration Committee
were as follows:

— Dr. Wong Yun Kuen resigned as a member with effect
from 23 December 2020; and

— Mr. Sheung Kwong Cho was appointed as a member
with effect from 18 May 2021.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to (i)
make recommendations to the Board on the policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management'’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for remuneration policy; (ii) make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration package
of individual executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
senior management; and (iii) review and approve
compensation payable to executive Directors and senior
management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment. The Remuneration Committee meets at least
once a year.
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During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the
remuneration policy and packages of the Directors and senior
management and made recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration policy and packages of the Directors and
senior management in accordance with the Remuneration
Committee’s written terms of reference. The Remuneration
Committee also approved and recommended to the Board
the terms of letters of appointment and the Directors’ fee
payable to two newly appointed Directors.

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the
year ended 30 June 2021. The attendance record of each
member of the Remuneration Committee is set out in the
sub-section “Attendance Record of Directors and Committee
Members” below.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Chiu Wai On (the
chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Man Kwok
Leung and Mr. Sheung Kwong Cho.

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the
changes to the composition of the Nomination Committee
were as follows:

— Dr. Wong Yun Kuen resigned as a member with effect
from 23 December 2020; and

— Mr. Sheung Kwong Cho was appointed as a member
with effect from 18 May 2021.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to (i)
review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board; (ii) identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members; (iii) to assess the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; and (iv) make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for
directors. The Nomination Committee meets at least once a
year.
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The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Diversity
Policy”) which sets out the approach by the Company to
achieve diversity on the Board. According to the Diversity
Policy, selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience and length of service.

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”). A summary of this policy is disclosed as below.

1. Criteria
The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall
consider the following criteria in evaluating and
selecting candidates for directorships:

o Character and integrity.

o Qualifications including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant
to the Company’s business and corporate
strategy.

e  Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a Board member and other directorships
and significant commitments.

° Requirement for the Board to have independent
directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and
whether the candidates would be considered
independent with reference to the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

o Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives
adopted by the Company for achieving diversity
on the Board.

e Such other perspectives appropriate to the
company'’s business.
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2. Nomination Process

2.1 Appointment of New Director
2.1.1 The Nomination Committee and/or the Board

shall, upon receipt of the proposal on
appointment of new director and the
biographical information (or relevant details)
of the candidate, evaluate such candidate
based on the criteria as set out in section 1
to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship.

2.1.2 If the process yields one or more desirable

candidates, the Nomination Committee and/
or the Board shall rank them by order of
preference based on the needs of the
Company and reference check of each
candidate (where applicable).

2.1.3 The Nomination Committee shall make

recommendation to the Board in respect of
the appointment of appropriate candidate
for directorship.

2.1.4 For any person that is nominated by a

shareholder for election as a director at the
general meeting of the Company, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board
shall evaluate such candidate based on the
criteria as set out in section 1 to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for
directorship and where appropriate, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board
shall make recommendation to shareholders
in respect of the proposed election of
director at the general meeting.
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2.2 Re-election of Director at General Meeting
2.2.1 The Nomination Committee and/or the Board
shall review the overall contribution and
service to the Company of the retiring
director including his/her attendance of
Board meetings and, where applicable,
general meetings, and the level of
participation and performance on the Board.

2.2.2 The Nomination Committee and/or the Board
shall also review and determine whether the
retiring director continues to meet the
criteria as set out in section 1.

2.2.3 The Nomination Committee and/or the Board
shall then make recommendation to
shareholders in respect of the proposed re-
election of director at the general meeting.

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed,
considered and approved the structure, size and diversity of
the Board and the Diversity Policy, the Nomination Policy, the
independence of independent non-executive Directors and
made recommendations to the Board on the re-election of
the Directors in accordance with the Nomination Committee’s
written terms of reference. The Nomination Committee also
approved and recommended to the Board the appointment
of two newly appointed Directors.

The Nomination Committee held four meetings during the
year ended 30 June 2021. The attendance record of each
member of the Nomination Committee is set out in the sub-
section “"Attendance Record of Directors and Committee
Members” below.
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INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Investment Committee has been established by the
Board on 2 August 2021. The members of the Investment
Committee shall consist of not less than two members from
amongst Directors and senior management of the Company
of which at least one shall be Director. The Investment
Committee currently comprises an executive Director, Mr. Liu
Shihao (the chairman of the Investment Committee) and the
managing Director, Mr. Yiu To Wa.

The Investment Committee is responsible for, among others,
to exercise delegated authority from the Board, to handle any
issues or affairs related to the investment aspects of the
Company, to review the investment performance from time
to time and advise the Board on how the Company’s funds
are to be used to enhance the Group’s investment returns, to
consider, approve and/or recommend the Board taking any
steps appropriate and necessary in relation to the investment
activities of the Company and preserve the value of the
Company'’s funds and/or achieving capital appreciation.

The Investment Committee held six meetings since its
establishment and up to the date of this report. The
Investment Committee considered, approved and
recommended to the Board, among others the terms of
reference of the Investment Committee and several listed
securities listed on the Stock Exchange for acquisitions which
the Investment Committee members considered worthwhile
for the Company to generate returns in fulfilling its investment
objective.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS
AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Board held 11 Board
meetings.

The attendance record of each Director at the Board
meetings, the committees’ meetings and the annual general
meeting of the Company held during the year is set out
below:
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No. of meetings attended/held
BEE/BEERY
Audit  Remuneration  Nomination Annual
Committee ~ Committee  Committee General

Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
ENZEe  ¥MZRE  RgZae e
L Lt LE AFxg

Board

Directors Meeting
Bz EZged
Executive Directors HER
Mr. Wong Hin Shek TEERE

("Mr. Wong') (Note 1) (TEEE ) (FzE1) 1011
Mr. Chan Wai Ki (Note 2) FREEA & (3T 2) nm
Mr. Eric Todd (Note 3) EREE & (F7H3) 1
Mr.YiuTo Wa (‘'Mr. Yiu') (Note 4) - ShiBZE 524 (T9kse £ 1) (st 4) -
Independent non-executive B FHTEE

Directors
Mr. Chiu Wai On feREE 111
Mr. Man Kwok Leung BEREE 1M
Mr. Sheung Kwong Cho AL

("Mr. Sheung") (Note 5) (Wﬁﬂj)(ﬂﬁ i5) 7
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen EEEERT

(‘Dr. Wong") (Note 6) (TEHL) (i6) 45
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202 313 A/ 1
202 33 A/ 1

11 1 1N 1
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Notes:

1. Mr. Wong resigned on 27 May 2021.

2. Mr. Chan resigned on 22 July 2021.

3. Mr. Todd resigned on 1 September 2021.

4. Mr. Yiu was appointed on 27 May 2021 and resigned on 22 July 2021.

5. Mr. Sheung was appointed on 18 May 2021.

6. Dr. Wong resigned on 23 December 2020.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTOR

Upon appointment to the Board, Directors are provided with
comprehensive induction training to ensure that they have a
thorough understanding of the Group’s operations, applicable
laws and rules as well as their role and responsibilities. Every
new Director also receives a Director’'s handbook which
contains guide on Directors’ duties and continuing
obligations, applicable Laws, Regulations and Governing
documents and information on other key governance
matters.

The Group continuously updates Directors on developments
in the statutory and regulatory regime and the business
environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional
development for directors will be arranged at the expenses of
the Company where necessary.

—7

B &

1. EEER-ZE-_—FAA-+LHEE-
2. RAEENR_T-_—F+A-Z+T-HEHE
3. BRER-ZE-—FHAA—BET-

4. KEER T -_—FRA-+HHAREZERNZ
T —FEAZF+ZHEHITE -

5. BAERZZE-_—FRA+/\BHEE -

6. BEELTR -_ZE_TFT_A-T=HEE-

EFZHHEEERRR

RERENAESEEE  BSERHEEA
BEd - ARARBREER THRAEEN S
B ERERMRANAREENABLE
F-B—2HEESNSRIEEFTM &
THEEFRELMFEEENES  BRE
Bl ROIRREXHAREMETEEGEE
HER °

AEBHERESRLEITREEZRIUAR
EBRRBIZEMEREN HERKREETA
BZET TeEREEERASSLTHEE
MM AHREREERE  BRAAAQAE
i o

—FFR o ERFEREEERAT 37



Corporate Governance Report
ERELIWE

The Directors, participated in continuous professional REZ&EAMNERER @ HEER2EU T
development during the year or their respective tenure of BHE¥IRE :
office as follows:

48

Attending Reading

training materials

Attending relating to relating to
seminars directors' directors'
conducted by development development

professional and duties or and duties or

Directors parties relevant topics relevant topics
HEEHREE REFRES

HESERE BRRERBES ZRRBED

- BzWHE HBREIEZEN EEEEIMR
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Charlie Lu BRELE - 4 4
(appointed on 16 August 2021) (MN=F=—
NRTABEEA)
Mr. Cheng Chi Kin BT ER A - / 4
(appointed on 24 August 2021) (R=T=—
NAZTMBEZE)
Mr. Liu Shihao e P - 4 4
(appointed on 2 August 2021) ===
NAZBEZT)
Mr. Wong Hin Shek TEBEE v/ — v
(resigned on 27 May 2021) =E==
AAZ+EREE)
Mr. Chan Wai Ki BREMEE - - v/
(resigned on 22 July 2021) (R=T=——
+AZ+ZHEHT)
Mr. Eric Todd ERESE v = 4
(resigned on 1 September 2021) (R=T=—
LR —BEHE)
Mr. Yiu To Wa (appointed on 27 May 2021 kg% 4 - 7 v/
and resigned on 22 July 2021) (R=T=——
AAZTEREZER
R-T_—%F
+AZ+ZHEHT)
Independent non-executive Directors B ¥ #HTES
Mr. Chiu Wai On REREE v/ 4 v
Mr. Man Kwok Leung EEREE v = v/
Mr. Sheung Kwong Cho AXELE 4 v/
(appointed on 18 May 2021) (R=E=——
AA+NBEZME)
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen BEREEL = - 4
(resigned on 23 December 2020) (RZZ=ZF
+-A=+=HEF)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board has the following responsibilities:

(@ to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations from time to time;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management of the Group,

() to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to the
Directors and the employees of the Group; and

(e) toreview the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements for each financial year to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company. In
preparing the financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2021, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies
and applied them consistently, made judgments and
estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared
the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company
regarding their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements of the Company is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES
The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance
covering the liabilities of the Directors that may arise out of
the corporate activities, which has been complied with the
CG Code. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual
basis.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Ms. Tsang Kwai Ping, is responsible
to the Board for ensuring that the Board procedures are
followed and the Board activities are efficiently and effectively
conducted. The Company Secretary is also responsible for
ensuring the Board is fully appraised of the relevant
legislative, regulatory and corporate governance
developments relating to the Group and facilitating the
induction and professional development of directors.

During the year under review, Ms. Tsang has attended
relevant professional seminars to update her skills and
knowledge. She met the training requirement set out in Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

The remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit services
for the year ended 30 June 2021 provided by the Company’s
auditor, BDO Limited, are as follows:
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HK$'000
TR

Audit services Iz RS 1,900
Non-audit services (Note) FEEZARFE (B 5E) 100
Total st 2,000

Note:

The non-audit services mainly included professional fees in relation to review

of the Group'’s interim financial information.
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DIVIDEND POLICY B B BUR
The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend ZZ=epHBRERE(KREEE]) - K&
Policy”). A summary of the Dividend Policy is disclosed as BEMMEHRHZLT

below.

1. The Company may declare and pay dividends to the 1.

shareholders of the Company by way of cash or by
other means that the Board considers appropriate. It is
the policy of the Board, in recommending dividends, to
allow the shareholders to participate in the Company’s
profits, and at the same time, to ensure the Company to
retain adequate reserves for future growth. The
Company'’s decision to declare or to pay any dividends
in the future, and the amount of such dividends will
depend upon, among other things, the current and
future operations, financial condition, liquidity position
and capital requirements of the Group, as well as
dividends received from the Company’s subsidiaries
and associates, which in turn will depend on the ability
of those subsidiaries and associates to pay a dividend.
In addition, any final dividends for a financial year will
be subject to the approval of the shareholders. The
declaration and payment of dividends by the Company
is also subject to any restrictions under the laws of
Bermuda, the laws of Hong Kong, the Company’s bye-
laws and any applicable laws, rules and regulations.

2. Whilst the Dividend Policy reflects the Board's current 2.

views on the financial and cash-flow position of the
Group, the Board will continue to review the Dividend
Policy from time to time and the Board may exercise its
sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time as it deems fit
and necessary. There is no assurance that dividends
will be declared or paid in any particular amount for any
given period. The Dividend Policy shall in no way
constitute a legally binding commitment by the
Company that any dividend will be paid in any particular
amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
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Convene a Special General Meeting
Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at the
general meetings of the Company can at all times
submit a signed written requisition, specifying the
purpose, to the Board or the Company Secretary to
require the convening of a special general meeting
("SGM"). If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene the SGM, the requisitionists, or
any of them representing more than one half of the
total voting rights of all of them, themselves may
convene a SGM, but any SGM so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from 21 days
of the deposit.

Send Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries of shareholders can be sent to the Company
either by email at info.dt@detai-group.com or by post to
the Company’s Hong Kong head office at Room 905,
9/F., Wings Building, 110-116 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong. Shareholders can also make enquires with
the Board directly at the general meetings.

Make Proposals at General Meetings

Shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth of
the total voting rights of all shareholders having at the
date of the requisition a right to vote at the general
meeting or who are no less than 100 shareholders can
submit a written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary to propose a resolution at a general meeting.
The written requisition must state the resolution,
accompanied by a statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in the
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at
the general meeting and contain the signatures of all the
requisitionists (which may be contained in one document
or in several documents in like form). Such requisition
must be deposited to the Company’s registered office at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda not less than 6 weeks before the general
meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution and not less than 1 week before the general
meeting in the case of any other requisition and be
accompanied by a sum of money reasonably sufficient to
meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of
the resolution and circulating the statement given by the
requisitionists to all shareholders in accordance with the
requirements under the applicable laws and rules.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business. The
Company endeavors to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, through annual general
meeting and other general meetings. The website of the
Company at www.detai-group.com has provided an effective
communication platform to the public and the shareholders.

During the year ended 30 June 2021, there has not been any
change in the Company’s constitutional documents. A
consolidated version of the Company’s constitutional
documents is available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board ensures the maintenance of sound and effective
internal controls to safeguard the shareholders’ investment
and the assets of the Group. It has been an important duty of
the Directors to conduct a review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control and risk management of the Group
0n an on-going basis. The review covers all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls, as
well as risk management functions. The systems of risk
management and internal control are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure in achieving business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatements or loss.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant
authorities) of risk management and internal control to the
Audit Committee and the management would assist the Audit
Committee to carry out the risk management procedures.
The Audit Committee (on behalf of the Board) oversees the
management in the design, implementation and monitoring
of the risk management and internal control systems for the
year ended 30 June 2021.

A Risk Management Policy has been established for
formalizing the risk management system of the Group, so as
to ensure the Group is operating in a safety and steady
environment and the Group’s operational strategy and target
could be achieved. The current practices will be reviewed
and updated regularly to follow the latest practices in
corporate governance.
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The risk management process of the Group will involve,
among others, (i) a periodical risk identification and analysis
exercise which involves assessment of the consequence and
likelihood of identified risk and the development of risk
management plans for mitigating such risks; and (ii) an annual
risk management meeting for the review of the identified
risks, the implementation of the risk management plans and
enhancing the implementation plan when necessary.

Process Used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risks

As a routine procedure and part of the risk management and
internal control systems, Executive Directors and the senior
management would meet regularly to review the financial
and operating performance of each segment. The operational
management of the key operating subsidiaries is also
required to keep senior management and Executive Directors
informed of material developments of the department’s
business and implementation of the strategies and policies
set by the Board on a regular basis. The processes used to
identify, evaluate and manage significant risks by the Group
are summarized as follows:

Risk Identification
o Identifies risks that may potentially affect the Group'’s
business and operations.

Risk Assessment
e  Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment
criteria developed by the management; and

o Considers the impact on the business and the likelihood
of their occurrence.

Risk Response
o Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the risk
assessment; and

o Determines the risk management strategies and internal
control processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

o Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk
and ensures that appropriate internal control processes
are in place;

o Revises the risk management strategies and internal
control processes in case of any significant change of
Situation; and

o Reports the results of risk monitoring to the
management and the Board regularly.
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During the financial year ended 30 June 2021, the Group
engaged a professional advisory firm as internal control
reviewer (the “Internal Control Reviewer”) and to report
directly to the Audit Committee to conduct the annual review
for effectiveness the risk management and internal control
systems of the selected subsidiaries. The Internal Control
Reviewer adopted a risk-based approach and independently
reviewed and tested the controls. The scope of review
included revenue cycle, expenditure cycle, human resources
cycle, cash management and treasury cycle for the
headquarter and hotel hospitality business segments.
Findings and recommendations are reported to the Audit
Ccommittee. In addition, progress on audit recommendations
implementation will be followed up on a regular basis and
discussed with the Audit Committee.

During annual review, the Audit Committee also considers
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Group, accounting and financial reporting function
and their training programs and budgets. Based on the
results of evaluations, the Audit Committee was satisfied that
there was an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the significant risks faced by the Group that would
threaten the achievement of its business objectives; and an
appropriate, effective and adequate system of internal
control and risk management had been in place during the
financial year ended 30 June 2021.

To ensure timely, fair, accurate and complete disclosure of
inside information and for compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations, the Group has in place, as an internal
control element, a series of disclosure procedures of price
sensitive information on reporting and dissemination of inside
information and preservation of confidentiality. Under the
current practice, the directors aware any potential/suspected
inside information event as soon as practicable when it
materializes for determining the nature of developments, and
if required, making disclosure. All staff are also required to
observe the code of ethical standards to keep non-public
information confidential.
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The Directors present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 30 June 2021.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda and its principal place of business in Hong Kong is
Room 905, 9/F., Wings Building, 110-116 Queen's Road
Central, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2021 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on pages 92 and 93.

The Board resolved not to pay any final dividend for the year
ended 30 June 2021 (2020: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Company for the year ended
30 June 2021 is set out in the “CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT” and
“MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” on pages 4 to 5
and pages 6 to 20 respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 30 June 2021, the five largest customers
of the Group together accounted for approximately 21%
(2020: approximately 24%), with the largest customer
accounted for approximately 9% (2020: approximately 8%) of
the Group'’s total turnover. The five largest suppliers of the
Group together accounted for approximately 28% (2020:
approximately 38%), with the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 9% (2020: approximately 11%) of the Group’s
total purchases during the year.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, at no time during the
year did a Director, an associate of a Director or a
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
have an interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or
customers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the property,
plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 15 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS
Details of the movements during the year in the share capital
and share options of the Company are set out in respective
notes 31 and 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during
the year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

At 30 June 2021, the Company had no reserves available for
distribution (2020: Nil).

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

The Group had not made charitable or other donation during
the year ended 30 June 2021 (2020: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the past five financial years are set out on
pages 227 and 228.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD
Acquisition of 52% equity interest of natural
gas supply business

On 6 August 2021, Easy Nice a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company as purchaser, entered into the SPA with Rich
Rite as vendor and Mr. Frank Wang as guarantor. Pursuant to
the terms of the SPA, Easy Nice has conditionally agreed to
purchase and Rich Rite has conditionally agreed to sell 52%
equity interest of the target company at a consideration of
HK$185,201,000, which shall be satisfied by the issue of
convertible bonds in three tranches to Rich Rite by the
Company. The target company together with its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the constitution of long-distance
natural gas pipelines and the sale and supply of natural gas.
The completion shall take place on or before 6 September
2021.

On 3 September 2021, 17 September 2021 and 30 September
2021, Easy Nice and Rich Rite agreed to defer the date of
completion to 15 October 2021.

Details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 9 August 2021, 3 September 2021, 17
September 2021 and 30 September 2021.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS' SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Charlie Lu (appointed on 16 August 2021)
(Chairman)

Mr. Cheng Chi Kin (appointed on 24 August 2021)

Mr. Liu Shihao (appointed on 2 August 2021)

Mr. Wong Hin Shek (resigned as both the Chairman

and an executive Director
on 27 May 2021)
Mr. Chan Wai Ki (appointed as the Chairman
on 27 May 2021 and resigned
as both the Chairman and
an executive Director
on 22 July 2021)
Mr. Eric Todd (appointed as the Chairman
on 22 July 2021, ceased to
act as the Chairman
on 16 August 2021 and
resigned as an executive
Director on 1 September 2021)
Mr. Yiu To Wa (appointed on 27 May 2021 and
resigned on 22 July 2021)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chiu Wai On

Mr. Man Kwok Leung

Mr. Sheung Kwong Cho  (appointed on 18 May 2021)

Dr. Wong Yun Kuen (resigned on 23 December 2020)

According to bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-laws, any Director
appointed to fill a causal vacancy on the Board shall hold
office only until the next following general meeting of the
Company and any Director appointed as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election at that meeting.
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According to bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws, at each annual
general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. A retiring Director
shall be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Charlie Lu, Mr.
Cheng Chi Kin, Mr. Liu Shihao and Mr. Sheung Kwong Cho,
who have been appointed with effect from 16 August 2021,
24 August 2021, 2 August 2021 and 18 May 2021,
respectively, shall hold office until the 2021 AGM and shall
then be eligible for re-election. Pursuant to bye-law 87 of the
Bye-laws, Mr. Chiu Wai On and Mr. Man Kwok Leung will
retire from office as Directors at the 2021 AGM and all retiring
Directors are eligible and will offer themselves for re-election
at the 2021 AGM.

Pursuant to the code provision set out in paragraph A.4.3 of
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, any further appointment of
independent non-executive director serving more than nine
years should be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by shareholders. The Nomination Committee
considered the independence of each of the independent
non-executive Directors. Each of Mr. Chiu and Mr. Man has
served the Company as an independent non-executive
Director for more than nine years during which period each
of Mr. Chiu and Mr. Man has provided professional advice
and insight to the Board with their respective extensive
experience and knowledge in the accounting and legal
aspects. Both Mr. Chiu and Mr. Man have in-depth
understanding of the Group’s business and operation and
have also demonstrated strong independence by providing
comments at Board and Board committee meetings during
their tenure of office. In addition, none of Mr. Chiu and Mr.
Man has any financial or family relationships with any other
Directors, senior management, substantial shareholders or
controlling shareholders of the Company, which could give
rise to a conflict of interests situation or otherwise affect their
exercise of independent judgement. In view of the aforesaid
factors, the Nomination Committee considered that long
service of both Mr. Chiu and Mr. Man would not affect their
exercise of independent judgment and was satisfied that
each of Mr. Chiu and Mr. Man has the required integrity and
experience to continue fulfilling the role of an independent
non-executive Director. The Nomination Committee affirmed
each of the independent non-executive Directors remain
independent and is of the view that the Retiring Directors will
continue to contribute to the Board with their respective
perspectives, skills and experience. In view of the aforesaid
factors and the experience and knowledge of the relevant
individuals in the business sectors in which the Group
operates, the Board would recommend Mr. Chiu and Mr. Man
for re-election at the 2021 AGM.
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The independent non-executive Directors are not appointed
for a specific term and are subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the Bye-laws.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 30 June 2021, none of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO")) which
would be required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
would be taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO); to be recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Listing
Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND
OTHER PERSONS' INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2021, so far as was known to the Directors or
chief executive of the Company based on the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Part XV of the SFO,
the following persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) had an interest or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or to be
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and were
directly or indirectly interest in 5% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote on
all circumstances at general meeting of any other members
of the Group were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company

%EEE&EM**%*’AE%#
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ERARDREBRORE

Total

Name of
substantial shareholder

Number of
underlying
shares held
Fr51EE8

Number of
shares held

Capacity

number of
shares and
underlying
shares held
FrERA R

Approximate
percentage of
the issued
share capital
FEBRTRE

FRRRER &%

Beneficial owner
BEnBEBA

Mr. Tong Liang
RETE

Note: The percentage is calculated on the basis of 15,695,531,700 shares in
issue as at 30 June 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2021, so far as was
known to the Directors or chief executive of the Company
based on the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to Part XV of the SFO, no person (other than the Directors or
chief executive of the Company) had any interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or to be
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the share option scheme of the Company and the
movements during the year are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme of the Company, at no
time during the year was the Company, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors and chief executives of
the Company (including their spouses and children under 18
years of age) to hold any interest or short positions in the
shares, or underlying shares, or debentures, of the Company
or its associated corporations (with the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, Mr. Wong Hin Shek (“Mr. Wong"), the
Chairman and an executive Director, is the chairman, the
chief executive officer, an executive director and the
substantial shareholder of Merdeka Financial Group Limited
(stock code: 8163) (“Merdeka”) the issued shares of which are
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange and a director of an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Merdeka (the
“Subsidiary”). The Subsidiary is engaged in money lending
business, which is considered to compete or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly of the money lending
business of the Group. To safeguard the Group's interest, Mr.
Wong has confirmed not to involve in the day-to-day business
operations of the money lending business of the Group and
will abstain from voting on any matter in relation to the
money lending business of the Group if there is or may be a
conflict of interest upon his appointment as a director of
Merdeka and the Subsidiary.

As the Board is independent of the boards of the aforesaid
companies and maintains three independent non-executive
Directors, the Group operates its businesses independently
of, and at arm'’s length from, the businesses of the aforesaid
companies.

Mr. Wong has resigned as the Chairman and an executive
Director on 27 May 2021. Save as disclosed above and since
the resignation of Mr. Wong, the Company has no Directors
or any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had any interest in a business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group during the year and up to the date of
this report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which any of the Company's subsidiaries
and fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director
or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time during
the year or at the end of the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme of the Company, no equity-
linked agreements were entered into by the Company, or
existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
Pursuant to Code Provision A.1.8 of the Corporate
Governance Code set out under Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules and subject to the provisions of the Companies
Ordinance, the Company has arranged for appropriate
insurance cover for directors’ and officers’ liabilities in
respect of any losses or liabilities incurred, or any legal
actions brought against the directors and senior management
of the Group which may arise out of corporate activities. The
permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the
directors as required by section 470 of the Companies
Ordinance.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme, at no time during the
year was the Company or its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole and any substantial part of the business of the
Company was entered into or in existence during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed, the Company did not have any other
connected transactions which were subject to the reporting
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the
year ended 30 June 2021.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

During the vyear, as far as the Company is aware, there was
no material breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws
and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on
the business and operations of the Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND RETIREMENT
BENEFITS

The emolument policy of the senior employees of the
Company is set and recommended by the Remuneration
Committee to the Board on the basis of the employees’ merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are formulated and
recommended by the Remuneration Committee to the Board,
having regards to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance of the Directors and comparable market
statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to the Directors and eligible employees of the
Company, details of which are set out in the note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Company encourages environmental protection and
promotes awareness towards environmental protection. The
Company has adhered to the concepts of recycling and
reducing by implementing green office practices such as
double-sided printing and copying, using recycle papers and
reducing energy by switching off those idle lighting. The
Board will review the Company’s environmental saving
practices and identify other energy efficiency opportunities
from time to time.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS
The Company recognises that employees are our valuable
assets. Thus the Group provides competitive remuneration
package to attract and motivate the employees. The Group
regularly reviews the remuneration package of employees
and makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market
standard.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with business partners to achieve its long-
term goals. Accordingly, our senior management have kept
good communication, promptly exchanged ideas and shared
business update with them when appropriate. During the
year, there was no material and significant dispute between
the Group and its business partners.

BTHRERRER

Py AR REELEEKRER
ST AR AL R B SR EAYE
2 BRERRER -

% B L 3% B SR iR
ARRmREE ZFHBREFHEE SR
BEEBE BEMENETE YRNEFSE

EENHFM I BFNEZE R ARRRKER
B BEEEARARAE BT S BIE G
o YREFSEHEREE -

AAREHRNERETE - (EAHEZERA
NAIBRBWREE 2 B FHBHEEPHR
FHIEES9 ©

RIRR

ARARERRREL HERERFEER -
ARBIBRTRRBEMDAOMEIESD - B
ERERAEERER - fINEITER?SE
MEZEN R A B E A - Bt B AfE R 2 IRAA
WA FERER - EEERRAARAZR
TRENK) T 357 B 75 30 Ny 35 9 H th 8 A B TR X
mIEE o

BiFmEZmE

ARERR  BEDEBEEEE - At -
SERFEEDF N 2HMFE - ARSI
BEE  -AREEHREE 2FMEE
W FETISREMIELBRFHE -

AEETAR  BEEEHREFRIFAERY
EREREAEMEBEHEE - At ' =
REEESHEEEBENTRREETRIOE
B ERRRRERKEREBER - F
N AEBEEAFEBH Y ESAMARL

54 DETAI NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Directors’ Report
EFEERE

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group has reviewed the possible risks and uncertainties
which may affect its businesses, financial condition,
operations and prospects. The followings are the key risks
and uncertainties identified by the Group. There may be other
risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown below
which are not known to the Group or which may not be
material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

Risks pertaining to hotel operation

The Group’s hotel hospitality business may be significantly
affected by outside factors such as the occurrence of
extreme climates, the changes of government regulations,
foreign exchange fluctuations, and other natural and social
factors which may affect the level of global travel and
business activities. The extreme climates such as typhoon,
earthquake, tsunami and avalanches may increase
maintenance costs, affect the daily operation and safety of
employees of hotel hospitality business. The changes of
government regulations, such as the denial of permission to
entry for foreign nationals imposed during the period of
COVID-19 pandemic, which adversely affected the daily
operation of the hotel hospitality business.

As the Group's hotel is located in Japan Hokkaido, the
revenue from this business is sensitive to changes in the
tourism industry in Japan, which is greatly influenced by the
attractiveness of Japan as a destination for tourists,
particularly welcomed by family groups and long-stay guests
for its spacious condominium rooms, which is the major
source of business for our hotels.

Risks pertaining to financing requirements and
access to capital

The amount and timing of the expenditures required to carry
out the product development/testing activities and potential
investments of the Group are uncertain and will depend on
numerous factors, some of which are outside the Group’s
control. Factors that could increase the Group’s funding
requirements including but not limited to higher costs and
slower progress than expected to develop products and
slower progress than expected in securing development of
the Group’s products/potential investments. Greater than
expected expenditure requirements may materially and
adversely affect the Group’s financial results and their ability
to introduce new products/investments profitably.
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Risks pertaining to exchange rate fluctuations
AS a consequence of the international nature of the Group, it
will be exposed to risks associated with changes in foreign
currency exchange rates. The Group's future sales operations
will be affected by fluctuations in exchange rates to the
extent that its sales and purchases are denominated in
currencies other than its reporting currency. Movements in
exchange rates to translate foreign currencies may have a
significant impact on the Group’s results of operations,
financial position and cash flows from year to year.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to shareholders of the Company by reason of their
holding of the Company’s securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the exercise of any pre-emptive
rights under the Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of
Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities for
the year ended 30 June 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Full details on the Company'’s corporate governance practices
are set out on pages 25 to 45.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, Mr. Chiu Wai On (the chairman of the
Audit Committee), Mr. Man Kwok Leung and Mr. Sheung
Kwong Cho. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are
to (i) review the Group's financial reporting system, the nature
and scope of audit review; (i) review the effectiveness of the
system of internal control procedures and risk management
and the Company’s internal audit function; and (iii) review
and monitor the external auditor’'s independence and
objectivity. In addition, the Audit Committee discusses
matters raised by the external auditor and regulatory bodies
to ensure that appropriate recommendations are
implemented. The Audit Committee meets as and when
required to perform its responsibilities and at least twice a
year.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s annual
results for the year ended 30 June 2021 with the management
of the Company and the external auditor, and was of the
opinion that the preparation of such results are in compliance
with the relevant accounting standards, rules and regulations
and that adequate disclosures have been made.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors, at least
25% of the Company’s issued share capital were held by
members of the public as at the date of this report as
required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year have been audited by
BDO Limited who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Cheng Chi Kin
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 30 September 2021
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

DeTai New Energy Group Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the “Group”) is
pleased to present our Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") Report (the “ESG Report”). This report presents the
Group’s sustainability policies, guidelines, and performance
in the past year in a transparent manner. The Group
recognises the ESG values and it is our commitments to
create sustainable values and environmental protection
through caring of our stakeholders.

Reporting Scope

The ESG Report covers the reporting period from 1 July 2020
to 30 June 2021 (the “Reporting Period”). Unless otherwise
specified, the ESG Report covers the Company’s operations
of our Hong Kong headquarter and its hotel hospitality
business in Niseko, Hokkaido (the “Selected Business
Segments”)".

1 Revenue from hotel hospitality business generated of approximately
77.9% out of the total revenue for the year ended 30 June 2021
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Reporting Standards and Principle WEZEER R

This ESG Report is prepared in accordance to the ESG  AIBiE @ RELGRELRETBH AR
Reporting Guide (“ESG Reporting Guide”) set out in the S pr ([ pT]) &5 Fi#RAI ([ =R LR
Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities B ) 827 FiEi v 3R 3E « t @ R B A WME
(“Main Board Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange of Hong  3#55| ([r3E - & LE AR EIES| ) wmE -
Kong (“"HKEX"), which outlined four key reporting principles: Hehuh TrOIEE ERERL

e Materiality
BEEM

Through conducting a materiality assessment and engaging stakeholders of the Group, the Board
reviews and prioritises the ESG issues that are most relevant to the Group. Details of the
stakeholder engagement can be found in the “Materiality Assessment” section.
FREEUTERASERNEC2E EXEERUAEEMSHERIERE  HEKES
EEVHELEEECBERT BEFNELEFEA2MH [E2MTME] —& -

o Quantitative

Bt

This ESG Report discloses the relevant standards and methodologies in the calculation of
environmental and social key performance indicators (“KPIs”) with the aim of ensuring the data
disclosed is measurable and comparable.

RIRE - HEREAMERBAEREILSARERUER ((BREBUER ] BB 2 EH#A
BERFE  BEEBRABRBESEGERALER -

Performance targets of KPIs are set by the Group based on historical data and business
development plan.
AEBENBEEHMMEBERASRTHEAREBERIKRRAR -

3 Balance

T

This ESG Report provides an unbiased picture of the ESG performance of the Group during the
Reporting Period by avoiding the selection, omission, or presentation formats that may
inappropriately influence the judgement of the readers.
RIRE - ERESHREERERAIEHEEANEETEREZEE BRIE®WAN - U
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J consistency
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The data calculation methodologies of this ESG Report shall be consistent to facilitate
comparisons with historical data.
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OUR APPROACH TOWARDS ESG

The Group upholds corporate social responsibilities by
maintaining high level of corporate governance standards,
operating in a way to protect the environment, serving the
community, as well as promoting social integration and
support heritage conservation. With the objective of
becoming the preferred choice of customers, investors and
employees, the Group endeavours to establish a high
reputation in the hotel hospitality and tourism industry and
promises to deliver a high standard of services to its guests.

ESG Governance Framework

We have established a two-tier ESG governance structure to
enhance our ESG risk management and control. The Board of
Directors (the “Board”) oversees the Group’s ESG practices
and governs the Group’s ESG risk management and internal
controls with the support of the top management. The Board
of Directors has delegated the Environmental, Social, and
Governance Working Team (“ESG Working Team”) to assist in
implementing and monitoring of the ESG strategy and ESG
risk management. The ESG Working Team comprises of
members from the Board as well as representatives from the
key departments of the Group.

The Board of Directors
BEE

BAZEE - HERTFRLH
AEBBBERHERT 2 EEERRE R
MRERS - MGHLE  RBEEHRRE
BYXMREZEENR  —ERBELEL
SE - ARBURARS REERES
ZBRBEBRBE  BAREERS RIRE
REUERER YEAHEARERHUEKT
AR

RiIR  HERERESR
HFERYIRIR - @ RERZMASER
B8 - DADNSRIRIE - HE NERRRERERK
ZH - B2 ((EFS ) EEAEERE
HEhERZEY  YERSEEEZXFH
THREAREZRE HekEnRRER
KRAEES  c EEECRERR HELE
ATEPNE(RE e RERTIENE]D
BB BERMERRE 8 RE AR LA
REE - IRE  HEMERIEIVEMRES
GRE AR ANEE 2P 2 RRAEMK

e (Qversees the Group's ESG practices and strategic development
EBEAKERE e RERZIEH KRR ER

Formulate the Group's ESG strategy and policy
FIEAREEZIRE S REGRIERBUR

ESG Working Team
RIE HERERIEN

e Assist the Board in the implementation of the Group's overall ESG management

approach and strategy

MBEESEMAEE 2 ERBRIE E g RERTIR & KRR

e Track the Group's progress in achieving ESG performance targets
BHMAREEERRE HehBEERRERITECEE
Identify and evaluate ESG-related risks and control mechanisms
BB R AHAIRIE © d @ KRB EAE R B S5 i

60 DETAI NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BE - HERELRE

ESG Strategy and Policy

The Group is committed in providing a gracious and relaxed
environment through its hotel hospitality business while
minimising the impact on the environment. We have
implemented the ESG Strategy and Policy that incorporates
sustainability into our business operations. The Group
continuously measures, manages, monitors, and improves
the environmental performance of the following four focus
areas with concrete measures outlined in the Strategy and
Policy. The ESG Working Team will review the ESG Strategy
and Policy and propose changes if deemed appropriate,
which will be reviewed and approved by the Board.

e Emissions
BER

Energy
efficiency and
conservation
BEIR A &
HE BB

— =%

BRIR 8 REARBREE
AEBEEBEEE R EBRHER K
CRRE ARBERCREFERER
K- HMBEEBRE 48 REAREE LK
B BAIREERBARMCEBKEE - K
SEREHE B ERKHEUTHRE
BB CRRRI - WAERREES
AR - RIE - g RERIENER
BEHRE A NEORE MK - WEE
EERHE -

Water
management
KERERE

WENE
management
REYE R

—T-FF%H « BEFEREEERAT 6]
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B ERERRE

ESG Targets

Recognising the importance of sustainability issues, the
Group has set ESG performance targets to evaluate the
effectiveness of our ESG policies and measures. We have
identified energy, water, and waste as our key ESG areas by
setting performance targets accordingly. Using year 2020/21
as the baseline year, the following targets are expected to be
achieved by or before year 2031/32.

RiR HERERERE

AEERRAFEEREECERE - UE
BERE B8 REAREBRT - AFHER
PMzRE HERERARRERERZIEX
- WMEELBERIRBIER - FEARETERE
B KRB RERRE He8RkEaH
B AT TF T —FREEF B
BR-T=—F = _FZAEKUATE

.

Non-Hazardous Waste Intensity:

5% reduction
5%

Energy Consumption Intensity:

BEFHERE:

5% reduction
5%

Water Consumption Intensity:
FKRBE:
5% reduction
6%
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT EdnE-§-

Communicating With Our Stakeholders HiFHEBE

The Group believes that understanding the expectations of all  ZREBE RS @ TREFEEFHE 2 BB HH#F
stakeholders plays a crucial role in driving long-term success B ERHIKINEBEE - Bfi—HF:BTE
of our business. We have been communicating regularly with =g E1F)E FHI@ - FEU THRESHAKN
our stakeholders through different channels to learn their £E3EE  HE@REARE B E - %E=
views regarding the Group’s ESG development. These B iSEARMIHITIRE HE@MREAREN
opinions will serve as indispensable references to the TR ARE - EHMERBBEREBE
development of our ESG strategies and measures. The details — [E#fatan T -

of the stakeholder communication channels are outlined as

follows:

Stakeholders Communication channels
E5E BERE

® jo  Management e Regular meetings

S8 EEE o THiE:

Sz

< & | Employees o Business meetings

o ¢ Training programs

< e Regular performance appraisals
o (== o XTEEH

= o IFFIFRIE

o TFHARIAFTH

Customer hotlines
Website and social media
Online customer feedback
Guest satisfaction surveys
Day-to-day communication
Company's website

B R R
AEuh R At R
BLEEFPREEE
ERMEERAE

HEERA

NGIEER

Hotel Guests

BEin &

External Stakeholders
BN

Shareholders/Investors General meetings
Annual reports

Direct communication
Company'’s website
N

FI

BEEBR

NGIF I

BRREE
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Stakeholders Communication channels
& BERE
g *j*iﬂ Suppliers e Business communications
o R . . )
S i o Meetings and discussions
oh e Tender Notice
I = fHER o ENGEA
= o BENKEW
= ° ‘JJ:jjTT %ﬂ
i
Communities/Non-governmental e Charitable and volunteering Activities
Organisations e Company’s website
e ESG Report
M FE AT AR . %%&%Iiﬁb
o ARAYUL
o IRIZE - HERERRE
Materiality Assessment BEEMFAM

The Group has adopted a three-stage materiality assessment  AEBE KA D A={AEE 7 B2 MH 1158
process to identify, collect and validate the sustainability 2 - A5 - WE RXFEAFERRET
issues to ensure the material environmental and social issues — #IAFEREAIBE Lt @ ETRIBE &
are reflected in the ESG Report. MERMER R o

Stage 1 Identification of Sustainability Topics
The Group has engaged an independent sustainability consultant to identify and review 19
potential material issues based on the ESG Reporting Guide.

E1REER BRTHERRERE
AEEEZE 2BV REEREMABREERER Mg kEomEEl - #hlREH19IEA]
BEEXREH

Stage 2 Stakeholder Opinion Collection and the Establishment of Materiality Matrix
Stakeholder engagement surveys were conducted to prioritise the material topics identified in
Stage 1. A materiality matrix was established based on two parameters: importance to
stakeholders and significant to business.

E2MEER BEFHEERREVEEMER
BMEBBHNELERAE - UREF —BRBANCEEZERZBZBERT - KMIERERFNE
LEEMRHEGR  EEHEMIBL2HRELEZNERE -

Stage 3 Validation of Material Topics
The Board examined and confirmed the assessment results of the material issues during the
Reporting Period, before recognising them as the prioritised disclosure of this ESG Report.

E IR REEERE
%%A%E&ﬁﬁmﬁ#&iﬁﬁFﬁ%ik%ﬁz%ﬁﬁ ER - ZEFTSKEEEERRANANIERE
e kErmEREBRRECEEH -
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List of ESG Issues

RiIR HEREREHEE

Environmental Social

RE HE

1. Air Emissions 8. Staff Welfare

2. Waste Management 9. Equal Opportunity

3. Greenhouse Gas Emission and 10. Occupational Health and Safety

N oSN = N ey @S

Energy Use 1.
Water Consumption 12.

Climate Change Risk
Green Procurement
Supply Chain Environmental Risk

2= RS AP 8.
BEYERE 9.
BERBHERKERER 10.
FEK 11.
RIEELER 12.
HERE

HrEERIERR

Staff Development and Training
Employment Compliance

8 T&7
TEe
BERERLR
B TR RIE
EBREH

Operating Practices

13.
4.
15.
16.
17.

18.
19.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.

Ethically Responsible Sourcing
Customer Service
Anti-corruption
Community Investment
Data Protection and Cyber
Security

Economic Performance
Business Growth

BT BERECRE

B PR

k&3

HERRE
BEHRELRE®RE S
ERR

EBER
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B ERERRE

Materiality Matrix

Based on the results of the stakeholder engagement, the
sustainability topics are mapped into the following matrix.
The top right quadrant lists out the highly material issues,
while the least material issues are listed in the bottom left

quadrant.

Importance to Stakeholders High
HENEZEEM =

Low
&

Low
&

Identified Material Issues

ERB2EESH

EEMER

ARIR

REFNELEGER  AIHEZRBERSE
BRATIEM - A LARRBIILTEEZME
BZEE MEEUKREZEZERIINET

€ :

Relevant Section in this Report
RARE 2 HBED

16
v
14
s
13
o« 12
° 19
o\ A
¢ 18
9 11
J o [ -
e
Significance to Business High
HEBRZEEN =]

community Investment

HRIRE

Data Protection and Cyber Security
BRRERBREZS

Customer Service

B PR

Business Growth

¥BER

Employment Compliance
EREER

Ethically Responsible Sourcing
EFEREEZKE
Anti-Corruption

RES

Our Community
BMztR
Our Value Chain

TPz EEHE
Our Value Chain

TPz EEHE
Our Value Chain

Bz EERE
Our Employees

HMzEE
Our Value Chain

Mz EEHE
Our Value Chain

Bz EESE
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OUR VALUE CHAIN

Supply Chain Management

The Group primarily engages suppliers in two categories: (i)
office supplies, covering procurements for routine office
items such as stationery, toners and papers; and (ii) hotel
supplies, such as food and beverages, hotel cleaning, and
laundry services, guestroom supplies, and other hotel
amenities.

We are committed to providing quality products and services
through our hotel hospitality business. Qur Supplier
Assessment Policy requires the consideration of cost,
reliability, consistency, timeliness of delivery and hygiene
when we engage all food suppliers for our hotel hospitality
business. The suppliers are also required to comply with all
applicable laws and regulations when supplying goods and
services to the Group. We also encourage the procurement
of locally sourced products as the transportation distance is
shorter thus leading to lower environmental footprint.
Supplier assessments are being conducted annually to
ensure the quality of goods and services are up to standard.

To further promote sustainability along our supply chain, we
are currently reviewing our supplier management criteria and
is considering to incorporate environmental and social factors
into our supply chain risk assessment. During the Reporting
Period, the Group has engaged a total of 220 suppliers for
Hong Kong headquarter and its hotel hospitality business in
Niseko. All suppliers for the hospitality operation are located
in Japan (2020: Over 97%). The breakdown of the supplier
information is as follows:

Bz EER
HEEEE

AEBTERREHEFDAE: VPR
o BMEXAE  BHEAREAERAMS
ZEREE R (i)BIE R PR e Rk
BIEBREARRY - B A R E A0 E
JE R

BRBNEBEERGFESRHEEER K
R - LI HEEFEBRRRE - NEE
BERGEBZAMERABHERE - RAL
AERKA - ATEME - —BlE - BERRfN2
RIMEEBR - HEBRAEEHER®
MARTS B - T AETHABRER M
B BT ERBAMESR  REZER
PEREERE - fEMRERERY - HAIBFY
HEBETIE  UWRRERERBZmE

Dozast A \@ N
aFRE -

RTE—SREBMUEREZ IRERE -
MBI EEEEHEREERR  WIFkE
ZEMRE ML & A=A AR RE R
e REHE - AEEAFBE N _H
HZBEERFRFRES X 220RHEER -
REFLEZMBEHREROURBERN(ZFT -
T HBBI7%) - HEFMERBANT

Number of Suppliers by Geographical Location
RiBENEE S 2 HEEEE

Japan
=P
168
76%

— =%

Hong Kong
BB
52
24%
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Product Responsibility

Complaint Handling

We believe opinions from our customers are vital to the
continuous improvement of our hotel hospitality services,
therefore it is essential to have an effective and transparent
complaint management system. We have therefore
established the Complaints Management Policy that ensures
complaints received are promptly dealt with in an efficient
and confidential manner. The policy has clearly stated the
procedures and channels for our guests to lodge complaints,
with the expectation of resolving the issue prior to the guest
departure. Apart from the channels stated in the policy, we
have set up various channels, including email address,
hotline, and satisfaction survey forms, to collect valuable
opinions from our guests.

We have also partnered with Online Travel Agencies (“OTA")
and used their online platforms for sales and marketing, as
well as receiving comments from guests. The information
collected will be reviewed regularly to identify key areas for
improvement on our hotel hospitality services.

During the Reporting Period, we have received 6 compliant
cases that were related to our hotel hospitality services and
facilities, the cases were well documented and reported to
the hotel management, refunds and compensations were
provided to the clients, where appropriate.

Customer Information Protection

The business nature of our hotel hospitality business requires
frequent and regular collection of personal data from our
existing and potential guests. In accordance with laws and
regulations relating to the security of personal data, such as
the Act on the Protection of Personal Information of Japan
and the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong, we
have developed Customer Data Privacy Policies that outline
how our employees should handle sensitive customer
information.

Employees are required to inform guests of the purpose of
using their personal information before collecting it from
them. The information will be stored properly in a locked
room that could only be accessed by designated staff. The
information is destroyed once the purpose of using it has
been achieved.

During the Reporting Period, there were no complaint cases
regarding the compromise of customer privacy or customer
data breaches.

EmEf

BRI

B FIBERPERERFVEE KRG RS 2T
Bt IERER - Hitt - BARNMBERZERF
EERGOAAAD - RAOETE FIERFE
BHOR - RERABBRARE 77 VA R ER IR Py
RIEZ W - ZBUR AR A B R AR
ZIEFMRE  UTAME THEEZREF R
RIEEAMRE - FRR P 2 RB8IN - HFIE
RURTERE  BREBM  BREFEN
MEBEHAERE  WREEEZEEER -

FAPITREEA Epk1TAL ([ EIRTTALD) & 1E
MAEPLFaETHERMBHER - WK
MERZARER - ZFIEHEAIRELZ
B BUREBERFRE 2T BNEH

(=

RS AR - B E 6 R BE & SR AR T
KB RFER  ZFERD A
ZERE YERBEEEREER YO F
BEBR TATPERFSIELMAHE -

EFERMRRE

ARBMBEERFES  mEEEER K
M5 Z4E% R E MR ERE REBETEER 2 @
AEBR - BIBEBBEBEABER LR 2 EEME
# o a0 B AR Z CEA B RBHREED (Act on
the Protection of Personal Information) #1&
B2 BAER (FLER) 1661 - ZAEHIER

ot e Ao\ el ey
BB RSAR -

BEEWSEERZEABR ZAT - MBS
EREARBEEN B/ - BB Z
EREFR—HELEFEAN REREEETH
EAZER - —BEZEABN - 18EE
PHRHR SHER ©

RNBEHE - MEBANEBEEEFLERER
BRISME 2 R EFEZ -
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Protecting Intellectual Property Rights

The Group is committed to maintaining and safeguarding
intellectual property rights to comply with the relevant
regulations and to protect our employees and customers.
Our Staff Handbook strictly prohibits the use and installation
of unauthorised or illegal software on the Company’s
computers. During the Reporting Period, we are strictly
complying with the relevant regulations, including but are not
limited to, the Copyright Ordinance (Cap. 528) and Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486) of Hong Kong as well as
the Copyright Law of Japan, the Group is not aware of any
incident on intellectual property rights infringements.

Anti-Corruption

The Group is committed to uphold business honestly and
integrity in our business operations, as well as complying
with relevant laws and regulations such as the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong. We have incorporated the
prevention of corruption, theft, fraud and embezzlement into
our Staff Handbook which defines behaviours that are not
appropriate in our business operations. All employees are
required to sign the Handbook to confirm that they have
received and acknowledged the requirements specified. Anti-
corruption video seminars and relevant guides by the Hong
Kong Independent Commission Against Corruption (“ICAC")
are circulated to the Board of directors to strengthen the
awareness of anti-corruption.

We have also formulated a Whistle Blower Policy to provide
clear procedures for all employees to report material
concerns take place within the Group. The Policy stated the
clear procedures with different scenarios depending on
whether the executive directors are the subject of complaint.
The Policy also protects the whistle blower from unjustified
or unfair disciplinary action or other improper employment
practices.

During the Reporting Period, neither the Group nor its
employees were involved in any concluded legal proceedings
related to material non-compliance such as corruption,
bribery, extortion, fraud, and money laundering.
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OUR ENVIRONMENT

The Group believes in the importance of sustainable
development and environmental protection and integrates
environmental protection into all aspects of our business
activities while supporting local sustainability action plans.
Our ESG Strategy and Policy provided a guiding framework
for the Group to develop and implement relevant guidelines,
operations procedures and measures based on our business
nature, covering greenhouse gas emissions, air emissions,
energy use, water use, and waste disposal.

We are also committed to driving sustainability among the
local community by regularly attending the monthly meetings
with Niseko Town & Hotel Association to support the Niseko
Eco-Model City Action Plan and to discuss environmental
issues with the Niseko Environmental Division.

During the Reporting Period, we are not aware of any
violations on relevant environmental regulations or subject to
any environmental-related fines or charges. The relevant laws
and regulations include, but are not limited to, Waste Disposal
Ordinance (Cap.354) and Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap.
311) of Hong Kong, as well as the Waste Management and
Public Cleansing Law of Japan.

Greenhouse Gas and Air Emissions

The Group is well aware of the effects caused by climate
change, such as global temperature changes and extreme
weather, that might affect our hotel hospitality business
located in Hokkaido, Japan, one of the most popular skiing
areas in Japan. We therefore regularly monitor our
greenhouse gases (“GHG") and air emissions data and
explore measures to enhance energy efficiency and
contribute towards the mitigation of climate change.

We are primarily involved in generating environmental impact
through the operation of One Niseko Resort Towers, our hot
spring resort and hotel facilities in Niseko, Hokkaido. Major
sources of GHG and air emissions include fuel consumed by
business vehicles, such as tour buses and private cars,
electricity purchased from the grid, as well as hot spring
operation.

BNZRIR
AEEREAIREERIMRERECER
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Bk AN FEMZAIRERRTH
2o HMZRE HEREARBEBERR
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CE o XF M EAREX Y MEREE
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& IR 35 2 (Niseko Environmental Division)
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The GHG emission has dropped drastically during the
Reporting Period while the emission intensity remained at a
similar level comparing to the previous year. This is mainly
due to the outbreak of the Coronavirus Disease 2019
("COVID-19"), which has severely affected the tourism
business in Japan as national lockdown, crowd dispersal
measures and travel restrictions imposed by the Japanese
government.

GHG Emissions

RIREHRE - REREHERERERD -
P EERAFRLHFREEKE - EF
ZERAR_ZT—NEMEEZRH([COVID-19])
183 BABNEREZBEEHE - ABHRAE
MERIRBER S - BREFE B AR ZIREFER

Total GHG emissions BERBHEREE

(kg CO.e) (FR-E{tREE) 1,114,760 1,396,828
GHG emission intensity BERBEHNEE

(kg CO.e/equivalent guest night) (FTR-&tixE=

ERATBREES) 85 88

Scope 1: Direct GHG emissions FE: EEAEREEN

(kg CO) (FR-S{tIREE 632,808 755,398
Scope 2: Indirect GHG emissions FE2 : EEAEREEN

(kg CO.€) (FTr-GtiEs 481,671 607,419
Scope 3: Other indirect GHG emissions ~ #3[E 3 : HfthfEE 8 =R EEHEK

(kg CO) (FR-E{tIREE 281 34,011
Notes: P -
. Scope 1 GHG emissions include fuel used by the Group’s business 1. HEVAEREHNBEREAESEREERAAZ

vehicle fleet in Hong Kong and Japan, as well as the hot spring.

2. Scope 2 GHG emissions include electricity purchased from grid. The
emission factors are referenced to the latest available emission data
released by the Hongkong Electric Company Limited and the Hokkaido
Electric Power Company Inc..

8 Scope 3 GHG emissions include business air travel, the relevant GHG
emissions are calculated by the International Civil Aviation Organisation
("ICAQ") Carbon Emissions Calculator.

4. Equivalent guest night was the total number of nights that guests
stayed in our hotel during the Reporting Period.

— =%

PTS B OR AR PR R 2 SR

2. HE2VEEREHNBENREMNBEEZEN - #
MABTISERBERERARIRIEBEE R
7 (Hokkaido Electric Power Company Inc.) % 2
BT IS HE R -

3 BEIAESRMNEEEEREEE - AW
R R E I RATAR (TICA0)) BRHE M B
B -

4. EREANIBBEEEXNREPEEZAERIE
JE 2 HERRES o
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Air Emissions

RIS REER

Nitrogen Oxides (NOy) ()
Sulphur Oxides (SOy) (g)
Particulate Matter (PM) (g) R Y (PM) ()

Notes:

1. The scope of the air emissions has been expanded to include fuel
consumption of the Group’s business vehicles in Hong Kong
headquarter and Japan hospitality business in this Reporting Period,
hence the emissions between 2021 and 2020 are hot comparable.

2. The scope of the fuel consumption was expanded to include the
Group's business vehicles in Hong Kong headquarter.

3. The calculation method and emission factors are referenced to the
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs issued by the HKEX.

Energy Consumption

The major energy sources used by the Group were electricity,
fuel for vehicles, and heavy oil and kerosene for the hot
springs. Various energy-saving measures have been adopted
to enhance the efficiency of our hotel operations, including
the following measures:

o Installed hot water pipes for room heating purpose

o Double glazed windows that reduce the absorption of
heat through the outer layers of the building while still
keeping high levels of natural light

o Chiller system that contains automatic temperature
management function to improve energy efficiency

o Gradually replacing light bulbs with light-emitting diode
(“LED") bulbs

Besides managing environmental impacts associated with
our hotel hospitality business, our environmental policy has
outlined green office measures such as maintaining the
appropriate temperature for office air conditioning and
switching off electronic items or changing to standby mode
after work.

ZEAEHR(NOy) (52)
ZREFR (SO (52)

130,416 152,755
222 362
12,731 13,053

B
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SEEFEEBRANBERGEBEEIE 2N
R At T - —FH T TEIHKE

DAL -

2. AL EREERREREAEER SR 2K
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3. FTEIERBER AR N XM 2 IREM R
zﬁxﬁ?a’fﬁﬁi%&iﬁ %|

RERHFE

AEEFAEERRAT N  REMBIAR
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BeEREN  MRABEEERE  EFp

EMThm

o RRHKERFEHMHE
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s BINUEN—
2

1588 ([LED ) B e ER A &

BRTEBHEBEMEERSEBEBAIREY
L BP2BRBREHINEECRAERE
B - PIIRFFRAZEZFARNBEERERET
HEBEME AR EAFAER -

72 DETAI NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BB HAERELIERE

Energy Consumption BETROHFE

Total energy consumption (MWh) BEERHREAE KR 3,227 3,974
Energy Consumption Intensity BeRHRERE Ok,
(Mwh/equivalent guest night) ERAEBEBES 0.25 0.24
Direct Energy EZEER
Diesel Oil (MWh) geim (JKFLRF) 2,086 2,649
Petrol (MWh) Tl (JKFLES) 78 65
Kerosene (MWh) BEm (JREFLRF) 263 350
Indirect Energy EEEBEIR
Purchased Energy (MWh) EEERRCKRE) 800 910
Notes: Bt 5 -
1. To align the unit of energy consumption with additional breakdown, 1. RLEREEEMEBINAAFTE - =T =
the figures in 2020 have been restated. TEHFEED -
2. Equivalent guest night represents the total number of nights that 2. BERAEMEE EENREHERBEZAETRME
guests stayed in our hotel during the Reporting Period. JE 2 HERE N o
3. Fuel consumption covers the usage of diesel and petrol used by the 3. REDEFE R E A EE S REATER 2 5M & T
Group’s business vehicles as well as fuel oil and kerosene used in S LA BB R SR RS 2 B E SR NE K hn B P
stationary boilers and heaters of our hotel hospitality business. B2 Rm R R ©

During the Reporting Period, we acquired business vehicles RI&EHIRE @ {2 B BALBE T84
under our Hong Kong headquarter; therefore, the scope of &« Eit » T EFESIEHELDFHE - L
the petrol consumption data has been adjusted to include BEFE-_ZE-—SFERBAARZEHEAE @ A
our business vehicles in Hong Kong and Japan in year 2021, & T r]EEFEHELER -

that the figure is not directly comparable with last year.
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Resource and Waste Management

We are committed to reducing waste generation through the
efficient utilization of resources. Our hotel operation
generates the majority of waste through disposable room
amenities such as soap and shampoo. In order to reduce the
amount of waste generated by these items, we have
procured eco-friendly room amenities. Additionally, we have
recycling bins in our hotel and all of our offices to collect
recyclable materials from our guests and employees, which
are then collected by government-certified recycling
companies as required by local laws and regulations.

Supporting the Niseko Eco-Model City Action Plan, the Group
has installed a sludge circulation filtration system, which
treats domestic wastewater generated by the hotel
operations by sedimentation and filtration, before discharging
into the municipal sewage network of Niseko Town. Sludge
generated by the treatment system is collected annually by
the authorised vendor for further treatment. Niseko Town has
postponed the sludge collection schedule due to the reduced
number of guests as a result of COVID-19. As a result, no
sludge was collected during the Reporting Period.

The Group did not generate any hazardous waste during the
Reporting Period. Details of major non-hazardous waste
generated in the Selected Business Segments are as follows:

Waste Disposal

BERRENERE
BABNBEBBERERERMDEY - K&
EAESE s RZBEYRRRNERHEA
an E?EHEE&JHE%E% #:/)ESZ/M#%DDE
HZ7BEYME  BMERBERREEAD - it
A - JAVEBIE RATE A ERE BIUAE -
NWEEZNEES 2 rlmUE - A% B
FIRRA] < B A TR & AR MOER 2 5E
WL FMHL -

RiRE Ztd A R A T 2 R 51 8 (Niseko
Eco-Model City Action Plan) » "N&EE D L%
ERBRFICRS - BRI MR EEIER
EEBEAZAESK  REBHEA TS
B MBUS/KER - ZREBERHKELEZISR
EFHEEEHRERKE  NEE-—FE
I - R COVID-9BHERASURD - — it
HEHERSRRERER - ALt - RiREH
[Nz E S

RBEEE AREBUTEELTMEEZRE
%o«ﬁﬁ%%“ﬁﬁizz EEREYF
NN

|EE
B

BYNRE

General waste disposed (kg) BEEE—REYM(TR) 1,030 1,254
Waste intensity BEYERE
(kg/equivalent guest night) (T EZEAETHREIES) 0.08 0.08

Notes: P&t

1. The waste disposal data covers our hotel hospitality business in Niseko 1. BEYEESBRERMR S 2B ERFER
and the Hong Kong headquarter. REBEREHEH

2. To reflect the actual performance of the Group’s operation, the general 2. RRBMAEESECERKR  —T_TFEF
waste disposed in year 2020 has been restated to include the waste Z—REVMEEY - UBEEBEHEEZEY
generation amount of the Hong Kong headquarter. g

a: Equivalent guest night represents the total number of nights that 3. ERATBREESHENREBEEZAERME

guests stayed in our hotel during the Reporting Period.

JE 2 FERRER o
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Water and Natural Resource Management

The Group is well aware of the preservation of water
resources. Despite our hotel hospitality business do not
consume a large amount of water comparing to other
industries, we pay close attention to our practice in water
consumption and strive to minimise our water usage while
maintaining the highest levels of service quality. Our main
source of water consumption mainly comes from the
operation of spa and natural hot spring facilities of our hotel.
We primarily draw water from the local municipal water
supply network and natural spring water. During the
Reporting Period, the Group did not face any issue in sourcing
water for our business operations.

As outlined in our ESG Strategy and Policy, we have
implemented a series of measures to conserve water, such
as installing water-saving showerheads and faucets in hotel
rooms and provided signage on water-saving information in
the hotel area to educate our guests.

The Group installed a spring water circulation system at its
Niseko Moiwa-Mountain Natural Hot Springs, which utilises
natural spring water to operate our spa centre. Fresh water
and chlorine were added to the spring water in order to
maintain its quality in accordance with Niseko Hygiene
Management Office Standards. This system reduces the need
to rely on freshwater supplied by the water utility network.

Wastewater generated from our operations is primarily
municipal wastewater. The effluent is promptly discharged
into the local sewage pipeline network for further treatment
by the local drainage services department. Therefore, the
Group's wastewater discharge has a minimal environmental
impact.

Water Consumption

KEBRKRBEAREBEREE

AEBARMRERERCERE - @ERE
1T - RPIBERFEBRKED
BREX  BRMATEEIRKEE  ABH
EHFREKTZRELEERE - SAKE
MERD o Hffz K EBRBBEKER
RABR RN EE - RIOIEZRE B
IKA M RARIKPEUK - RIEHH - K&
B /3 5% & = BoKIR T3 T I ST AR

AR °

AR A2 BRI ~ (8 MEA RS RBR T
Fritt - BB B — R HNERH AKER - §l
ARTEIEJE B A R R i K TE B S K BESA - W 7E
BERERRREKERZRG  UHEE
z

NE&E Bt & %A LK AR R (Niseko
Moiwa-Mountain Natural Hot Springs) Z & —
ERKBRZSE - FARARKEERM 2
IR L o WK REBIRIMERKF - BAR
BHKERE - HLHEEETEBRAEZE -
ZEFR A RRE RN KIS A S LR 2K IK o

BFIEEEL ZBRKEZRIMMITAK < )57K
RAREAB M ISKER - BE BEKIRSS
EBFTE—FRIE o FIt - AERE 2 BEKHHR
ERZBRIREB -

FEK

Total water consumption (m?)
Water intensity
(m3/equivalent guest night)

KEE

Note:

1. Equivalent guest night represents the total number of nights that
guests stayed in our hotel during the Reporting Period.

— =%

Fek#EE (L77K)

(TR BEEANEREEE

29,795
1.41 1.9

Wi

1. BERAERBEEENRSAEHETAERKE

JE 2 HERp o

TR —FFH « BERFEREEFRAT 75



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
B - itEREARE

KIRE1L

REBZRANMTIRE(LER 2 TFFE - il
PHREEBBCRBIERR - AJAES FER
R BARILSE(BARZEN 2B B
ZIZBERGER - BRMZRE g
MEATEARERIZHEBMISBELE
NEEZ([TCD)) 2% - EFAINU TR
1R AR R R B o

Climate Change

The Group is well aware of the adverse impact caused by
climate change, such as global temperature changes and
extreme weather, that might affect our hotel hospitality
business located in Hokkaido, Japan, one of the most popular
skiing areas in Japan. Our ESG Working Team has identified
the following climate-related risks based on the
recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-Related
Financial Disclosures (“TCFD").

Physical Risk
EREAER

Extreme Events

Impact to the Group Mitigation Measures
e Increased maintenance cost for e Provide safety training for employees

damage caused by extreme weather
events, such as typhoon, earthquake,
tsunami, wind disaster, flooding,
rainstorm, and avalanches

to enhance their safety awareness
and formulate contingency plan to
ensure a timely response during an
emergency

e Employee safety issues caused by

extreme weather
1B i B4 HEAKEZ2XE BRI
e EBmAREN  PlanieE - HE - o AREBRELZEEI URsEZ2
R B K BREREEHRS B LHITEZETE  BRERZ
B 2 IBRTIE S & A BN TED KR FE

o MIRRFEKE T L 2MHE

Transition Risk
g A | b

Policy Risk Impact to the Group Mitigation Measures
e Major local and international guidelines e Monitor the regulatory trends and
for sustainability reporting and rating ensure the Group's operation complies
have been strengthened with emphasis with relevant ESG requirements
on climate change
e |dentify areas of improvement on ESG
and implement relevant measures if
applicable
BUR 3L B HEAEE T8 BRI
o NERTEBABBEERMERTR L o BEREEBE  UHREASEZEN

TEXMEBERES LHEERE  AHEBERERE e RERRTE

o BARE HERERZHEHE
I 58 A s B i AR R 1R 1
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Transition Risk
BAER

Reputation Risk

BERR

Impact to the Group

e Fail to meet the social expectation on
the Group’s ESG performance may
negatively affect our reputation and

result in loss of potential customers

¥TZIK§IZE’§E

MARBERFAHE

MR

—7

BAREEIRE T o
MERRR ML AgHRM2
BEELTAETE - IE%@I/%E%)E

Mitigation Measures

Disclose ESG information through the
annual ESG report

Maintain a close relationship with
major stakeholders to ensure timely
response to their enquiry regarding
the Group's ESG performance

RIRETE

BBFERE HENRERREEE
RIE - HERERER

HIBHNELFEINBER  BRE
B EEESAMAREERS L' R
BRRRLZEN
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Our Employees

Employees are the Group’s most valuable asset and the pillar
of our sustainable development. Having a team of motivated
and well-trained staff enables us to build customer loyalty

and become a preferred choice for our customers.

our Workforce

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had a total of 30 (2020: 42)
employees in Selected Business Segments. The workforce
categorised by gender, age groups, employment type, &
employee category and geographical location is as follows:

Employee Breakdown during the Reporting Period

BMzEE

BERASERBEEEE  NTAUFER
22X e — EZﬁEE’EHS(&JI?Kﬁ%ZfE
BEEFREEPEERERMAKATFEL
BEZEZ

FEMzEITEE

RZEBE-—F A=+ AEERLET
%ﬂ%\* HEBENH(ZE_FF 42%)4@
o FRMERI - FEAER - EEEA - EES

ARV ED B B TEBKERIT
RBEHE 2 EEHA

By Gender By Geographic Location By Employment Type
T RIE D T IR BB 5 REREEED
Part-time
FRIg
8
Female Horgi%ong 27%
% 1
5 37%
43%
Male )
%,l\ét Japan Full time
17 =P el
57% 19 22
63% 73%
By Age By Employee Category
BRERE D ZESEHE D
Under 30
years old Executive/Senior level
over 50 308 A TR GIYE=T
BIB505, ‘ 2 2
9 75 Entry level \ZOA
30% 31-40 N
years old 14
31240 5% 47%
10
= Middle level
AR
41-50 10
415=5073% 33%

30%
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The Group’s staff turnover rate has been increased due to
the outbreak of COVID-19 in Japan, which led to the closure
of hotel operations during the Reporting Period. Our
employee turnover rate was 97%, which is categorised by
gender, age group and geographical location as follows:

A BAREEE COVID-19 - EBERE HARHEE
LB AEBEZBE I RAXRREMmMLEF -
Bz ETREREI % RIER - Fic4d
BRI MM IBA B D FENT ¢

Employee Turnover Percentage BEIRRXEFDL
By Gender By Geographical Location By Age Group
(%) (%) (%)
&M B2 (%) Rt BN EE S (%) RERARE D (%)
Under 30 31-40 41-50 Over 50
Male Female | Hong Kong Japan years old years old years old years old
B o = 30mUT  31ZF40m 41ZE50% 2 HBiB505
118 69 45 126 200 100 67 100
Note: gz
1. With reference to the calculation of social KPIs as stipulated in “Howto 1. L2 EBMITHE [ ARERE HEREAR

Prepare an ESG Report” published by the HKEX, the staff turnover rate
is calculated by number of employees leaving employment/total
number of employees by the end of the Reporting Period.

Welfare and Safeguards

The Group strives to create a fair and inclusive working
environment. Our Employee’s Code of Conduct ensures
compliance with relevant labour laws and regulations.
Additionally, the Staff Handbook contains information on
working conditions, compensation, dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, benefits, and welfare programs, as well as
training and development. Also, we have developed a Policy
on Equal Employment Opportunities to safeguard that all
candidates and employees are treated equally during
recruitment, internal transfers, and promotions regardless of
their gender, nationality, marital status, disability, or religious
beliefs. The Group regularly reviews new legal and regulatory
requirements in addition to adhering to the best employment
practices.

We have delegated the Human Resources and Administration
Department to monitor and eliminate all non-compliance
involving child labour and forced labour. During the
recruitment process, our Human Resources and
Administration Department will examine the age of the
candidate with his/her identification documents and ensure
the candidate is eligible to work. Also, our Staff Handbook
clearly stated the working terms and conditions for our staffs.
The Group did not experience any non-compliance events
involving child labour or forced labour or labour disputes
during the Reporting Period.

-%
—_—=

BE|PRECHERREBERAES L B
TRRFZNHRE RREEREE ABRIARES
AEEHE

BRI R RE

AREBE WS AIE— B D F R AR TER
75 J M2 BTIRTRIERESTHES
ERENER I BT FMES TIHEK
- BN - ARE - BEERET - M kEr
AEIANIEII R ERZER - R BB
HEFEREREEIER - UREAEIREA
LESERE ABHBRETBEPFE
FELF - M AmE MR - B HEIR
o BREFRHED - AEBER T ETRE
BEERIN  TERERNERNEERTE °

HFIERBANEIRLITHEBEER MOBRRFT
ESREIRBELTI 2 NERIBER - £
BiEEP  ZPIZANERRITHEHZE
fRIEAFER NE SO BAM - WHEREE
ABREBRIE - 1o - HFI2 BT FMA
R B T 2 TR IR RF - RIS H
B AEBWEZFLEFEMSREIHRRES
TREBEMMZTEREN -

TR o BRMEREEARAF 79



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B ERERRE

Training and Development

The Group believes that employee development is essential
to the success of our business. The company organised
various training programs to improve the skills of its
employees. Training topics include soft skills training, on-the-
job training, and language classes. The materials and
mechanisms of the training programmes are regularly revised
and updated based on the feedback from the staff and
management.

Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 in Japan, the Group has a
significant drop in training hours. The local government in
Japan has imposed restrictions on gatherings and suspend
training programmes provided by local government
departments, such as fire drills. The shortage of human
resources staffs also prevented the hotel from conducting
staff training. During the Reporting Period, a total of 73 hours
of training were provided, covering 27%? of our employees.
Each employee received about 2.43 hours of training on
average.

Total Training Hours in Selected Business Segments

By Gender
(Hours)
RUERIE D (D)

By Geographical Location
(Hours)
BB NEE D (D)

Female
Tt

Male
B

Hong Kong
e

Japan
Az

18 59 0 73

Average Training Hours in Selected Business
Segments

By Gender (Hours)
REBIE D (M)
Executive/
Male Female Senior Level
B z TB B
1.06 4.23
Notes:
1l Average training hours is calculated by total training hours/number of
employees as of 30 June 2021.
2 Employee training data include those staff who resigned during the

Reporting Period.

BEIREE
AEBEREEIHRYBRMAXEH ZRNL
Al RRBEREEEIFERSEER
fE o W ER B IRE R - ERIEI R
BB A o IBAIET I 2 M B R HIRIBER T
KREBE RS R ERERT MEH -

B B AR COVID-19 + A& @ 2 55 3IB5 8L
RigEd - BAREHBRFS S S NRS
WERE BT FIERRME 2 F3IETE - flan
HPEE - ANERE TRERINEBUEE &
FETTE T - RI|BEMAE - RAERHES
H73ENKZEI - RE27%EE - BH
BEEX TFHL 243 /N 2153 -

RRTEREB D B2 BB B

By Employee Category
(Hours)
RESERE D (NE)
Executive/
Senior Level
B/ &R

Middle Level
h R

Entry Level
DIE

0 7 66

REERB D B2 PRI EH

By Employee Category (Hours)

BESEHB D (NE)

Middle Level
Rk

Entry Level
MK

0.70 4.71
FYAE

1. FHRIRBREBEE—_T_—FRA=tHERE
I BR AR B ABGHE -

2 BEBIBEEENRENHEFELET -
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Percentage of Employees Trained in Selected Business
Segments by Category

By Gender (%)
& 14 Bl &l 55 (%)

Executive/
Senior Level

1B &R

Female
i

Male
B

50 50
Note:

1. With reference to the calculation of social KPIs as stipulated in “How to
Prepare an ESG Report” published by the HKEx and based on the
number of employees as of the end of the Reporting Period, the
calculation is adjusted to illustrate the ratio of employees to trained
employees by category.

Occupational Health and Safety

Creating a safe and healthy working environment is a top
priority for the Group. Occupational safety and health
regulations are strictly followed by our company by
establishing policies that are constantly reviewed to address
safety concerns. Employees are expected to exercise
reasonable care and attention in order to prevent injuries and
accidents from occurring, and to maintain a smoke-free
working environment. Safety guidelines and procedures are
developed to handle emergency situations such as fires,
earthquakes, and electricity shortages. The Group also offers
occupational safety training programs to mitigate potential
work-related safety risks. In the past three years (including
the Reporting Period), there were no record of serious work-
related injuries or deaths. In addition, the Group was not
subject to any material administrative penalties or fines for
any breach of laws or regulations relating to the provision of
a safe working environment or the protection of employees
against occupational hazards during the Reporting Period.

Number of
work-related injuries
during the

Reporting Period
RS #REZ
T5#E

—7

BERE D 2 EBREXK D MO EIIEIIE
BEE7t

By Employee Category (%)

BRESERE D (%)

Middle Level
ok

Entry Level
IR

13 87

1. K2EBZAHEMEOEEHERR LERER
BE | PREZH EBRARERAETEARE
NBERRZEEAR HEAECELRE
RUFARERNSDEREHEEZEIRERE 2L
1 e

BERREHEZTS
BliE—EL2RERZ TIERERAEE Y
B EER o ARAHIE RFERFBER AR
AL 2B KMERETREL 2 RER
EH WHIBEESRBAERERE E
skﬁx%&?igﬁ'lﬁﬁﬂﬁlﬁﬁ
% BAFIEREBAL - HENREEES
ERZEEIESI MR - $$@ﬁkh%¥
ZEEFIFE - LURRBE Y TIEREZ 2
Ef - RIBE=ZF (BEREHH) AEE
I[ﬁﬁFEEEJZEEZR§EI:ZZuEfi N - RS
M AEEYERERBBRELZETIIE
BRESREIARIBEGBREE 2 AEN
EEMIZEEREAITRESIREK °

Lost days due to
work-related injury

A58k
Z TEBE
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Managing business during the outbreak of COVID-19

The operations of our One Niseko Resort Towers in Hokkaido, Japan, has been affected significantly by
COVID-19. The travel bans and border restrictions imposed by the Japan Government have reduced the
number of visitors to our hotel premises by a large extent. We have taken proactive steps to reduce the risk
of disease transmission and protect our staff and guests by setting up the Emergency Action Plan against
COVID-19. This Plan outlines the communication channels with the local Health Department in Hokkaido as
well as procedures designed to prevent and manage guest and staff infection events. For example:

— Hotel rooms were arranged for guests with suspected diseases so that they could practice self-
isolation

— Provision of personal protective equipment to staff, such as masks, gloves and protective clothing
—  Closure of facilities such as bathhouses with a high risk of cross-infection
— Keep the restaurant’s operating hours and seating capacity limited in order to maintain social distance

— Frequent disinfection of high touchpoints of the premises, such as guest rooms, doorknob, switches,
elevators, receptions, etc.

COVID-19 /R HE v XK EE

T AR B A4E & 38 2 One Niseko Resort Towers 7 &3& S E|COVID-19BREF ZE - HABRMNE 2 ikIT2S
FEERH BB MVEESTZ i BASARR D - M RIIEREE - & ESTH COVID-19 2 B&1T
FatE o BUARPERREERRANREE T RER o T2l B2 Ea gt EmE S 2 8REE -
UREEEMEEREESERE TRAEMHZI2F 0 :

— EBRUBFRERLTHOERER  UEHRSIUAB RIS

— EBETRHEEAESRE HlOE - FENHER

— B YXREEERSZEME  flngE

— REBEERZEBRZEXRRENMEMEE - ARSHIER
— BRWESHMRERER  fInEE  FIET - HES - B BFRF -
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OUR COMMUNITY

Local communities play an important role in ensuring our
continued success and growth. Besides making donations to
charitable organizations, the Group also encourages our
employees to participate in volunteer activities. During the
Reporting period, the Group has supported and participated
in various community activities that have been focused on
fighting the COVID-19 pandemic and fostering community
support.

Fighting the COVID-19 Pandemic

Considering the COVID-19 outbreak, the Group has also
contributed towards the COVID-19 Solidarity Response Fund,
powered by the World Health Organization (“WHO")
Foundation, by making donations to Japan Centre for
International Exchange (“JCIE"). By contributing to this fund,
Japanese companies, organisations, and individuals can
provide support to the efforts of the WHO, the CEPI vaccine
initiative, UNICEF, the World Food Program (WFP), and other
international organisations in their fight against the pandemic.
COVID-19 Fund contributions will be used to track the spread
of the virus, equip frontline responders with lifesaving
personal protective equipment (PPE), and advance vaccine
research and development.

Community Support

Despite a majority of public charity events were put on hold
due to the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group has sponsored in
local charity activities by making donations of complimentary
room of our hotel to the “Niseko Halloween 2020” organised
by Niseko Resort Tourist Association.

— =%

EMzitE

Bt RAREREMFEKI RIEREES
BIEA - BT MERSABIBRIN - REETR
SEETI2NETLES - NIEHHE - K%
EXFkSHEEBHETE  ZZEHEE
B HICOVID-19% 1B R IR E At B T1E
HEE -

¥H COVID-19 & 15
ZEE|ICOVID-1918 % - AEBEFE B[R H A
B BR3P 0 (Japan Centre for International
Exchange) ([JCIE]) 383k - Attt R A AL
([t #&]) e & EE 2 COVID-19 B 4 /& £
ESRHBY - BBRAZESER ' HEARQ
7]~ AR EAR A IREE - RITRE
BB R B RE  HMABRRERESS -
AR EIB M E M BB AL TR 2
T{E - COVID-19E S BHEANBHRSE
% BRIGESABRERERE ZEBAD
ERE N EE R BT R -

TEHE
BEARZH N LEEZFHECOVID-19/E %
MEE - EAREEBBR & E B RE
4844 (Niseko Resort Tourist Association) £2 ¥t
2 12020 FF — 5 & 2 £ | (Niseko Halloween
2020 B ERE F BHEHEZEE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIAZBENIE

IBDO

EEE - +852 2218 8288
{85 : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF DETAI NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
DeTai New Energy Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 92 to
226, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2021, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 30 June 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t™ Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong
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ZALFEZEAEEKER  HAEDE
BREGERERER  UREEFBHRRE
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company’s annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment assessment for property, plant
and equipment on hotel hospitality business
Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements and
the accounting policies in notes 3.8 and 3.12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had property, plant and
equipment with the brought forward net carrying amount of
HK$389,361,000 (before the current year impairment 10ss)
arising in hotel hospitality business.

For the purpose of assessing impairment, the directors of the
Company assessed the recoverable amount of the non-
current assets based on higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value-in-use. The recoverable amount of the
non-current assets in the hospitality business cash generating
units (“Hotel CGU") was determined by the directors based
on fair value less costs of disposal.

The impairment assessment involves significant judgements
and assumptions by the directors of the Company underlying
the determination of the fair value less costs of disposal of
the non-current assets in the Hotel CGU.

The directors of the Company has engaged an independent
professional valuer to determine the fair value less costs of
disposal of the non-current assets in the Hotel CGU. The
determination of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on the recent sales of similar transactions in the market.
Directors of the Company concluded that, based on the
assessment result, impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment of HK$13,605,000 has been recognised for the
year.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIAZBENEE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

How the matter was addressed in our audit
Our procedures on the impairment assessment by the
directors of the Company for property, plant and equipment
on hotel hospitality business included:

(i) obtaining and reviewing the valuation report prepared
by the independent professional valuer engaged by the
Group;

(i) discussing with the independent professional valuer
and challenging the key estimates and assumptions
adopted in the valuations, including comparable market
transactions, and to assess the independence,
objectivity, qualifications and expertise of the
independent professional valuer:;

(i) assessing the valuation methodology adopted by the
independent professional valuer and comparing the key
estimates and assumptions adopted in the valuation;
and

(iv) checking input data to supporting evidences, such as
the market comparables used and assessing the
reasonableness of these comparables.

Impairment loss allowances assessment on
loans receivable

Refer to note 22 to the consolidated financial statements and
the accounting policies in note 3.19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group has gross loans receivable
amounting to HK$241,638,000 (before recognition of
impairment loss allowances), which is significant to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole. The Group has
applied HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and assessed
impairment loss allowances for loans receivable based on
expected credit loss (“ECL") model.

In determining the impairment loss allowances on loans
receivable, the management assessed historical default rates,
the values of the collaterals if any, timing of future cash flows
as well as those relevant forward-looking information such as
the expected future cash flows and forward-looking
macroeconomic factors which involve estimation and
significant judgement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIAZBENIE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

How the matter was addressed in our audit
Our procedures on the impairment loss allowances
assessment by the directors of the Company on loans
receivable included:

()  obtaining an understanding of the Group’s credit loss
policy and methodology for impairment assessment in
relation to the application of ECL model under HKFRS 9;

(i) inquiring management for the status of each of the
loans receivable past due as at year end date and
corroborating explanations from management with
supporting evidence, such as understanding of credit
status of debtors, checking of historical and subsequent
settlement records and other correspondence with the
debtors,

(i) evaluating the appropriateness and reasonableness of
methodology, parameters and assumptions used in the
assessment of ECL such as criteria for judging
significant increases in credit risk, definition of credit-
impaired financial asset, key data inputs and forward-
looking information; and

(v) checking the arithmetical accuracy of the
management’s calculation of impairment loss
allowances under ECL model.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors'in discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIAZBENEE

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIAZBENIE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIAZBENEE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lam Hung Yun, Andrew
Practising Certificate Number P04092
Hong Kong, 30 September 2021
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consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
ReEREERR

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &ZEZE-Z-_—F A=+THIEFE

2021 2020
—E--F —T-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
Continuing operations BESEER
Revenue Wi 6
Services income BRAG WA 18,756 31,479
Interest income FBUWA 4,943 12,901
Trading income BHWA 393 2,470
24,092 46,850
Cost of sales SHE AR (13,174) (19,805)
Gross profit ESY 10,918 27,045
Other income and gains EH A R 8 5,587 14,702
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERX (121) (143)
General and administrative expenses  — M BT X (44,137) (54,885)
Finance costs BEK AR 11 (2,204) (2,051)
Share of loss of associates DGHEE A RIBE 19 (5,619) (2,611)
Impairment loss on interests REE DRz R RERBE
in associates 19 (3,883) -
Reversal of impairment 10ss on B ZRENRIERESERR
trade receivables 21 374 -
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREEE 18 - (56,984)
Reversal of impairment loss/ RS TR ERERE,
(impairment loss) of loans receivable  (R{EEE) 22 8,824 (18,734)
Impairment loss on other receivables b fE YK 08 I 3% 4 Rl (E B8
and deposits (1,928) (4,458)
Impairment loss on property, plant M BEKRERESE
and equipment 15 (15,628) (74,159)
Net surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of ~ REWE SR (E4)
investment properties FRR 16 200 (1,261)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRB AR W 36 - 8,512
Loss before income tax RS Al E 9 (47,617) (165,027)
Income tax credit TR o 12 5,841 9,101
Loss after income tax from SRR EB  EHIRER
continuing operations (41,776) (155,926)
Discontinued operations ERIEREEK
Profit/(loss) for the year from ERIHEEEBR 2 FR
discontinued operations i,/ (B518) 7 4,879 (11,643)
Loss for the year FAEE (36,897) (167,569)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FeZEbRR

For the year ended 30 June 2021

Other comprehensive income
Items that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or 10ss

HE_F

HitpZ2EWA
& B D E B
ZHA

——FXA=THILEE

2021
—E-—&F

HK$'000
TERT

2020
—Z-FF
HK$'000
FET

Exchange differences arising on BEEINEBFEE
translation of foreign operations N =5 749 (1,535)
Release of exchange reserve upon HENB R REEL
disposal of subsidiaries HNBE f8 5 36 651 (3,910)
Other comprehensive income FREMZEBA
for the year 1,400 (5,445)
Total comprehensive income FRAZEHBALE
for the year (35,497) (173,014)
Loss for the year attributable to: T3 ATELEERERS :
Oowners of the Company ViN/NEIET 2SN (35,365) (163,520)
Non-controlling interests FEE R = (1,532) (4,049)
(36,897) (167,569)
Total comprehensive income THATEEFRZEBRA
for the year attributable to: g
Owners of the Company A/NIEZE DN (35,014) (169,401)
Non-controlling interests g T (483) (3,613)
(35,497) (173,014)
(Loss)/earnings per share AATREEAEEER
attributable to owners (E518) BF
of the Company: 14
From continuing and discontinued REFELERBRIE
operations KA
— Basic — H K HK(0.23) cent  HK(1.04) cents
— Diluted —#E HK(0.23) cent  HK(1.04) cents
=2 1] il
From continuing operations REFECEER
— Basic — &K HK(0.27) cent HK(0.99) cent
— Diluted — EE HK(0.27) cent HK(0.99) cent
=21 B
From discontinued operations REBRIEEEER
— Basic —EAK HK0.04 cent HK(0.05) cent
— Diluted — BB HK0.04 cent HK(0.05) cent
Bl A
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consolidated Statement of Financial Position
ReERERAE

Asat30June 2021 HR-ZE-_—FA=1H

2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME R NERE 15 377,212 409,886
Investment properties REME 16 19,600 19,400
Interests in associates YN 2 19 3,487 12,989
Financial assets at fair value through ¥ AFEFT ABZZ
profit or loss CREE 23 59,805 58,769
Loans receivable EWE 22 554 1,423
Total non-current assets FRBEEMLE 460,658 502,467
Current assets REEE
Inventories 78 20 50,252 46,668
Trade receivables, other receivables, & 5 EUERIE « Efth fELL
deposits and prepayments PR - Re RIBFIE 21 80,623 90,226
Loans receivable FEU SR 22 65,337 52,414
Financial assets at fair value BRAFEABRZZ
through profit or loss TREE 23 7,500 10,000
Deposits in a financial institution N RS 2 7K 24 318,384 -
Pledged bank balances EERRITEH 32 1,126 6,138
Bank balances and cash RITHESR MRS 2/ 16,574 354,041
Total current assets MEBEEEE 539,796 559,487
Current liabilities nEEE
Trade payables, other payables B 5 MIRE « MR
and accruals TIBERESER 25 7,909 14,248
Contract liabilities BHAaR 26 2,658 2,275
Borrowings BE 27 128,549 20,659
Lease liabilities HEAR 28 318 2,708
Amount due to non-controlling P FEIE PR A 2R TR IR
interests 29 - 43,661
Tax payable JERIRITE 2,845 2,618
Total current liabilities BB ERE 142,279 86,169
Net current assets MEEEFE 397,517 473,318
Total assets less current liabilities A& ERAEEE 858,175 975,785
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consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mERERAER

Asat30June 2021 M-_ZE——F,xA=1+H

2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings BE 27 - 120,012
Lease liabilities HEaE 28 - 1,418
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFHIBEE 30 55,266 62,609
Total non-current liabilities FERBEELERE 55,266 184,039
Net assets EEFE 802,909 791,746
EQUITY s
Share capital %N 31 784,776 784,776
Reserves i 18,133 53,147
Equity attributable to owners FARER AELER
of the Company 802,909 837,923
Non-controlling interests FEE R - (46,177)
Total equity R 802,909 791,746

These consolidated financial statements on pages 92 t0 226 F N2 E226 B 7 &AW KHREEN T - —
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of Eh A=+ HEZESSHERISETE I
directors on 30 September 2021 and are signed on its behalf H TIIIEEZREREE -

by:

Cheng Chi Kin Liu Shihao
BFER Bk
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GelEEEE

BE-T-—F/A=tALFE

For the year ended 30 June 2021

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Non-
Share Share  Contributed ~ Exchange Special  Share option Other  Accumulated controlling
capital  premium*  surplus*  reserve*  resene*  resenvet reserve* [osses* Total interests
y il RHEE ‘ B HElhiEs
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T Thr
(note (@) ) (note (¢)
(Piz @) ) (HzE(e))
At1July 2019 R=F-1§tA-R 84776 1217881 340932 (51,649) (43246) 72,487 403% (1307687 103953 (15983) 963,593
Lapse of share options BIREXNR - - - - - (17,483) - 17483 - - -
Recognition of equity-settled share-based BERELE RN
payment expense MFEX - - - - - 787 - - 787 - 787
Contribution from non-controling FERERLE
interests - - - - - - 380 - 380 - 380
Deemed acquisition of subsidiaries RiEKEHBAF - = - - - - (33379) = (33379) B3I _
Transaction with owners HEEAIRS 3 - = = - (16,69) (32999) 17483 32212 B30 1,167
Comprehensive income 2ERA
Loss for the year EREE = - - = = = - (183500 (183520 (4,009) (167,569)
Other comprehensive income E2ERA
Exchange differences arising on BEGNEBES
translation of foreign operations EXER = E - (1.971) - - - - (1.971) 43 (1,535)
Release of exchange resenve toprofit — HEMBARRER
orloss upon disposal of subsidiaries  SMERBZEEE - - - (3910) - - - - (3910 - (3910)
Total comprehensive income FRRERALE
for the year - - - (5,381) - - - (163,520) (169,401) (3613) (173,014)
At 30 June 2020 R=B-FEXA=1A 184,776 1,217,887 340932 (57,530) 43 .246) 955,791 13037 (1473724) 837923 (46,177) 791,746
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ReERERE

For the year ended 30 June 2021 #HZE—_ZE_—_—F XA=+HILFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
RATEEARERER

Non-
Share Share Contributed  Exchange Special Share option Other Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium*  surplus*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve* losses* Total  interests equity

Rx  RfEE*  BARS:  HERG:  BERE BRERE AtRE  ZEE & FERESR BEs
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Tn Tn Tn Tn Tn Tn Tn Tn Tn T#n
(note (a))  (note (b))  (note(c)  (note(d) (note(e)
(@) (EGO) (W) (W) (W)

At 1July 2020 W-B-BEtA-R 784,776 1,217,887 340,932 (57,530) (43,246) 55,791 13,037 (1,473,724) 837,923 (46,177) 791,746
Lapse of share options BRELN - - - - - (55,791) - 55,791 - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - - - - - - - - - 46,660 46,660
Release of other reserve upon disposal ~ HEMBAREE

of subsidiaries Efie = = = = = - (9,0 29,027 - - -
Transaction with owners HEEAZRS - - - - - (55,791) (29,027) 84,818 - 46,660 46,660
Comprehensive income 2EHA

Loss for the year EREE = = = - - - - (35365 (35,365) (1532 (36,897)

Other comprehensive income E2ERA
Exchange differences arising on i)

translation of foreign operations - - - (300) - - - - (300) 1,049 749
Release of exchange reserve to profit
0r loss upon disposal of subsidiaries - - - 651 - - - - 651 - 651
Total comprehensive income FRZANALE
for the year - - - 351 - = - (35365  (35014) (483)  (35,497)
At 30 June 2021 WZB--ExA=1tE 784776 1217887 340,932 (57,179) (43,246) - (15,990) (1,424,271) 802,909 - 802,909
& These reserve accounts comprise of the consolidated reserves of = ZERERORGRAVBMRARAZEREFE
HK$18,133,000 (2020: HK$53,147,000) in the consolidated statement of 18,133,000 &L (Z T =F 4 : 53,147,00047T) °

financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ReEREREx

For the year ended 30 June 2021

Notes:

98

E-F

In prior years, the Group undertook capital reorganisations resulting in
the elimination of: (i) the share premium account of the Company with
a balance of HK$260,881,000 as at 30 September 2005 against
accumulated losses of HK$88,157,000 as at that date with the
remaining balance of HK$172,724,000 credited to contributed surplus
of the Company; and (ii) share capital of the Company of
HK$168,208,000 which was credited to contributed surplus of the
Company.

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising
on the translation of financial statements of foreign operations.

Special reserve arose from the business combination carried out by
the Company in 2004, which was accounted for as a reverse
acquisition. Details of the transaction were set out in the circular of the
Company dated 14 June 2004.

Share option reserve represents the fair value of the share options
granted to the eligible parties at the grant date.

Other reserve represents the effects of transactions with non-
controlling interests.

——FXA=THIEFE

e

REERBEFEGETEZRNRAETA - EH()
AAFR_ZEETRFAA=TAZRMRERLS
#:260,881,0007% 7T ¥ #H 2 B 2 2 5t B 1B
88,157,000 T + #4%8 172,724,000 T AJ5F A &K
ARBARE : R () HHEFTARRARBARGRZ
AN A TR 168,208,000 7T °

SME RS BRI EBINEBE TS RRMELMA
PE S ZE -

BRFEEDBERARRE-_ZTNFETERS
PrMEL - ZREBAHCIE—TRERUE
RGHBENARR R/ -_TZWFANA+H
B2 K

AR B4 A 0 R H L 80 2 1 A PR U
B2 AFAE -

HitfRiE R R 5T & -
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consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HeBKRER

For the year ended 30 June 2021

HE—_Z—

—SEARA=THLEFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
Cash flows from operating REEBRHERE
activities

(Loss)/profit before income tax FrSRial (B18),/ aFl
Continuing operations FESEER (47,617) (165,027)
Discontinued operations BRI E T 4,879 (11,643)
Total Bt (42,738) (176,670)

Adjustments for: FTPBEEHRE
Depreciation of property, ME - BENRRETE
plant and equipment 15 8,246 8,341
Net (surplus)/deficit on revaluation REMESH (BR),/ B4

of investment properties FER 16 (200) 1,261
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR 2 e 36 (9,039) (8,512)
Loss on derecognition of associates 42 FFEREL A A 9 678 -
Reversal of impairment l0ss on B RN ERIER BB

trade receivables 9 (374) -
Impairment loss on other Hit A Rizé

receivables and deposits REEE 1,937 4,767
Impairment loss on property, M - BE K

plant and equipment WEEE 15 15,628 74,236
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ EWRERCREBBRRE),

impairment loss on BEEE

loans receivable 22 (8,824) 18,734
Impairment loss on goodwill HEREEE 18 - 56,984
Share-based payment expenses Rt 5 3R 3 9 = 787
Change in fair value of financial BAFEGFABRZ

assets at fair value through SREELATEEY

profit or l0ss 8 (1,036) (9,997)
Written off of property, plant and WEEME « WE MR B

equipment 9 236 32
Gain on lease modification HE B (22) (114)
Interest income from banks and RITR S BEER SUA

a financial institution (1,836) (1,348)
Finance costs BE KA 2,204 2,121
Share of loss of associates DI E N R EE 19 5,619 2,611
Impairment loss on interests REE N Bl 2 R AR

in associates 19 3,883 -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

meERKiER

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &ZEZE-Z-_—F A=+THIEFE

Operating loss before working capital &84 & 88T 2 KL E1#B

2021
—E_—F

HK$'000
TERT

2020
—E-TF
HK$'000
FET

changes (25,638) (26,717)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE 08, wHY (230) 4,450
Decrease in trade receivables, B 5 RIARTE « MW
other receivables, deposits and FIE - e REMAFHUA
prepayments m 6,862 1,330
(Increase)/decrease in FEUE R (38 m),/ B
loans receivable (3,229) 19,778
Increase/(decrease) in trade B ZREMIRE - Ef 8k
payables, other advances and REEFTEREM,/ Chd)
accruals 2,511 (3,219
cash used in operations REEBARE (19,724) (4,378)
Tax paid B TIE (10) (10)
Net cash used in operating RELRMARSFE
activities (19,734) (4,388)
Investing activities RETH
Net cash outflows from acquisition W& — B2 7
of a subsidiary RemtFeE 37 - (6,995)
Net cash outflows from acquisition ~ UWeBEEE & A RIIE & %58
of an associate 19 - (15,600)
Net cash inflows from disposal HEMBARE S RAFHE
of subsidiaries 36 5,389 85,803
Purchases of property, BEME  BEMRE
plant and equipment 15 (4,884) (2,420)
Compensation from profit guarantee 2 Wu FIRE 2 FifE
received 23 2,500 10,000
Interest income received BUERITR & BHEET S
from banks and a financial WA
institution 1,836 1,348
Decrease/(increase) in pledged EIFRITAE
bank balances WA,/ (4gm) 32 5,026 (3,278)
Net cash generated from investing R&ZEIFTERL T
activities 9,867 68,858
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consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HeBKRER

For the year ended 30 June 2021

HE—_Z—

—SEARA=THLEFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET
Financing activities MEEE
Repayment of borrowings BEEE 41 (8,738) (10,884)
Proceeds of borrowings EEMETRE 41 - 227
Repayments of principal portion EEHEAENEEHES
of the lease liabilities 41 (1,674) (2,444)
Repayment of interest portion EBEHEEAENTEES
of lease liabilities 41 (94) (230)
Advance from non-controlling JEIER R TR BB F R
interests, net 41 361 2,853
Interest paid BERFE 41 (2,110) (1,891)
Net cash used in financing MEZTEHMARS TR
activities (12,255) (12,369)
Net (decrease)/increase incash HE&REELZEER
and cash equivalents (R, e (22,122) 52,101
Effect of foreign exchange Exggy oL
rate changes 3,039 (506)
Cash and cash equivalents EPEERBELEMEER
at beginning of the year 354,041 302,446
cash and cash equivalents FREGRACEHEER
at end of the year 334,958 354,041
Analysis of the balances of cash BHERRLEEEBEE LRI
and cash equivalents
Deposits in a financial institution RERHEE 27X 24 318,384 -
Bank balances and cash RITEBER S 24 16,574 354,041
334,958 354,041
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ReMBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2021

102

GENERAL INFORMATION

DeTai New Energy Group Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the Company's registered
office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda and its principal place of business was
Room 905, 9/F., Wings Building, 110-116 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the business of (i) hotel hospitality
business; (i) provision of money lending services; (iii)
trading and distribution of liguor and wine; and (iv)
investments in funds.

On 5 February 2021, the Group entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to
dispose of its 72.75% equity interest of Perfect Essential
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (together the “EPS
Group”) at a consideration of HK$5,800,000. The
disposal was completed on 10 February 2021 and the
Group ceased to have any interest in the new energy
business. Details of the disposal are set out in note 36(a)
to the consolidated financial statements.

BE_T_—FRA=1THILFE

—REH

ERFEREEARAR(ARA])
rEREAMK L AEREBRAR] -
ERMDESBBAE RS AR A A ([
RET]) £ o AR A FEM 9 =R ik
/& Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda » & + &
EEMERBEBERF[AREF 110-116 5%
KEEERNEIZLISE o

ZN/NCIVE Rl 8= 2 @/ IRV NN
MEBRRZEBEBR : ()VBERFE
% (N RRHEE RS : (i) EE K& #H
BREM  RIVESRE -

R_E-_—F_ARB -  AEEH—
BBUE=FFINEBEBEHEH UEE
H 1 Perfect Essential Holdings Limited
REWBRRI(RBATEPSER ] 2
72.75% B # - X8 75,800,000 7 JT °
ZHEFER-_T-_—F-A+ARA=%
B MASRBRIEREETNBHE
EfEz - ZEEFEFBHNES
BA TSR M7 36(a)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG 2. BB EMERSEN(EE
F!m/(xll:\lgi\,!.) REPORTING STANDARDS MM EER])
S

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (@) RMMHFET LIETEBHKE

In the current year, the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) has applied for the first time the following
new standards, amendments and interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, which are relevant to and
effective for the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1
July 2020:

Amendmentsto HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions

Conceptual Framework for - Revised Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting Financial Reporting

The application of these new or amended HKFRSs
has no material impact on the Group's results and
financial position for the current or prior period.
The Group has not early applied any new or
amended HKFRSs that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.

-%

mEZER
RAREE KRB REWHBAF
(B ASKE ) HERERNATH
ERGHEASRMZ I E
Al il k2B BEFIE
Al - grI kR ERAEERE Y
BREEBEARNR -_ZE_ZTF+ A
— BB FERBAEMS

BRURASEARIR LT XHER
BRGSEAZ 1RRERGT BALEE
RAIF85 BT

BROEAENT FEME MEEEYE

REEAETRREBNH
BERAZEIR BT
BEMBREEAE 6K ET] ERLERRE
el L
B E 2 B TER HBRE e
AIBSER

ERZEMA] RER] BB M TS
HELRNHAHEICBERF
AEBEEMPBRORL EEKX
FE o AKEYRREFERARA
St EAR R B E MR 3
RIEFT BB WIS LR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ReMBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &ZEZE-Z-_—F A=+THIEFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG 2. BRINEBUMBREEN(ES
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS MEREEN]) 2
(“"HKFRSS") (continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been (b) BEMEMARERZHT &
issued but are not yet effective CHE IR ]
The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially REFWEIIZBERMN TS A ge
relevant to the Group’s consolidated financial AEEGEGHRERBEHAAED A
statements, have been issued, but are not yet MR RRERZ I IR B
effective and have not been early adopted by the BB SRS R
Group:
Amendments t0 HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current AREENE 1% ] BEENEARY
or Non-current? EIE ik
HK Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of Financial Statements EARBESR(CE-2F) HH% 2 25
— Classification by the Borrower of —fREAH
a Term Loan that Contains a BEREXE
Repayment on Demand Clause? RETLES
éc hZ/\#§5
Amendments to HKAS 1and  Disclosure of Accounting policies® FRGEA|S (1 BREAAE  edp%Y
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 RERAERREEIN LB
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates® FReshEn|Semey o
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax related to assets and BAGHENS 125 265 HE-RHEEL
liabilities arising from a single BERERER
transaction® LERLHES
Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds hefore Intended Use? BAGHENZ 105 26B5] WEREERAZ
FrGsE?
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of BRGIEAET R 2B BiEkan—
Fulfilling a Contract? BiTa82
A
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual FAMBREEZIE ] BRI
Framework’
Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions ERUBREENE6R BT ZF-FAR
beyond 30 Jung 20213 “TRKEZAE
TR
el
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BANKELENE %R RAZHERE
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its BRaHENERE 23] ARRERE
Associate or Joint Venture® LAHEREA
BES
Amendmentsto HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform BRGIENENT BENE FEEENE
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 — Phase 2! RERAZIS  BAMBRE —F-RE
and HKFRS 16 RRIETH  BEMNBREE
E95 RABHBREER
F16%5 2677
Amendments to HKFRS Annual Improvements to BRNBREEN 53] Epapa e
Standards HKFRSS 2018-20202 “F-)\§2
ZEIFEY
FEhe
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG 2. RINEBMBREEN(ES
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS MEREEN]) 2
(“"HKFRSS") (continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been (b) CEMEERERZH K
issued but are not yet effective BETE B ERERER (&)
(Cont/nued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 1 R-ZE-—F— A —Hs2%ME
January 2021. ZFEHMER -

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 R-EBE_—_F— A —BHsk2ER®A
January 2022. 2 FEHRMAER -

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 3 R-ZE-_—FWA— Ak z&FHH
2021. Z FEERAERK -

4 Effective for business combinations for which the date of 4 HKEEHAR - T -_—F—H—
acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first annual Hakz &Rtz &85 E @M%
period beginning on or after 1 January 2022. K2 ENEBEHER -

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 5 RZEZ=F—A—HxzEHRAK
January 2023. ZFEHRER -

@ The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the 6 ZEEITIRAERNEFEEEH
sale or contribution of assets occurring in annual periods R FEBREECEE
beginning on or after a date to be determined. HEHLE -

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of EBGTERNE 1R 2B — #%

Liabilities as Current or Non-current and HK BESEARINERIREE

Interpretation 5 (2020), Presentation of REESH(ZZ-ZF) — 0K

Financial Statements — Classification by the BRZEY —EEAEBERE

Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a REERRZEHERZSE

Repayment on Demand Clause

The amendments clarify that the classification of N RIIEIE S AGESEA RS

liabilities as current or non-current is based on jz;lt,,&b)ﬁ%ﬁ%&iﬁﬂﬂiﬁﬁz

rights that are in existence at the end of the R TR BEIAYEEERRE
reporting period, specify that classification is BRTEEEFTEERAEY

unaffected by expectations about whether an %EHHE"E” I R R S B R

entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of a BPRE o AIFERER - Z25E(E

liability and explain that rights are in existence if HPIEIPN ( i*"J ZEE  UAEB

covenants are complied with at the end of the iEEE M F HEEIR S - R A

reporting period. The amendments also introduce TEH - HMEESNRE -

a definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that

settlement refers to the transfer to the

counterparty of cash, equity instruments, other

assets or services.

HK Interpretation 5 (2020) was revised as a BEEREESR(ZZT_ZF)A

consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 RZZFEZZF/\ABEB2EEEG

issued in August 2020. The revision to HK FHEERIE 158 2 AEET M T LAEET ©

Interpretation 5 (2020) updates the wordings in the ERREBESR(ZE_FEF)2

interpretation to align with the Amendments to ﬂ/:T;i;;pﬁJi\%#zszE inﬁiiﬁi%f

HKAS 1 with no change in conclusion and do not ST ERFE 1R AEFTFE

change the existing requirements. EwmTESS BYEXNERE

I ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ReMBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &ZEZE-Z-_—F A=+THIEFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG

106

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

The amendments to Disclosure of Accounting
Policies were issued following feedback that more
guidance was needed to help companies to
decide what accounting policy information should
be disclosed. The amendments to HKAS 1 require
companies to disclose their material accounting
policy information rather than their significant
accounting policies. The amendments to HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 provide guidance on how to
apply the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosures.

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of
Accounting Estimates

The amendments to HKAS 8 clarify how
companies should distinguish changes in
accounting policies from changes in accounting
estimates. That distinction is important because
changes in accounting estimates are applied
prospectively only to future transactions and other
future events, but changes in accounting policies
are generally also applied retrospectively to past
transactions and other past events.

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Deferred Tax
related to Assets and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction

In specified circumstances, companies are exempt
from recognising deferred tax when they
recognise assets or liabilities for the first time.
Previously, there had been some uncertainty
about whether the exemption applied to
transactions such as leases and decommissioning
obligations — transactions for which companies
recognise both an asset and a liability.

The amendments clarify that the exemption does
not apply and that companies are required to
recognise deferred tax on such transactions. The
aim of the amendments is to reduce diversity in
the reporting of deferred tax on leases and
decommissioning obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG 2. BMBEEMERSEN(EE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS MR EERN]) &)

("HKFRSS") (continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been (b) BEMEMRERZHET K

issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16, Proceeds before
Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while
bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Instead, the
proceeds from selling such items, and the cost of
producing those items, is recognised in profit or
loss.

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous
Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’
a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly
to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a
contract can either be incremental costs of
fulfilling that contract (e.g. direct labour and
materials) or an allocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfilling contracts (e.g. the
allocation of the depreciation charge for an item
of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling
the contract).

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers
to the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 instead of the version issued in
2010. The amendments add to HKFRS 3 a
requirement that, for obligations within the scope
of HKAS 37, an acquirer applies HKAS 37 to
determine whether at the acquisition date a
present obligation exists as a result of past events.
For a levy that would be within the scope of
HK(IFRIC)-Interpretation 21 Levies, the acquirer
applies HK(IFRIC)-Interpretation 21 to determine
whether the obligating event that gives rise to a
liability to pay the levy has occurred by the
acquisition date. The amendments also add an
explicit statement that an acquirer does not
recognise contingent assets acquired in a business
combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MEERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &ZEZE-Z-_—F A=+THIEFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“"HKFRSS") (continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-
Related Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

The 2021 Amendment to HKFRS 16 extends the
availability of the practical expedient in paragraph
46A of HKFRS 16 so that it applies to rent
concessions for which any reduction in lease
payments affects only payments originally due on
or before 30 June 2022, provided that the other
conditions for applying the practical expedient are
met.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28,
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify with situations where
there is a sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture.
When the transaction with an associate or joint
venture that is accounted for using the equity
method, any gains or losses resulting from the
loss of control of a subsidiary that does not
contain a business are recognised in the profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’
interests in that associate or joint venture.
Similarly, any gains or losses resulting from the
remeasurement of retained interest in any former
subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint
venture) to fair value are recognised in the profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors' interests in the new associate or joint
venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG 2. BB EMERSEN(EE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS BMEHEER]) &)
(“"HKFRSS") (continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been (b) BEMEMARERZHT &

issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect
financial reporting when a company replaces the
old interest rate benchmark with an alternative
benchmark rate as a result of the interest rate
benchmark reform (the “Reform”). The
amendments complement those issued in
November 2019 and relate to (a) changes to
contractual cash flows in which an entity will not
have to derecognise or adjust the carrying amount
of financial instruments for changes required by
the Reform, but will instead update the effective
interest rate to reflect the change to the
alternative benchmark rate; (b) hedge accounting
in which an entity will not have to discontinue its
hedge accounting solely because it makes
changes required by the Reform, if the hedge
meets other hedge accounting criteria; and (c)
disclosures in which an entity will be required to
disclose information about new risks arising from
the Reform and how it manages the transition to
alternative benchmark rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ReMBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &ZEZE-Z-_—F A=+THIEFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG 2. BMEEBMEBERTEN(ES
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS MEREEN] 2
(“"HKFRSS") (continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been (b) BEMEMARERZHT &

110

issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS Standards — Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

The annual improvements amends a number of
standards, including:

o HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, which permit
a subsidiary that applies paragraph D16(a) of
HKFRS 1 to measure cumulative translation
differences using the amounts reported by
its parent, based on the parent’s date of
transition to HKFRSS.

o HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which clarify
the fees included in the “10 per cent” test in
paragraph B3.3.6 of HKFRS 9 in assessing
whether to derecognise a financial liability,
explaining that only fees paid or received
between the entity and the lender, including
fees paid or received by either the entity or
the lender on other’s behalf are included.

o HKFRS 16, Leases, which amend lllustrative
Example 13 to remove the illustration of
reimbursement of leasehold improvements
by the lessor in order to resolve any potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease
incentives that might arise because of how
lease incentives are illustrated in that
example.

o HKAS 41, Agriculture, which remove the
requirement to exclude taxation cash flows
when measuring the fair value of a biological
asset using a present value technique.

The Group is in the process of making an

assessment of the potential impact of these new
pronouncements upon application.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021

HE—_Z—

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

3.2

3.3

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the "HKFRSs”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules™).

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis, except
for certain financial instruments and investment
properties, which are measured at fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“"HK$"), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand (“HK$'000")
except when otherwise indicated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ReMBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &ZEZE-Z-_—F A=+THIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND

112

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.4 Business combination and basis of

consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the
dates of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal,
as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are
made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies into line with those
used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is
accounted for using the acquisition method. The
cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of
assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
are principally measured at acquisition-date fair
value. The Group's previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date
fair value and the resulting gains or losses are
recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect,
on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure
the non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in
issuing equity instruments in which case the costs
are deducted from equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

HREBERFEEHBE @)

3.4 Business combination and basis of 3.4 ¥BEHREGEEREE(E)

consolidation (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent
that they arise from new information obtained
within the measurement period (a maximum of 12
months from the acquisition date) about the fair
value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified
as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit or
loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the Group's interest and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests is adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (i) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of
non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus the non-
controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes
in equity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interest having a
deficit balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ReMBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2021

HE—_Z—

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

114

3.5

3.6

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the
Company is able to exercise control. The Company
controls an investee if all three of the following
elements are present: power over the investee,
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
investee, and the ability to use its power to affect
those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that
there may be a change in any of these elements
of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
interests in subsidiaries are included in the
Company'’s statement of financial position at cost
less any impairment loss. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividends received and receivable.
Accounting policies on impairment of interests in
subsidiaries are described in note 3.12 below.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a
subsidiary nor a joint arrangement. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but not control or joint control over those
policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity
method whereby they are initially recognised at
cost and thereafter, their carrying amount are
adjusted for the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition change in the associates’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group’s
interest in the associate are not recognised unless
there is an obligation to make good those losses.

—FRNA=THLEFE

REBERFEEMEE @)

3.5

3.6

DETAI NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2021

B /B8 2 F]

MR REA DB R HITEE
HRRZKEHR - WAGBNAT 2
M=TATE  AREIANHKESH
SKERZEGIE - HREHURER
B REREHRAZEEFL
[\ SRAER] - B EITER D
EEMABERZEN - HBESE
B RIERBNMEA R E T
= RAE BEEHTHEH
I o

RARBFBRREKA - KNI B
N A 2w Ty AR AR AR (B
BERAARRBDHBIRRNEKRA -
AR ERE U N FE AR B B2 1S
MEBAR .z EEARKR - RHTBA
B ERE B BER T XM
312 -

N E]
BERRRAKREHEREAY

48B

2 R R ] PN
MIERR LB - EXFENEER
B2EREHR W REER
FORK - BH 5% F BRI E 2
SRS -

[
SF

it = N Bl A s A ARR - IR
AR HEREERAEE
FEMhEE 2 AR B EFENKER
ZEEELAE  EBALEE
KB DR 2 B 18K T i
R BEAEEAEEREZE
ERAI SRR ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

HREBERFEEHBE @)

3.6 Associates (Continued) 3.6 BBE QT (&)

Profits and losses arising on transactions between
the Group and its associates are recognised only
to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in
the associate. The investor’'s share in the
associate’s profits and losses resulting from these
transactions is eliminated against the carrying
value of the associate. Where unrealised losses
provide evidence of impairment of the asset
transferred they are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair
value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired
is capitalised and included in the carrying amount
of the associate. Where there is objective evidence
that the investment in an associate has been
impaired, the carrying amount of the investment is
tested for impairment in the same way as other
non-financial assets. Accounting policies on
impairment of interests in associates are
described in note 3.12 below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ReMBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &HZE—-Z

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.7 Revenue recognition

)

Revenue from contract with customers
Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised when control of goods or
services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and
the laws that apply to the contract, control of
the goods or service may be transferred over
time or at a point in time. Control of the
goods or service is transferred over time if
the Group's performance:

o provides all of the benefits received
and consumed simultaneously by the
customer;

3 creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to
date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021

HE_F

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.7 Revenue recognition (Continued)

)

Revenue from contract with customers
(Continued)

If control of the goods or services transfers
over time, revenue is recognised over the
period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of
that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the
goods or service.

When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the customer a
significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the
present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. Where the
contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit
to the Group, revenue recognised under that
contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For contracts
where the period between the payment and
the transfer of the promised goods or
Services is one year or less, the transaction
price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

A contract asset represents the Group's right
to consideration in exchange for services
that the Group has transferred to a customer
that is not yet unconditional. In contrast, a
receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ReMBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

118

3.7 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contract with customers
(Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer services to a customer
for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer.

)

@

®)

Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is
recognised at a point in time as when
the control of the goods has been
transferred to the customers and there
is no unfulfilling performance obligation
after the acceptance of the goods.

Services income

Hotel revenue from room rental is
recognised overtime as the customers
simultaneously receives and consume
the benefits of the Group’s services.
Hotel revenue form food and beverage
sales and other ancillary services are
recognised at a point in time as when
the relevant services provided to the
customers and there is no unfulfilling
performance obligation after the
services rendering.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

HREBERFEEHBE @)

3.7 Revenue recognition (Continued) 3.7 WA (&)

(ii) Revenue from other sources
(@ Interestincome

Interest income from a financial asset
is accrued on a time-apportioned basis
by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset’s
net carrying amount.

(b)  Divided income
Dividend income is recognised when
the right to receive the dividend is
established.

3.8 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of property, plant and
equipment includes its purchase price and the
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Freehold land is stated at cost and not
depreciated.

Buildings are depreciated over the shorter of the
term of the lease or fifty years using the straight-
line method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ReMBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &ZEZE-Z-_—F A=+THIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND

120

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.8 Property, plant and equipment

(Continued)

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the
shorter of the remaining term of the lease or at 5%
per annum using the straight-line method.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of
other property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method, at the following rates per annum:

Over the shorter of
lease terms or at 30%

Right-of-use assets

Freehold land Not depreciated
Buildings 2%
Leasehold improvements Depreciated over the

shorter of the

remaining terms of

lease or at 5%

Equipment, furniture and 16.60%—-33.33%
fixtures

Plant and machinery

Motor vehicles

20.00%-33.33%
12.50%—-33.33%

The assets’ estimated useful lives, estimated
residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or |0ss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is included in the
profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND EREERFTESHBE &)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.9 Investment properties 3.9 REWMHE
Investment properties are land and/or buildings KEYEEBIEHLAERZ ABE
which are owned or held under a leasehold HEWAR HENEEMES
interest to earn rental income and/or for capital SIFEEH T SEE o

appreciation.

When the Company holds a property interest to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an
investment property.

On initial recognition, investment property is
measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is stated at fair
value. Fair value is determined by external
professional valuers, with sufficient experience
with respect to both the location and the nature of
the investment property.

The carrying amounts recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position reflect
the prevailing market conditions at the end of
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the
fair value or the sale of an investment property are
included in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ReMBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &ZEZE-Z-_—F A=+THIEFE

3.

122

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND RREZERTETHEE &)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.10 Intangible assets (other than goodwill) 3.10 R EE (BERRM)

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at
the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at
cost less any impairment losses and intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of
each annual reporting period, with the effect of
any change in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis. Amortisation is charged on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives

as follows.

Production formula 10 years
Non-competition agreements 7 years
Sales backlog agreements 5 years

The amortisation expense is recognised in profit
or loss and included in general and administrative
EXPENSES.

Intangible assets are tested for impairment as
described in note 3.12.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND REEBERFTESHER &)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.11 Goodwill 31 BE

Goodwill represents the excess of the
consideration transferred of a business
combination, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and the fair value of the
Group'’s previously held equity interest over the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
recognised identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities measure as at acquisition
date. The consideration transferred of the
business combination is measured at the
aggregate of the fair values, at the date of
exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity instruments issued by the
Group.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units and is tested annually for
impairment (note 3.12).

Any excess of the Group's interest in the net fair
value of the recognised identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of
a business combination is recognised immediately
in profit or l0ss.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the
attributable amount of goodwill recognised is
included in the determination of the amount of
gain or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ReMBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &ZEZE-Z-_—F A=+THIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND

124

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.12 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiaries,
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets,
interests in subsidiaries and associates are subject
to impairment testing.

Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
useful life or those not yet available for use are
tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that
they are impaired. All other assets are tested for
impairment whenever there are indications that
the asset’s carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessment of time
value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a
result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-
generating unit level. Goodwill in particular is
allocated to those cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from synergies of the related
business combination and represent the lowest
level within the Group at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purpose.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

HREBERFEEHBE @)

3.12 Impairment of non-financial assets 312 e mEERE(E)

(Continued)

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating
units, to which goodwill has been allocated, are
credited initially to the carrying amount of
goodwill. Any remaining impairment 10ss is
charged pro rata to the other assets in the cash
generating unit, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal, or value in use, if
determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods. In respect of other non-
financial assets, an impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount and only to the extent that
the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if
no impairment loss had been recognised.

Impairment losses recognised in interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a
subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss,
or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had
the impairment been assessed only at the end of
the financial year to which the interim period
relates.

3.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost, including an appropriate
portion of fixed and variable overhead expenses,
is calculated using the weighted average cost
method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less any applicable selling expense and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ReMBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &ZEZE-Z-_—F A=+THIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND

126

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.14 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Income earned on temporary investments of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
those assets is deducted from borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

3.15 Government subsidy

Government subsidy is not recognised until there
is reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them and
that the subsidy will be received.

3.16 Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise of current tax
and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from
ordinary activities adjusted for items that are non-
assessable or disallowable for income tax
purposes and is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

HREBERFEEHBE @)

3.16 Income taxes (Continued) 3.16 FTB% (&)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the corresponding amounts used
for tax purposes. Except for goodwill and
recognised assets and liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred
tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the
expected manner in which the carrying amount of
the asset or liability is realised or settled and that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss
except when they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income in which case the
taxes are also recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ReMBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &ZEZE-Z-_—F A=+THIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND

128

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.17 Leasing

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases
or finance leases) are required to be capitalised in
the consolidated statement of financial position as
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but
accounting policy choices exist for an entity to
choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-
term leases and/or (ii) leases for which the
underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for
which at the commencement date have a lease
term less than 12 months. The lease payments
associated with those leases have been expensed
on straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets should be recognised at
cost and would comprise: (i) the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liabilities (see
below for the accounting policy to account for
lease liabilities); (i) any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; (iii) any initial direct costs
incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate of costs
to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and
removing the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease,
unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories. The Group measures the right-of-use
assets applying a cost model. Under the cost
model, the Group measures the right-of-use at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

DETAI NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2021

REBERFEEMEE @)

3.17 HE

ERE(TmAKREHERR
EME)ANGAMBHRARARE
AMeREREEERMERE
HEBESFHRET A (EH &
B AR ROBREBEEE
MER/H()BEEERKEE
ZHEETERNL - AREEE
BAsNFR B BRSO R 12(E
AZEKEBEEEREE®ERER
REENHERAB  BRFHE
MR EENRERERARNZE
AR o

FEREEE
FREEEREXNAERLEE
B PEEEatE e
(RTXEBHEEBAR g
BER) ¢ (iR e B #isk 2 AifEH
ZEMBEENFRERBEWEE
128 (i) EBAEE 2TV
BEERA  R(v)FEASHBE
EFRk EBR = E G R IE S
E 2 RO A EE A R K
K BRIFZEXNATIREERE
mEERIBRIN o AEBRAKAR
RAFTEFEAEEE - BREKAR
B AEBIRKANREERR
FTE REMBESEFEFER
HEE UREEaE2EME
FErEERRAE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

HREBERFEEHBE @)

3.17 Leasing (Continued) 317 HE#E)

Lease liabilities

The lease liabilities are recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the date of commencement of the lease. The
lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group uses the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-of-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not
paid at the commencement date of the lease are
considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable: (ii)
variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at commencement date; (iii) amounts expected
to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase
option if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise that option and (v) payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects
the lessee exercising an option to terminate the
lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the
Group measures the lease liabilities by: (i)
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liabilities; (i) reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made; and
(i) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications, e.g., a
change in future lease payments arising from
change in an index or rate, a change in the lease
term, a change in the in substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase
the underlying asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ReMBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &ZEZE-Z-_—F A=+THIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND

130

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.17 Leasing (Continued)

Accounting as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment property
to a tenant. Rental income from operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised as an
expense on the straight-line basis over the lease
term.

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified as
a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of
an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not the
case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

3.18 Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it/they operate(s)
(the “functional currency”) are recorded at the
rates ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign
currency monetary assets and liabilities are
translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

HREBERFEEHBE @)

3.18 Foreign currencies (Continued) 3.18 S (8)

Exchange differences arising from the settlement
of monetary items, and on the translation of
monetary items, are recognised as profit or loss in
the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included
in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case, the exchange differences
are also recognised in other comprehensive
income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of
foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong
Kong dollars) at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the
rates approximating to those ruling when the
transactions took place are used. All assets and
liabilities of foreign operations are translated at
the rate ruling at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign exchange
reserve (attributed to minority interests as
appropriate). Exchange differences recognised in
profit or loss of group entities’ separate financial
statements on the translation of long-term
monetary items forming part of the Group’s net
investment in the foreign operation concerned are
reclassified to other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign exchange
reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ReMBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &ZEZE-Z-_—F A=+THIEFE

3.

132

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND RREERTIEGRBER 2
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.18 Foreign currencies (Continued) 3.18 IhEE (&)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a
foreign operation on or after 1 January 2005 are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign
operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in the foreign
exchange reserve.
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3.19 Financial instruments 319 &MIA

(a) Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade
receivable without a significant financing
component) is initially measured at fair value
plus, for an item not at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at
the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the trade
date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives
are considered in their entirely when
determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.19 Financial instruments (Continued)

(@

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group's
business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
There are two measurement categories into
which the Group classifies its debt
instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised
cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest rate method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or
loss. Any gain on derecognition is recognised
in profit or loss.

FVPL: Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss include financial assets held for
trading, financial assets designated upon
initial recognition at fair value through profit
or loss, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely
payments of principal and interest are
classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised
cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, as described above,
debt instruments may be designated at fair
value through profit or loss on initial
recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting
mismatch.
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BHE_ZE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

134

3.19 Financial instruments (Continued)

(b)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit loss (“ECL") on trade
receivables, contract assets, financial assets
measured at amortised cost and debt
investments measured at FVOCI. The ECL are
measured on either of the following bases:
(1) 12 months ECL: these are the ECLS that
result from possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting date: and (2)
lifetime ECL: these are ECL that result from
all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The maximum
period considered when estimating ECL is
the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECL is probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the
difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive.
The shortfall is then discounted at an
approximation to the assets’ original
effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure 0SS
allowances for trade receivables using
HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has
calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLS. The
Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021

HE_F

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.19 Financial instruments (Continued)

(b)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

For other debt financial assets at amortised
cost, the ECL are based on the 12-months
ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on
the lifetime ECL.

For loans receivable, ECL is determined by
reference to the estimation of the exposure
at default (“EAD"), probability of default
("PD") as well as a loss given default (“LGD").
The 12-months and lifetime PDs represent
the probability of default occurring over the
next 12 months and the remaining maturity
of the instrument respectively. The EAD
represents the expected balance at default,
taking into account the repayment of
principal and interest from the reporting date
to the default event together with any
expected drawdowns of committed facilities.
The LGD represents expected losses on the
EAD given the event of default, taking into
account, among other attributes, the
mitigating effect of collateral value at the
time it is expected to be realised and the
time value of money.

When determining whether the credit risk of
a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating
ECL, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group'’s
historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking
information.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

136

3.19 Financial instruments (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it
is more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (2) the financial asset is more than
90 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less 10ss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non
credit-impaired financial assets interest
income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities at
amortised costs are initially measured at fair
value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
including trade payables, borrowings,
amount due to non-controlling interests,
lease liabilities, other payables and accruals
issued by the Group are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method. The related
interest expense is recognised in profit or
loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the amortisation process.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021

HE—_Z—

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.19 Financial instruments (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs.

Derecoghition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been
transferred and the transfer meets the
criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when
the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

— = —

=

—SEARA=THLEFE

HREBERFEEHBE @)

319 TR T R (#)
(d) BEEF=RZ

ERNEERFTESREE
&R A ERERARNE
%8 B A 2 B A S A SR
BRXNITE - BREMEL
TREEXNBBENETFH
SR EE R A (Em) %
FERGIR (A ST R R 2 WA
REFY = o

(e) BWAIER
ARRFBTHRAT AR
B FTS R (N E &%
TTRCA) ABR o

() IR
EEHSREECANRAS
MEZBXNENER - NE
CRMEELCEEAEERT
BEBY G MmEERE R

FTE R AR LERERRZE RN - B
SERIBERAZATHE
E o

A A ARE 2B TR
B BUHSKEIS - Al @A
ERARAS L FERR

—FER o BRHERKEEERAT 137



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ReMBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2021

HE—_Z—

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

138

3.20 Provisions and contingent liabilities

3.21

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, which will probably result in an
outflow of economic benefits that can be
reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, the existence of which will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees of the
Group and others providing similar services
The fair value of share options has been
recognised in the profit or loss as share-based
payments.

The fair value of services received is determined
by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the grant date is expensed in full when
the equity instruments granted vest immediately
unless the compensation qualifies for recognition
as an asset with a corresponding increase in share
option reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to accumulated
losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M EHRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.22 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and deposits held at call with banks, and other
short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.23 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that are
expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employees render the related
service. Short term employee benefits are
recognised in the year when the employees
render the related service.

Defined contribution pension obligations
The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer
contributions vest with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.23 Employee benefits (Continued)

Defined contribution pension obligations
(Continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in the PRC are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute certain percentage of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
Scheme is responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to the retired employees and
the Group has no further obligations for the actual
pension payments or other post-retirement
benefits beyond the employer contributions.
Contributions under the Scheme are charged to
profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the PRC.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Sweden and Japan are required to
participate in contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans. Contributions are recognised as
expenses in profit or 1oss when the services are
rendered by the employees.

3.24 Related parties

(@ A person or a close member of that person'’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(i) is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the
Ccompany'’s parent.
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HE_F

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.24 Related parties (continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(if)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.24 Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity and include:

()  that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

(i)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

3.25 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share
capital is determined using the nominal value of
shares that have been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium (net
of any related income tax benefit) to the extent
they are incremental costs directly attributable to
the equity transaction.

3.26 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported to
the executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group’s business
components and for their review of the
performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major businesses.

The Group has identified the following reportable
segments: (i) hotel hospitality business; (ii)
provision of money lending services; (i) trading
and distribution of liquor and wine; and (iv)
investments in funds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

HREBERFEEHBE @)

3.26 Segment reporting (Continued) 326 D EHRE (&)

Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each of the product and service
lines requires different resources as well as
marketing approaches.

The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSS, except that:

— expenses related to share-based payments
— fair value change on investment properties
— share of result of associates

— impairment loss on interest in associates

— finance costs

— corporate income and expenses which are
not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment

are not included in arriving at the operating results
of the operating segment.

Segment assets include all assets but interests in
associates and investment properties. In addition,
corporate assets, bank balances and cash and
deposits in a financial institution which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of
any operating segment are not allocated to a
segment, which primarily applies to the Group’s
headquarter.

Segment liabilities include all liabilities but tax
payable and deferred tax liabilities. In addition,
corporate liabilities which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment and are not allocated to a
segment.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to
reportable segments.
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HE—_Z—

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes judgements, estimates and
assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The judgements, estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market
condition and the historical experience of
manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It
could change significantly as a result of competitors'’
actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management reassess the estimations at the end of
each reporting period.

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated on a
straight-line basis where appropriate over their
estimated useful lives, after taking into account the
estimated residual values, if any. The Group reviews the
estimated useful lives, depreciation method and the
estimated residual values, if any, of the assets at least
at the end of each reporting period in order to
determine the amount of depreciation expense to be
recorded during any reporting period. The depreciation
method, useful lives and residual values are based on
the Group’s historical experience with similar assets
and taking into account anticipated technological
changes. The depreciation expense for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from previous
estimates.
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—SEARA=THLEFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4. EEgrHERAER )
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
Income taxes iREE

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong, The
People’s Republic of China (“the PRC") and Japan. The
Group carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions in accordance with prevailing tax
regulations and makes tax provision accordingly.
However, judgement is required in determining the
Group’s provision for income taxes as there are many
transactions and calculations of which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Estimated impairment of trade
receivables, loans receivable and other
receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of receivables on a forward-looking basis. In
making the judgement, management considers
available reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information such as actual or expected significant
changes in the operating results of customers, actual or
expected significant adverse changes in business and
customers’ financial position. At every reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed
by the Group’s management.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other
than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful life are tested for impairment annually and at
other times when such an indicator exists. Other non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there
are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions
in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Right-of-use assets

The Group uses its incremental borrowing rate (“IBR") to
measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest
that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group ‘would have
to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to
reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as
market interest rates) when available and is required to
make certain entity-specific estimates.
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—SEARA=THLEFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4. BEESHAHRAIER2)
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)
Fair value measurement ANEEE

Certain of the Group’s assets and liabilities included in
the consolidated financial statements require
measurement at, and/or disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial
assets and liabilities utilises market observable inputs
and data as far as possible. Inputs used in determining
fair value measurements are categorised into different
levels based on how observable the inputs used in the
valuation technique utilised are (the “fair value
hierarchy”):

FAVBRRAAEEETEERE
ERRATEFAER SEHRFE
REE o

AEEETREERBEZATFERFE
BARNAMSIBRERE AT RE
B -BEATEMERAZBABE
DERTRBA  EESNEETA
FRTRBABBZABREE(AF
BER]) :

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical F14: HRABERERMS ZRE
items (unadjusted); (REcFE)

Level 2:  Observable direct or indirect inputs other than F21% 0 BE1RBABEIN  AJEE
Level 1 inputs; Sk A B R i) A\ BU

Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from F38% . DAl ERE ABUE (BN 3EE

market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is
based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a
significant effect on the fair value measurement of the
item. Transfers of items between levels are recognised
in the period they occur.

The Group measures the following item at fair value:
— Investment properties (note 16)

— Financial assets at fair value through profit or l0ss
(note 23)

For more detailed information in relation to the fair

value measurement of the items above, please refer to
the respective notes.

-%

—FER o BRHMEREEERAT

=

MSBEPEHZE8E)
BIEE DA A ERTIAFTR A
FEYZEERATEAEFETARZ
REBHFRTE - NSEH 2 HEEIE
B Ty E A B RERR o
REBIZAFEFEATER :
— KBEWE(HE16)

— RAVESABZZEBMEE M
#£23)

b EBA RN HEAEZE—TFHE
A2BRRMET -

147



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ReMBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2021

HE—_Z—

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

148

(@) Financial risk management objectives

and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade receivables, other receivables and deposits,
loans receivable, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, deposits in a financial
institution, pledged bank balances, bank balances
and cash, trade payables, other payables and
accruals, amount due to non-controlling interests
and borrowings.

The main risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The Group manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, the PRC
and Japan with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in HK$, Renminbi (“RMB”)
and Japanese Yen (“JPY"), which are the functional
currencies of respective group companies. The
Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk primarily
arise from certain financial instruments which are
denominated in United States Dollar (“USD"),
which are currencies other than the functional
currency. The following table summarises the
Group’s major financial asset denominated in USD
other than the functional currencies of the
respective group companies:
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. MEERER2)
(Continued)
(@) Financial risk management objectives (a) MBRMEEEERBE &)
and policies (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued) SN EBE (4F)
2021 2{070]
—EB-—-F —TTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Denominated in USD HERSE
Bank balances and cash RITHEB RIS 26 2,566
The stated changes represent management'’s FrtZHRREBEEHREEZT
assessment of reasonably possible changes in —FEREHHIEAMERZ S
foreign exchange rates over the period until the BETSHHOTME sBtmE -
next annual reporting date. In this respect, it is AT R AR T B 35 T ) A B B2 1B
assumed that the pegged rate between the HK$ EA@REZFEITT LB ITEEAEM
and the USD would be materially unaffected by FHMIEEATE -
any changes in movement in value of the USD
against HKS.
The Group currently does not have a foreign AREB B Al EANE BB o

currency hedging policy.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
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(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Credit risk

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has
policies in place for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debtor at
the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk of the Group is primarily attributable
to trade receivables, other receivables and
deposits, loans receivable, deposits in a financial
institution, pledged bank balances and bank
balance and cash.

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of assets and whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting
period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the assets as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the
date of initial recognition.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

5. MERBRER &)

(@) Financial risk management objectives (a) BIREMESEEERBEE)

and policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

It considers available reasonable and supportive
forward looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

o external credit rating (as far as available)

o actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change to the counterparty’s
ability to meet its obligations

o actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the counterparty

o significant expected changes in the
performance and behaviour of the
counterparty, including changes in the
payment status of counterparties in the
group and changes in the operating results
of the counterparty

A default on a financial asset is when the
counterparty fails to make contractual payments
when they fall due.

Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery.

The assessment of credit risk and the estimation
of ECL are unbiased and probability-weighted, and
incorporate all available information that is
relevant to the assessment including information
about past events, current conditions and
reasonable and supportable forecasts of future
events and economic conditions at the reporting
date. In addition, the estimation of ECL should take
into account the time value of money.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
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(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk of deposits in a financial institution,
pledged bank balances and bank balances is
limited because the majority of the counterparties
are institutions with good reputation. No
impairment had been provided under 12-month
expected credit loss assessment.

The Group presumes that the credit risk of loans
receivable has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise. The Group considers
that default has occurred when the instrument is
more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more backward default
criterion is more appropriate.

The credit risk of loans receivable is determined
based on the combination of the internal and
external credit rating, the average debt recovery,
peer review information and comparison with
public available data. The Group calculates ECL
using three main components: a probability of
default ("PD"), a loss given default (“LGD") and the
exposure at default (‘EAD"). The 12-month ECL is
calculated by multiplying the 12-month PD, LGD
and EAD. Lifetime ECL is calculated using the
lifetime PD instead. The 12-month and lifetime PDs
represent the probability of default occurring over
the next 12 months and the remaining maturity of
the instrument respectively. The EAD represents
the expected balance at default, taking into
account the repayment of principal and interest
from the balance sheet date to the default event
together with any expected drawdowns of
committed facilities. The LGD represents expected
losses on the EAD given the event of default,
taking into account, among other attributes, the
mitigating effect of collateral value at the time it is
expected to be realised and the time value of
money. The total impairment allowance on the
loans receivable as at 30 June 2021 amounted to
HK$175,747,000 (2020: HK$168,401,000) has been
provided under expected credit oss assessment,
of which reversal of expected credit loss of
HK$8,824,000 (2020: expected credit loss of
HK$18,734,000) was recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 June 2021.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5.
(Continued)

MBEREE @)

(@) Financial risk management objectives (@) BMEKMEEEERBEE)
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued) =B8Rk (E)

An analysis of changes in the gross amount and EWEZBRE N BEREN -
impairment allowances of loans receivable as at ——ER-E-TEEANA=+H
30 June 2021 and 2020 is as follow: RSN

Stage 2
F2MER
HK$'000

THET

Total
k]
HK$'000
TER

Stage 1
FIRER

Stage 3
FIRA
HK$'000

TER

HK$'000
TERT

At 30 June 2021 RZBE--fXA=1+H
Loans receivable FEWE TR - 19,175 222,463 241,638
Impairment allowances  Fi{E B - (2,801) (172,946) (175,747)
Net amounts FER - 16,374 49,517 65,891
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FIPEE  FE2MkER  FEIRER 1B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
TET TET FHET TET
At 30 June 2020 R-ZZE-ZEFXSA=TH
Loans receivable FEWE K - 18,517 203,721 222,238
Impairment allowances  JFi{E&E = (2,275)  (166,126)  (168,401)
Net amounts HER - 16,242 37,595 53,837

For the trade receivables, the Group carries out
regular review on these balances and follow-up
action on any overdue amounts to minimise
exposures to credit risk. The Group measures the
lifetime expected credit loss based on the
outstanding balances and historical credit loss
experience adjusted to reflect the Group’s view of
current and forecast economic conditions that
may affect the ability of the debtors to settle
receivables. The total impairment allowance
amounted to HK$1,296,000 (2020: HK$2,058,000)
had been provided under expected credit loss
assessment by using simplified approach
according to the ageing by due date disclose in
note 21, reversal of expected credit l0ss of
HK$374,000 (2020: HK$nil) was recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 June 2021.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. MERRER %)

(Continued)

(@) Financial risk management objectives (a) MEERREEEERBEKE)
and policies (Continued)
credit risk (Continued) EERK(EZ)
The loss allowance as at 30 June 2021 and 2020 NR-E - —FER T -TF,NAH
was determined for trade receivables as follows: —tHESREKREETEZE

BEEIT

Gross

carrying

Expected amount

credit loss (after

rate — excluding

weighted credit-
average  impaired Loss Net

(%) balance) allowance amount
HHEE R E
EiBtt = ($0B%
— hiREF3g EERE

(%) #E%) BERE B

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FTERx FERT

At 30 June 2021 R-B--5XA=+H

Not yet pass due 1) R 8 ER N/ATERA 411 - 411
Overdue within 90 days BE0BA N/ATEA 20 - 20
Overdue 91 to 180 days BN HZE180H N/AFER 21 - 21
Total k] 452 - 452

Gross

carrying

Expected amount

credit loss (after

rate—  excluding

weighted credit-
average impaired Loss Net

(%) balance)  allowance amount
BHEE BEEE(E
Bl xR (40B&
— ¥ EERE

(%) Er8) BEERE HER

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAT FHT FAET

At 30 June 2020 R-ZZE-_ZB&EXHA=1+H

Not yet pass due PE Ak N/ATNEF 319 - 319
Overdue within 90 days #HE90 B A N/ANEH 21 - 21
Overdue 91 to 180 days BE9IBZE180H N/ANEF 79 - 79
Total B 419 - 419
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

5. MERBRER &)

(@) Financial risk management objectives (a) BIREMESEEERBEE)

and policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

For the other debts instruments, given the short
term nature of these assets, the ECL had been
provided under 12-month expected credit loss
assessment. The total impairment allowance
amounted to HK$6,847,000 (2020: HK$4,912,000)
has been provided under expected credit l0ss
assessment.

The Group has concentration risk on trade
receivables and loans receivable.

At the end of reporting period, the Group has
concentration of credit risk as HK$84,000 (2020:
HK$82,000) and HK$251,000 (2020: HK$248,000) of
total trade receivables after considering the
impairment loss due from the Group’s largest
trade debtor and the five largest trade debtors
respectively.

The Group also has concentration of credit risk as
HK$43,029,000 (2020: HK$22,888,000) and
HK$65,891,000 (2020: HK$51,732,000) of total
loans receivable after considering the impairment
loss due from the Group's largest borrower and
the five largest borrowers respectively.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
deposits in a financial institution, bank balances
and borrowings. The Group’s exposure to the risk
of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group’s deposits in a financial
institution, bank balance and borrowing with a
floating interest rate. Management closely
monitors cash flow interest rate risk and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

—7
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EEZEHNE  BHEEEE
RIE 1216 A FEHIE & B 18 AP (4 5
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ZZTFTF :4,912,000%7T) B
RIFFEIEE BB AFHREE -

AEBzEFRERENRERE
RESTRER -
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BB T AR EBREEIE
% AEERREZEHBARA
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AEETFEEFREERR - B
HREZERERBEER AEEK&
KEEBEARBAREEADBER
Eﬂﬁl% TNAEFE 43,029,000 T (=
— =T 4 22,888,000/ L) &
65,891,000 T ( —ZF = & #F :
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

156

(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

As at 30 June 2021, it is estimated that a general
increase/(decrease) of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
(decrease)/increase the Group's loss for the year
and the accumulated losses by approximately
HK$2,316,000 (2020: HK$2,348,000) respectively.

The sensitivity analysis above was determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the reporting date and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for
both derivative and non-derivative financial
instruments in existence at that date. The 100
basis points increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the period
until the next annual reporting date. The analysis
was performed on the same basis for 2020.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management,
including raising of loans to cover expected cash
demands, subject to approval by the Company’s
board when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. MERREER %)

(Continued)

(@) Financial risk management objectives (a) BIEMREEEERBEE)
and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) RBESRAM(E)
The following table details the remaining TREINAREBETESREE
contractual maturities at the end of reporting RB|EBRZHBTAELEEEGE
period of the Group’s non-derivative financial 15 JHIRBE I ARBIRIE SR
liabilities, which are based on contractual E(BEEAEITOMES (A
undiscounted cash flows (including interest FERR)RFEHRZIRITH
payments computed using contractual rates, or if KRB HBELZ ) RARERT
floating, based on rates current at the end of BEANRZ T BHEE -

reporting period) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay.

Total More than More than

contractual Within 1yearbut 2 years but

Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 5 years

EHEES ) —FR SR-F SRMF
REE RERBEHE BREX  EORWE  EOREF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Tax Tax TaT THx THx
2021 —E--&
Borrowings EE 128,549 129,018 129,018 - -
Trade payables, other payables B SERERIE « AR FUE
and accruals RIEGTER 7,909 7,909 7,909 = =
Lease liabilities HEARE 318 322 322 - -
136,776 137,249 137,249 - -
2020 “ZCEf
Borrowings EE 140,671 142,131 21,728 120,174 229
Trade payables, other payables — EZEMERE - EtEFTE
and accruals RIEGTER 14,248 14,248 14,248 - -
Amount due to non-controlling N FEEEIRIER £ 58
interests 43,661 43,661 43,661 - -
Lease liabilities HERE 4,126 4,287 2,311 1,284 162

202,706 204,327 82,478 121,458 9N
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5.

158

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Fair values
The fair values of the Group's financial assets is
determined as follows:

o The fair value of investments in unlisted
private funds as at 30 June 2021 and 2020 is
determined by the Directors of the Company
with reference to the valuation statements
provided by the fund administrator;

o The fair value of compensation from profit
guarantee is determined by the Directors of
the Company with reference to the actual
financial result of Delta Prestige Holdings
Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Delta
Prestige Group”) for the year ended 30 June
2016,

HKFRS 7 requires disclosure for financial
instruments that are measured at fair value by
level of the following fair value measurement
hierarchy:

Level 1 — Quoted price (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Level2 — Inputs other than quoted price
included within Level 1 that are
observable for the assets or
liabilities, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 — Inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market
data.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M EHRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(b) Fair values (Continued)

HE—_Z—

—SEARA=THLEFE

(b)

Level 1
BI1R

HK$'000
TR

5. MERBRER &)

DV EE

Total
#HME
HK$'000
TET

Level 3
B3R
HK$'000
FTEx

Level 2
B2
HK$'000
TET

At 30 June 2021 R-ZE-—-£3XA=TH
Assets EE
Compensation from gL R A
profit guarantee - - 7,500 7,500
Investments in unlisted FEMRAESRERE
private funds - 59,805 - 59,805
- 59,805 7,500 67,305

Level 1
F1

HK$'000
THET

Total
Mg
HK$'000
FEHT

Level 3
£ 31K
HK$'000
THET

Level 2
F2R
HK$'000
FHET

At 30 June 2020 R-EBE-ZFEANA=TH
Assets EE
Compensation from i MR E R B
profit guarantee - - 10,000 10,000
Investments in unlisted FEMRAELRE
private funds - 58,769 - 58,769
- 58769 10000 68769

The methods and valuation techniques used for
the purpose of measuring fair value are
unchanged compared to the previous reporting
periods. There were no significant transfers of
financial assets and liabilities between Level 1,
Level 2 and Level 3 fair value hierarchy
classifications.

—T A« EEFERERERAT
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ReMBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &ZEZE-Z-_—F A=+THIEFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. WERBRER »#)
(Continued)
(b) Fair values (Continued) (b) AFEEE)
The fair value of compensation from profit BREBHE Y ANTLEBEIR
guarantee is a Level 3 recurring fair value KEEAFETE - TXHINE
measurement. A reconciliation of the opening and ) % BR4R N T AE 45 54 1 BE

closing fair value balances are provided as below:

2020
—ETHF
HK$°000
FH&T
Opening balance BRI RR
(Level 3 recurring fair value) (EIREEERATFE) 10,000 20,000
Repayment during the year FREER (2,500) (10,000)
Closing balance AR 4L 50
(Level 3 recurring fair value) (BIREEMLNTFE) 7,500 10,000
One of the key significant unobservable inputs to ETuMNREMEIATEZH
determine the fair value of compensation from FR—IEE ZE AT R A S
profit guarantee is the actual financial result of BREREFEEHE_ZT—X
Delta Prestige Group for the year ended 30 June FRA=ZTHILEFEZEBRTB
2016. E
A better actual financial result of Delta Prestige EREEEEHZE_ZT—FEAX
Group for the year ended 30 June 2016 would A=THRLEFECERVBEE
result in a decrease in the fair value of B BENREFMECATE
compensation from profit guarantee, and vice BRORLY  RZINA ©
versa.
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e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 6. @RS EHRE

Revenue represents the amounts received and WS THHEFAKLHIBR RS RITHIA K
receivable for goods sold to outside customers, net of B ESE N ERAIIRERHE
returns and discounts and sales related taxes, income HRZE W R EKERIE -« O EZE
from hotel operations and interest income from loans WA K FEWE T2 R B A o

receivable during the year.

2{070]
—ETHF
HK$'000
FH&T
Continuing operations: HEREXEK
Service income: ARFSWA -
Hotel hospitality business B JE B A 57 18,756 31,479
Interest income: FLEWA -
Money lending services BERY 4,943 12,901
Trading income: = UNE
Liquor and wine B REEE G 393 2,470

24,092 46,850
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BHE_ZE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

162

Segment reporting

(a)

Reportable segments

The Group determines its operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the chief
operating decision-maker that are used to make
strategic decisions. The chief operating decision-
maker has been identified as the Company’s
executive directors.

During the year, the Group has completed the
disposal of the new energy business. In
accordance with HKFRS 5, the segment of new
energy business for the years ended 30 June 2021
and 2020 were presented as discontinued
operations in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. Further details regarding the results
of the discontinued operations is set out in note 7
to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group currently has four reportable segments.
The segments are managed separately as each
business offers different products and services
and requires different business strategies as
follows:

(i) hotel hospitality business;
(i) provision of money lending services;

(i) trading and distribution of liquor and wine;
and

(iv) investments in funds

There were no inter-segment transactions
between different operating segments for the year
(2020: Nil). Central revenue and expenses are not
allocated to the operating segments as they are
not included in the measure of the segments’
results that is used by the chief operating
decision-maker for assessment of segment
performance.

——FXA=THIEFE

6. BiRRHMWE &)

DEBE

(a)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 6. &R o%EERE &)

(Continued)

Segment reporting (Continued) DRBEE)

(b) Segment revenue and results (b) 7EWEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue RAMEDEE D ANER 2 W
and results by reportable segments. RESZSTMT
For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE-E-_—FXA=Z1+HLHF

E

Hotel Money
hospitality lending Liquor  Investments
business  services  and wine in funds Total
BERG

i RERB ERERm @ EERE @t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TRR TR TR TR TR

Segment revenue Pk 18,756 4,943 393 - 24,092
Segment (loss)/profit PR (EB) /&7 (22,569) 13,338 (807) 408 (9,630)
Unallocated corporate income AARRTMA RS

and gains 3,339
Unallocated corporate expenses AP BLA R ()

(Note) (29,820)
Finance costs AR (2,204)
Share of loss of associates AEBERFER (5,619)
Impairment loss on interests REE R ESAERR

in associates (3,883)
Net surplus on revaluation of REMESHRGTE

investment properties 200
Loss before income tax from SELEXH MEHAEE

continuing operations (47,617)
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ReMBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &ZEZE-Z-_—F A=+THIEFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 6. &R o%EERE &)

(Continued)
Segment reporting (Continued) DTERE (&)
(b) Segment revenue and results (Continued) (b) 2EWRBERESEE)
For the year ended 30 June 2020 BHE-Z-_ZTHFA=THLHF
E
Hotel Money
hospitality lending Liquor  Investments
husiness Services and wine in funds Total
BERE
£% RERE BEER  EERE Eh
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TATL TATL TATL THT
Segment revenue pplien 31479 12901 2470 - 46,350
Segment oss)/proft SB(EE)/ 5 1B (6529 3102 739 (130137
Unallocated corporate income AARATMA RS
and gains 2,415
Unallocated corporate expenses (Note) &2 A alf % (Fiz) (35,044)
Finance costs BERA (2,051)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBLR ha 4,449
Share of loss of an associate AMEBERAER (2611)
Net deficit on revaluation of RANFERBATE
investment properties (1,261)
Share-based paymentexpenses RGBSR 787
Loss before income tax from BERELB AEHAER
continuing operations (165,027)
Note: Unallocated corporate expenses mainly included staff W BEZT = —FR=F 725/\)%
salaries, directors’ remuneration and consultancy fees =THIEFE  RHOBEARMAXE
for the years ended 30 June 2021 and 2020. ZEFEEIHS E%@H%&Eﬁ i
B -
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e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 6. &R o%EERE &)

(Continued)
Segment reporting (Continued) DERE (&)
(c) Segment assets and liabilities (c) PEEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets RO EDHEE D ANER Y BE
and liabilities by reportable segments: FaESHuT :
2020
—TTF
HK$'000
FHIT
Segment assets PEEE
Continuing operations HEREXER
Hotel hospitality business B JE BRI ST 378,820 415,589
Money lending services BER® 66,544 82,366
Liquor and wine AR EE 71,817 68,736
Investments in funds ESKE 122,935 125,566
Discontinued operations RIS EK
New energy business HELIR TS = 2,898
Total segment assets NEEERE 640,116 695,155
Interests in associates NN Ed 3,487 12,989
Investment properties TEMHE 19,600 19,400
Deposits in a financial institution A& B ~ 175X 318,384 .
Unallocated bank balances ROBLIRITEB LIRS
and cash 9,485 312,174
Unallocated corporate assets Ao AREE (W)
(Note) 9,382 22,236
Consolidated total assets IREAEBE 1,000,454 1,061,954
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ReMBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &ZEZE-Z-_—F A=+THIEFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 6. &R o%EERE &)

(Continued)
Segment reporting (Continued) TEWRE (&)
(c) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) (c) PEEEREE(E)
2{070]
—E-FF
HK$'000
THTT
Segment liabilities SEERE
Continuing operations FEREEK
Hotel hospitality business B IE SR TS 122,027 133,764
Money lending services BB R 246 432
Liquor and wine JBFEE G 2,468 2,352
Investments in funds ESiE 113 183
Discontinued operations RIS ER
New energy business e RER - 53,246
Total segment liabilities DA ERRE 124,854 189,977
Tax payable FERTRRIR 2,845 2,618
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHIBAE 55,266 62,609
Unallocated corporate liabilities Ko B AGIEE 14,580 15,004
Consolidated total liabilities mReEaEeE 197,545 270,208
Note: Unallocated corporate assets mainly comprised of Wi ROEARIBEEFZERREHE-T
compensation from profit guarantee for the year ended ——FRZEZFFXA=+AHL
30 June 2021 and 2020. FEZmMRBRE o
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e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 #HZE—_ZE_—_—F XA=+HILFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 6. &R o%EERE &)

(Continued)
Segment reporting (Continued) DERE (&)
(d) oOther segment information (d) HttpE&EHR
For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE-E-_—FXA=1+HLHF

E

Hotel Money
hospitality lending Liquor  Investments

business services and wine infunds  Unallocated Total
BERS

E3d RER% EEER EERE RO st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TEL TEL TERL TERL TEL

Amounts included in the A ERAAEER
measure of segment profitor SEEEHEZEE:

loss or segment assets:
Additions to non-current assets  FEIEREIAE 1,330 - - - 3,554 4,884
Depreciation of property, nE - BELRENE

plant and equipment (6,175) (2,067) - (4) - (8,246)
Impairment [0ss on property, n% - BEREEHESE

plant and equipment (13,605) (2,016) (7 = - (15,628)
Impairment losses on other HitEKFUE i@ HfE

receivables and deposits B8 - - - (1,839) (89) (1,928)
Reversal of impairment losseson & S EMERIE R ESBEE

trade receivables - = 374 = = 374
Reversal of impairment losseson  [EWEZURERBEE

loans receivable - 8,824 - - - 8,824
Interest income frombanksand 1T RS RILHEFISWA

a financial institution - - 18 - 1,818 1,836
Surplus on revaluation of REMESERA

investment properties - = = = 200 200
Change in fair value of financial ~ RAVEF ABHZ

assets at fair value through CREEATELY

profit or loss - - - 1,036 - 1,036
Amounts regularly provided to EHEFEEERFERMH

the chief operating decision-  {BY & A 2 EEFH

maker but not included in BEGTEZEH !

the measure of segment

profit or loss:
Finance costs RERK (1,030) (10) - - (1,164) (2,204)
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 6. &R o%EERE &)

168

Hotel
hospitality
business
BB
HK$'000
TAT

Money
lending
services

B
HK$'000
T

Liquor
and wine

EREM
HK$'000
A

Investments
in funds

Unallocated

RO
HKS'000
T

(Continued)
Segment reporting (Continued) TEWRE (&)
(d) Other segment information (Continued) d) HttaEERE)
For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE_Z-_TFA=THLF
E

Amounts included in the A ERASEER

measure of segment profitor HEEEHEZEE

loss or segment assets:
Additions to non-current assets  REIERBEE 2293 - - - 15,600 17,893
Depreciation of property, 0% BERRENE

plant and equipment (6,361) (25) V) (126) (1,827) (8,341)
Impairment l0ss on property, 0% - BREXERESR

plant and equipment (74,159) - - = = (74,159)
Impairment losses on loans ERERREER

receivable - (18,734) - - - (18,734)
(Impairment losses)/reversal of Hi R IERIZE CiE

impairment losses on other B8)/RESEEE

receivables and deposits - - 2,718 (1,837) 97 (4,458)
Impairment losses on goodwil BERERR (56,984) - = = = (56,984)
Gain on disposal of subsiciaries  HEFBAF 2 Uz - - 4063 - 4,449 8,512
Interest income from banks RITHEHRA = - 21 12 1,312 1,345
Net deficit on revaluation of RENZERBLTE

investment properties - - - = (1,261) (1,261)
Change in fair value of financial ~ RATEF ABHZ

assets at fair value through CREEATELY

profit or loss - - - 9,997 - 9,997
Amounts regularly provided to EHHTELERF E iR

the chief operating decision- Bz A EEFH

maker but not included BRHE2EE:

in the measure of segment

profit or loss:
Finance costs RMERK (1,09) @ - - (950) (2,051)

DETAI NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021

HE_F

——FXA=THILEE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 6. WBRSWMERE &)
(Continued)
Segment reporting (Continued) PEREE)
(e) Geographic information (e) WEEER

The Group's operations are mainly located in Hong
Kong (place of domicile), the PRC and Japan.

The Group’s revenue from external customers and
information about its non-current assets (other
than financial assets) by geographical markets are
detailed as below:

REBEEMBFIEMNES
(RELHLEL) - PRI AR

AEB R R TIZE D KB IR
BEPZWahBREFRBDEE
(EREERIN ZERFFELT

Revenue from
external customers
(including continuing and
discontinued operations)

Non-current assets

REMPREF 2z
(BRERELER
BRIEREEE) ERBEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E--§ CZZT-TF —B--§ CZT-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHx THT FET ;
Hong Kong B8 4,943 12,901 24,543 38,074
PRC H 772 4,050 - 6
Sweden g - 492 - -
Japan B 18,756 31,479 375,756 404,195
24,471 48,922 400,299 442,275
The geographical location of customers is based BERPZHBUERINERR
on the location at which the goods and services FRIGFTEMEME - mEREFR
are delivered. For goodwill and intangible assets, BEMBMEDIREEMERM
the geographical location is based on the areas of Eo HMIERBEECHBAE
operation. The geographical location of other non- DIREEZBEBRULEME °
current assets is based on the physical location of
the assets.
() Major customers f) EFEEF

There is no significant revenue that is more than
10% of the Group's revenue derived from specific
external customers for the years ended 30 June
2021 and 2020.

—FER o BRHMEREEERAT

BE_Z-Z—FR-ZTFFAX
A=THILFE - jﬂHEﬂéﬁ
W 25 68 8 AN SR B 2R B F TE AR
Pz a2 10% °
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 &ZEZE-Z-_—F A=+THIEFE

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group has
completed disposing the business of development,
manufacture and distribution of a vegetable fuel
additive (“New Energy Business”) to an independent
third party.

New Energy Business represented the separate line of
major business and is classified as discontinued
operations for the year ended 30 June 2021. For the
purpose of presenting discontinued operations, the
comparative consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and the related notes have been represented.

The results and cash flows of the New Energy Business
for the years ended 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020 are
as follows:

ERILEERS

HE_ZT-_—F~A=Z=+tHILEFE"
AEBETKRMABIE=FHERE
B R SEEYIRERR INEN 2 375 ([ 37
BEIRZER]) -

Eﬁﬁ:%@:—i/‘_\ﬂz—?—ﬁﬂzifg'
HMBEREFGEIBXRHIFAZS
’“*E%Ei&ﬂ:z‘“ %i‘%°?¢tzﬁuaﬂ
IFREEBMNE  LRESE2HRS
%&*H?WTIE@@J

MEREBHE_T-_—F A=+
ARZZE_EFA=+THLEFEZ
%ﬁ&ﬁimng

Revenue g 379 2,072
Cost of sales $HE KA (298) (930)
Other income and gains HEMA RS 111 1,070
Selling and distributing expenses HERDHEAX (394) (1,536)
General and administrative expenses ~— — M RITEF (3,949) (11,813)
Finance costs BhE R AR - (70)
Impairment loss on property, plant Yz - BB REEREEE

and equipment - (127)
Impairment loss on other receivables — FAtl IR MR 2R E

and deposits B8 9) (309)
Loss before income tax FriS Tt Al B8 (4,160) (11,643)
Income tax expense FTiS iR - -
Loss after income tax from ERIEE EEEZ

discontinued operations FiSTii& 518 (4,160) (11,643)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries S B A A 2 W

(note 36(a)) (BfisE36(a)) 9,039 -
Profit/(loss) for the year from ERIEEEXBZFN

discontinued operations wmAl(E1E) 4,879 (11,643)
Cash flows from discontinued ERIEEEFEBHIE

operations: mE -

Operating cash inflows/(outflows) EBSRACRE) 679 (9,085)

Investing cash (outflows)/inflows BERE R,/ RA (4,390) 11,128

Financing cash inflows/(outflows) BMERERACRE) 1,298 (2,116)
Total cash flows REMELEE (2,413) 73)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M EHRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

8. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 8. Hfuf ARG

Continuing operations FEREEK
Interest income from banks and RITR T REE RN EUA

a financial institution 1,836 1,345
Additional compensation in relation ERRFREBEREINEE

to profit guarantee 170 400
Other operating income HEgaA - 85
Interest income on amount due from  FEUNIEIZ= IR HEZS FRIE

non-controlling interests FEWA = 94
Change in fair value of financial assets 1z A F{EzT A8z 47/l

at fair value through profit or loss BEANFEHEE

(note 23b) (Ff$3E 23b) 1,036 9,997
Government subsidies (note) BT R A (PHEE) 948 -
Other sundry income HA IR A 1,597 2,781

5,587 14,702

Note: The government subsidies represented a one-off subsidy under MisE BRI RG TE B A R B 1T IR [ BT

Employment Support Scheme launched by the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and subsidy
received under “Employment Adjustment Subsidy” from Japan
Government. There are no unfulfilled conditions and other
contingencies attached to the receipts of those subsidies.

R EFTE T Z —RMEBIAKR B AR
BT [ A2 T ARG | IR 2 4 8k o
M ER % 5 4l B 0 S B 5 1) R 5 K R 1
R EAHIREIR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ReMBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &ZEZE-Z-_—F A=+THIEFE

9. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. MEMAIEIR
Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging/ FrS B AT B &0k, (5t A) T3
(crediting): £IE

2020
=i

= __

HK$'000
TAT

Continuing operations

Auditor’s remuneration

Depreciation expenses in respect of:
Owned assets
Right-of-use assets

Cost of inventories recognised as
expense

(Reversal of impairment loss)/
impairment loss of loans receivable
(note 22)

Impairment loss on other receivables
and deposits

Impairment loss on goodwill (note 18)

Impairment loss on property, plant
and equipment (note 15)

Employee benefit expense
(including directors’ remuneration):
Wages and salaries
Contributions to retirement benefit

schemes

Share-based payment expenses

Short term lease expenses

Exchange losses, net

Reversal of impairment loss on trade
receivables (note 21)

Written off of property, plant and
equipment

Loss on derecognition of associates

FREERE
ZER &
BTSSR ZITERX
BEEE

EREEE
MR/ 2 FERAN

FEKER ORERBERR),
REEE (K 22)

H bW R IE MR & RE
&8
2R E R 18 (fIFE18)
M - BEREEREER
(Ffi7E15)
EERIAX (BIEES
B &) -
TERFS
RIRAEFIFT B 3K

RO RAX
RHAERY
0 5B FE
Z 5 EWERTE R EE B
(FfizE21)
MEEME - BB R&E

ARIEFERE 2 N E 2 B8

1,900

7,139
1,107

13,174

(8,824)

1,928

15,628

8,834
475

251
646

(374)

236
678

2,080

6,830
1,511

19,805

18,734

4,458
56,984

74,159

10,880

1,172

787
1,458
2,379

32
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 10. EERGREEEMELUREA
MANAGEMENT'S REMUNERATION ZEEHAL
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
Particulars of the remuneration of the directors and the UTAFREERAEREHFALZ
five highest paid individuals for the year were as follows: e &Ex}
Year ended 30 June 2021 BE-_ZE-_—SAXA=tHLEE
Contributions
to retirement
benefit
Fees schemes Total
RINEF
we FTEIHR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THET TET
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Wong Hin Shek (note i) TR A (FTsED 1,763 16 1,779
Mr. Chan Wai Ki (note i) PR B4 5 A (FRE D) 500 18 518
Mr. Eric Todd (note iii) ERIE A (FIaEiil) 500 18 518
Mr. Yiu To Wa (note iv) phEEE LA (HEEiv) 80 1 81

Independent non-executive By FHITES

directors
Mr. Chiu Wai On BEZELE 120 - 120
Mr. Man Kwok Leung SERLE 120 - 120
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen (note v) EMEEL (Hy) 15 - 15
Mr. Sheung Kwong Cho (note vi) 748 5 4 (Bt 5 vi) 53 - 53
Total st 3,151 53 3,204
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ReMBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &ZEZE-Z-_—F A=+THIEFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 10. EEREREEEMESLURA
MANAGEMENT'S REMUNERATION Z2EEFALTE
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)
Year ended 30 June 2020 BE—_Z-_ZEA=1THIEE
Contributions
to retirement
benefit
Fees schemes Total
RIRER
we FTEIf K 1BEt
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Wong Hin Shek (note i) FRE LA (T 1,950 18 1,968
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth Z RS A (B EE vil)

(note vii) 344 13 357
Mr. Chan Wai Ki (note i) PRIE RS A (BiaTii) 520 18 538
Mr. Chan Wing Kit (note viii) BRIk 50 A (BT3E viil) 37 2 39
Mr. Eric Todd (note iii) ERIE A (FEaEiil) 130 3 133
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ms. Zhang Yudan (note ix) % 2+ (FIEEix) 131 - 131
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau (note X) IR A (FiTREX) 172 - 172
Independent non-executive BIYFHTES

directors
Mr. Chiu Wai On BEREE 120 - 120
Mr. Man Kwok Leung BERELE 120 - 120
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen (note v) =BT () 120 - 120
Total ol 3,644 54 3,698
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 #HZE—_ZE_—_—F XA=+HILFE

10. DIRECTORS' AN’D SENIOR 10. E;_&Eﬁ%ﬂ@ﬂﬁuﬁi

MANAGEMENT’'S REMUNERATION ZEREHFALT S

AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(Continued)

Notes: Ft 5

0] Mr. Wong Hin Shek resigned as executive director with effect 0] FTHEBELEEBRIRTES BT -—
from 27 May 2021. FRAZ-TEBEBER -

(i) Mr. Chan Wai Ki resigned as executive director with effect from iy BREHEEEBETRTES BZT=
22 July 2021. FEAZt+t=-BRBER -

@iy~ Mr. Eric Todd was appointed as executive director with effect iy EFREXLECEZETABDTES 8=
from 24 March 2020 and resigned with effect from 1 September “TE=RA-t+WERER IE%;E
2021. BT —FAA—BREX -

(iv)  Mr. Yiu To Wa was appointed as executive director with effect (iv) SBEXECEZEAVTEE B=-F
from 27 May 2021 and resigned with effect from 22 July 2021. Z—FRERAZTERRER  WEEHE -

B-Z-—F+tA-+-HEEE-

(vy  Dr. wWong Yun Kuen resigned as independent non-executive (v) BEEEETEBREEENTES 8=
director with effect from 23 December 2020. T_EF A t=HREXK-

(vi)  Mr. Sheung Kwong Cho was appointed as independent non- (vi) ﬁt?ﬂﬁ‘ﬁiﬂﬂ%é&ﬁ?ﬁi#%ﬂﬁ%% 2
executive director with effect from 18 May 2021. BT —FRA+N\BRBERK -

(vi)  Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth resigned as executive director and (vii) *:‘:*‘Ef‘ﬁia BHIERITE S RITHAER
chief executive officer with effect from 24 March 2020. BT -TF=A-F+WARBER -

(vii)  Mr. Chan Wing Kit resigned as executive director with effect Vi) BOKBEEAEEBERTES AT
from 3 September 2019. FRAZHBER -

(ix)  Ms. Zhang Yudan was appointed as non-executive director with i) REAXITEEZTAIENTES B
effect from 25 October 2019 and resigned with effect from 31 F— ﬂfﬁ + BZ+HBREN WEBE
March 2020. B2 ZF=A=+—HEEX-

(x)  Mr. Chui Kwong Kau resigned as non-executive director with () EXREEEEBEFNTEST BT
effect from 19 March 2020. ZE=ZRAtNBREK-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ReMBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2021

HE—_Z—

10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT'S REMUNERATION
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration for the
years ended 30 June 2021 and 2020.

Disclosures required by Section 383 of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of
information about benefits of directors) regulation (Cap.
622G) and Listing Rules:

(@)

176

The executive directors’ remuneration shown
above was mainly for their services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group during the years ended
30 June 2021 and 2020.

The non-executive and independent non-executive
directors’ remuneration shown above were mainly
for their services as directors of the Company and
the Group during the years ended 30 June 2021
and 2020.

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the years ended 30
June 2021 and 2020.

During the years ended 30 June 2021 and 2020,
there were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favour of the directors, or
controlled body corporates and connected entities
of such directors.

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Company'’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year (2020:
Nil).

—FRNA=THLEFE

10. EER
z2EE

EREEEMSLRA
AT E)

EEVERHE ST - —FRK-_T—
TEXNAZTHIEFEEEEEMZHE
HNeREREEMENE -

BIE D BER (F622F) F3831F ~ A
RI(EEESFZER) RHI(5 622G
B)NETRAEEMBEEZER

(@)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M EHRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT'S REMUNERATION
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

The five highest paid individuals of the Group include
three (2020: one) executive directors of the Company,
details of whose remuneration are included above. The
emoluments of the remaining two (2020: four)
individuals for the year ended 30 June 2021 were as

10. EER
2R

EREERM&LURER
WAL )

AEEREHESHFALH  HA=H(=
TTF: —R)BRARBRITES
BEZHESFBEN EXX - SR TREA(Z
T-TF WHE)ATREBE=ZT=_—
FRA=Z+THIEFEZME0T :

follows:
2020
— 7 —_— ? f'E
HK$°000
FHIT
Wages and salaries Iﬁ&%‘éﬁfi\ 1,178 3,232
Contributions to retirement RREFIFEIHR
benefit schemes 34 444
1,212 3,676
Their emoluments fell within the following bands: HEALZMENTFIATAR

Number of individuals

AE
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-TF
HK$0-HK$500,000 07 7T & 500,000 7 It 1 -
HK$500,001-HK$ 1,000,000 500,001 7% 7T & 1,000,000 7T 1 8
HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7 7T & 1,500,000 7T - 1

No share options were granted to non-director, highest
paid individuals in respect of their services to the Group
for the year ended 30 June 2021 and 2020.

There was no arrangement under which the above non-
director, highest paid individuals waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration for the years ended 30 June
2021 and 2020. No compensation for loss of office has
been paid by the Group for any individual for the year
ended 30 June 2021 and 2020.

—7

BE_Z- K- -"FTF A=
BIEtFERBEIEEESFHALRMAA
SERMHZ RSB EIEARRE

BE-_ZT-_ G k=-ZE=-FTFXAH
=THIEFE FMFEESERRFA
i*ﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬂﬁﬁf%ﬁ%‘kﬂn%@%
EFHe BE_ZT_—FR_FT_
ZFERNA=ZTHLEFE  AEEIT &
A A T 2B E o
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ReMBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2021

11.

12.

178

HE—_Z—

FINANCE COSTS

—FRNA=THLEFE

11.

MERF

2020
—E-TF
HK$'000
TBT
Continuing operations BHEREXER

Interest on bank loans SRITERF B 1,030 1,101
Interest on other loans HEa BT B 1,080 720
Interest on lease liabilities HEaBHA 94 230
2,204 2,051

INCOME TAX CREDIT 12. FRrSRER®

Hong Kong profits tax was provided at the rate of 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profit arising in Hong Kong
for both years ended 30 June 2021 and 2020. No
provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made for
the current and prior periods as the Group has no
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong.

The subsidiaries established in the PRC are subject to
enterprise income tax (“EIT") at tax rates of 25% for both
years ended 30 June 2021 and 2020. No provision for
PRC EIT has been made for the current and prior
periods as the Group has no assessable profits arising
in the PRC.

Under the relevant Japan tax regulations, the profits of
the business under tokumei kumiai arrangement which
is distributed to a tokumei kumiai investor after
deducting any accumulated losses in prior years is only
subject to 20.42% withholding income tax in Japan. The
withholding tax is final Japanese tax on such distributed
tokumei kumiai profits and such profits are not subject
to any other Japanese taxes. There is no withholding tax
paid or payable for the both years ended 30 June 2021
and 2020 as there is no profit distribution.

The subsidiary established in Japan is subject to
prefectural and municipal inhabitant taxes on a per
capita basis in accordance with the relevant Japan tax
regulations for the year ended 30 June 2021 and 2020.

BHE_ZT-_—4Fk-_Z=-_FFA
=t+HIEMBEFEE  REBEEZH
AT FERR B i AR T K 16.5% 1B B S F
SHBEE AR AEERERT KRBT
HEHEEEBSEEARRTE ZH - &
WEFRL B BFESTRIEL B -

BHE_ZT-_—4Fk=-_Z-_FFXA
=+HIEMEFEE  RARBIKZZH
B AR BRI E25% BN XS/
([TZEMER]) c ARASERE Al
MATHESETPEEEERT R
F A £ kA B (b EE FTIS R AR B
1 o

REABAARBRL  ERBHR
BEIR T 555 2 F (RABB 1 F E A
MABABEEDIRE - BERBHER
BE )N B AREAR20.42% 2 AR
Bh - BHRSERE D IKERBH
A 2 R A& B ANELIR - A B A B
ABHMEMEMBATIE - AR
BREMOK BHBHE_T-_—Fk—
TTERNA=ZTHIMEFELE
BTSRRI

BHE_Z-_—4Fk-_Z-_FFAH
=tHIEFEE REAKIZZHBEA
AIZEMRIEAEE B AR RO A E
A I T AR R A o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M EHRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &HZE—-Z

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued)

The subsidiary established in Sweden is subject to
corporate income tax at tax rates of 22% for the year
ended 30 June 2021 and 2020. No provision for Sweden
corporate income taxes have been made for the current
and prior periods as the Group has no assessable
profits arising in Sweden.

——FXA=THILEE

12. FiRRESR (&)

BE_ T - R _FT-_FTFH
—tELFE RIEAKIZZHER
M&mTﬂ%%ﬁmiﬁ Gy ACEE!

EA$7,<@B/\EHI 1B 1 HI 15 | 1 I
PR A R R A A - #R I Rl I R b
EFERELEE -

2021 2020
—B--F —TTE
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing  Discontinued
operations operations operations operations
BECEER CRLCEER BROEK BRIEEESH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TAT TR
Current tax for the year FREETE
Japan BA 10 - 10 -
Deferred tax ERHE (5,851) - ©9,111) -
Total income tax credit FEhEReR (5,841) - (9,101) -

Income tax for the year can be reconciled to the (l0ss)/
profit before income tax per the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as follows:

FRAEHAEGE 2B ERAOA
SHiR (E518), Su A HERMT

2021 2020
—B--F i e 33
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing  Discontinued
operations operations operations operations
BAIE E&IE
BFECEER gk  RBELESH BEEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET TEL FAT
(Loss)/profit before income tax ~ BriSRiAT (B518) /A (47,617) 4,879 (165,027) (11,643)
Tax on (loss)/profit before RERRRBERS R EER
income tax, calculated at the E’J%RﬂJr%E’JFﬁ SR
rates applicable to the tax )/ BHHE
jurisdictions concerned (8,904) 1,112 (32,482) (2,584)
Tax effect of expenses not TR NHE 2
deductible for tax purposes 3,331 1,060 24,361 3,281
Tax effect ofincome not taxable ~ BAMRUA R TIEE 2
for tax purposes (3,544) (2,172) 2110 (697)
Tax effect of tax losses AERTEBENTEY 2
not recognised 3,276 - 1,130 -
Total income tax credit FiEhEeasE (5,841) - (9,101) .
-z ﬁi#ﬁ o FE%‘TE&E%I’EB&QT 179



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ReMBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2021

13.

14.

180

BHE_ZE

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 30 June 2021 (2020: Nil).

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per
share is based on the loss for the year attributable to
owners of the Company and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share
based on the following data:

(Loss)/profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company for the
purpose of calculating basic and
diluted (loss)/earnings per share:

SEF

——FXA=THIEFE

13.

14.

s HEREA R E
(B518),/ BRI 2 A AT
5 ARE(E P (518)

Bz 2

ExelfEEMEE T -—F A
=t+HLEFERNERNRE(ZZEZEF
F /|

w5 (BR) &F
GRERRIE (FHR), /BRI YA

T%ﬁ)\fﬁﬁlﬂ)ﬁﬂéﬁﬁwaﬁé
TEARINEFHEEE

!HxﬁK Bi8),/ BANTETIIESE

l:l 7—"

2020
—EB_FF

HK$'000
TR

Continuing operations FEICE TS (41,776) (155,926)

Discontinued operations BRI H 75 6,411 (7,594)
Total loss from continuing operations #5482 315 & B AR IE A& &

and discontinued operations = r (35,365) (163,520)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 14. S (B518) 8% (&)

Number of shares
A EE

Weighted average number of ordinary FR{EstE &R EAR (E518),

shares for the purpose of B R 7 @ I hnmE S &

calculating basic (loss)/earnings

per share 15,695,532 15,695,532
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share amount for both years HRTEBRERTSRRELKRAESR
were not presented because the impact of the exercise REEHIE WA BEVNMEFEZ
of the share options and convertible preference shares BREE (BB BFeE BEY
was anti-dilutive. Potential ordinary shares are dilutive BN EE G S EEREIEINAR
when and only when their conversion into ordinary AEEABIEREREXRB ZERE
shares would increase loss per share attributable to 1B FEBEEME -

owners of the Company from continuing operations.
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ReMBRERME

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

182

For the year ended 30 June 2021 #HE-_ZE_-_—FXA=+HILFE

15. 95k - BE KXW

Equipment,
Right-of-use Leasehold furniture Plant and Motor
assets  Freehold land Buildings improvement  andfixtures  machinery vehicles
#fE - GRR
FREEE AAREiY B RENEEE Be4E  HEREE hE
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T AL Thr T ThL T ThL
COST: HA:
At1July 2019 RZE-NELA-H 4,560 202,63 296,529 7,406 3615 2443 1447 518,636
Additions HE - - - 163 530 182 7 2420
Lease modification REER 2049 - - - - - - 2049
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 37) ~ WEEMBA A (Hi5k37) - - - 4 - - - 4
Written off s = = = - (50) = = (50)
Exchange realignment BN AR = (587) (860) (257) (57) () () (1767)
At 30 June 2020 and 1 July 2020
6,609 202,049 295,669 8,789 4,038 2620 1518 521,292
Additions - - g - 876 454 3,554 4,884
Lease modification (814) - - - - - - (814)
Written off s = z = - 23 (239) - (259)
Disposal of subsidiaries L ERBAR = = = (2429) (1.324) (177) - (3930)
Exchange realignment EH A% = (6,069) (9,555) - 2] (39) - (15,686)
At30June 2021 R=E-—%xA=1H 5795 195,980 286,114 6,360 3,544 2622 5072 505,487
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ Z3fHER
AND IMPAIRMENT LOSSES: HEFE:
At July 2019 R=Z-nFtA-A 2876 - 16,193 6,382 2,694 75 248 29,148
Provided for the year EndE 1511 - 5907 137 33 xu7 176 8341
Written off i = = = = (18) = = (18)
Impairment loss recognised BEZAESE - 2,130 39,444 200 905 1622 764 74,286
Exchange realignment S = = (38) (259) (50) (0] - (351)
At30 une 2020 and 1 July 2020 RZEZFERA=THR
“3--%th-H 4,387 2,130 61,506 8,681 33% 2620 1,188 111,406
Provided for the year EREE 1107 - 5993 9 254 4 793 8246
Written off T = - - - 23) - - )
Impairment loss recognised BEZRERR 301 5497 7.2% 3 748 178 163 15,628
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - - - (2429) (1324) (177) - (3.930)
Exchange realignment B A% - (9%4) (2,080) - () €] - (3,052)
At30June 2021 RZE--%~A=1H 5795 33,663 72675 6,360 3,544 2622 3616 128,275
NET CARRYING AMOUNT: REFE:
At30June 2021 RZE=-5x~A=TH - 162,317 213439 = = = 1,45 3212
At 30 June 2020 e o 222 17299 234,163 108 144 - 330 409,886
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. % - BB RS (2)

(Continued)

Right-of-use assets

EHEEE

Land and

buildings

leased for

own use

BAN

HELH

kEgF

HK$'000

FHET

As at 1 July 2019 RZFE—-NFELH—H 1,684

Lease modification MEEH 2,049

Depreciation e (1,511)
Carrying amounts as at 30 June 2020 and RZZEZZFEFXXA=THK

1 July 2020 —E-TE+A-ANEEE 2,222

Lease modification MEEH (814)

Depreciation e (1,107)

Impairment loss recognised EHERREEE (301)

Carrying amounts as at 30 June 2021

R-ZE-_—FXA=+H
RIERTEE

The freehold land is situated in Japan.

Property, plant and equipment with the brought forward
net carrying amount HK$389,361,000 (2020:
HK$481,241,000) (before the impairment assessment) is
attributable to the cash-generating unit of hotel
hospitality (“Hotel Hospitality Business CGU") with which
the goodwill amount is recognised. As the recoverable
amount of the Hotel Hospitality CGU is lower than its
carrying amount, the directors of the Company
considered that an impairment loss of approximately
HK$13,605,000 (2020: HK$74,159,000) has been
recognised for the year ended 30 June 2021. Details of
the impairment assessment of that cash-generating unit
are set out in note 18.

KAERETHAIRBA o

45 88 R T R (H /5% 389,361,000 T (=&
4 1 481,241,000 7T) (F0%RE
AT 2 BEAXERBRE
ERFEzESELEM(BEREE
BIREELEMN])  EmBcECDE
BR - ARBEREFERREELSE
Uz R B EAEREE  AQ
AEERADREE T -_—F,A
ZTHILFEERBREBEY
13,605,000 7t( = & = & F:
74,159,000 70 ) » 2R S EEEMN 2
ARG FFIBENMIE18 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MEERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &ZEZE-Z-_—F A=+THIEFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

As at 30 June 2021, the Directors reviewed the
recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment
in the business segment of money lending business as
the business incurred losses. The recoverable amount
of property, plant and equipment in the business
segment of money lending business is based on the fair
value less cost of disposal. Considering the poor
operating result, the Directors are of the opinion that
the result of value-in-use calculation would be minimal.
As a result of such review, an impairment loss of
HK$2,023,000 (2020: HKS$Nil) was recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year ended 30 June 2021.

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15. MR - BER&ME (2)

RZZE-_—FAA=1+H0 AREE
¥BuEEE WESEHZRESS
HomZ - BEREEZATKESEE -
BEEBIB2ME  BEREZHEZ
AU El € TR A FEREHEKAE
e ZRICEEBWTIEL  EEF
RRETRABEZGFEEREN - ER
EHERN AARIEREBE_T=—
FRAZTHLEFREZHEEEZEKS
K ERBAEEE 2,023,008 T(ZF
—EF - THT) o

16. B ME

2020

—E-TE

HK$'000

FHEIT

At beginning of the year F1 19,400 -
Addition through acquisition of a FRFEBUYEE—FEHERQF

subsidiary during the year MARE - 18,941

Direct costs attributable to the addition 7 & f& {5 B 2 B AR - 20

Surplus on revaluation of investment & &%~ E{L R
properties 200 439
At end of the year F 19,600 19,400

The fair value of the Company’s investment properties
at 30 June 2021 and 2020 has been assessed by an
independent professional valuer. Surplus on revaluation
of HK$200,000 (2020: net deficit of HK$1,261,000) has
been recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 30
June 2021.

As at 30 June 2021, investment properties in Hong Kong
with an aggregate carrying value of HK$19,600,000
(2020: HK$19,400,000) have been pledged to secure
borrowing facilities granted to the Group (note 27).

KRB —FR_ZE_FF A=+
B ARREEMEZAFETIEE
VEEGEMETHGE - ARAFER
Eki_?_ FEXNAZTHILEEEZ
¢§ EPEEE & {5 & £200,000% 7T (=
TF  ESALERE 1,261,000587T) °

R-ZTE-_—FA=Z+H EEAE
£19,600,0008 T( = & = & F:
19,400,000 7)) 2 BB EMHEE E
B LMERASEEEZEERE
(MF5E27) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. |HEME &)
Fair value hierarchy DR EER
The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 WEMENTELEEIREEEATE
recurring fair value measurement. A reconciliation of e FYINFRATELGERE
the opening and closing fair value balance is provided FIEOR o
below.

2020
— -

—= —=

HK$'000
THET

Opening balance (level 3 recurring FEE R

fair value) (BIMLEEMRTE) 19,400 -
Acquisition during the year FRUEE - 18,941
Direct costs attributable to the W e (G BB R AR

acquisition - 20
Surplus on revaluation of investment & &% 2 &L R

properties 200 439
Closing balance (level 3 recurring F R At

fair value) (B3P EMRATE) 19,600 19,400

Change in unrealised gains for the HAB<A=1H

period included in profit or loss s EET ABm 2
for assets held at 30 June KRR 200 439

TEFFR o BRFEFEKEERAT 185
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ReMBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2021

16.

186

BHE_ZE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the years ended 30 June 2021 and 2020, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Company’s policy is
to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.

For the fair value measurement for investment
properties in Hong Kong under direct comparison
method, it is assumed that each of the properties is
capable of being sold in its existing state with the
benefit of vacant possession and by making reference
to comparable sales evidence as available in the
relevant markets.

One of the key inputs used under direct comparison
method in valuing the investment properties was the
price per square feet and taking into account of location
and other individual factors. The price per square feet
used is HK$8,665 (2020: HK$8,586 to HK$46,030). An
increase in the price per square feet would result in an
increase in the fair value measurement of the
investment properties, and vice versa.

The fair value measurement is based on the above
properties’ highest and best use, which does not differ
from their actual use.

——FXA=THIEFE

16.

B’EME2)

ANEESERE)
REE-_ZE-_—FK_FT-_FF A
“+HHLEE F1HRF2H MY
EERIEE  NEBEEBAZEIRIA
FIREL - KRR ZBRANRERIE
BB ZMEPARERS A FEEZER
Z B2 BRIFR o

?MET)%ET%tt%*&)i?r%%%&iﬁ%%

RFEMS  BRBERSEVEIR
HBERXEHE Iaﬂ%ﬁﬁéﬁ‘ﬁ%
AR AL BIHERE

TEEBREMER  REBEEBELEAE
BZEEBE@ABEz—ABEFAIRE
% BB RMNENEMENEZE -
FTRESFHRERBSLSBIL(ZE
—ZF : 8,586 L E 46,0308 L) °
FHFREREASERIREMELTF
BEFF 2N RZIMAR -

Q$T§E+§E$E?FJ:L‘%%ZE%&

RERS ZESARREEREARY
A -
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e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &HZE—-ZT—

—SEARA=THLEFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

17. ELRE

Non-
Production  competition Sales backlog
formula  agreements  agreements Total
EERA THEHE HEHSE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FTHT THT
COST: B
At 1July 2019 RZZE-h&t+tA—H 135,331 35,823 13,902 185,556
Exchange realignment 0 5, 2 (1,333 (352) (137) (1,822)
At 30 June 2020 and R-ZE-TF
1 July 2020 AV B =4
—E-FTE+A—H 134,498 35,471 13,765 183,734
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKB AT (153,030) (40,358) (15,662) (209,050)
Exchange realignment B 5 R 18,532 4,887 1,897 25,316
At 30 June 2021 RZEZ—F
~NA=t1H - - - -
ACCUMULATED R BHERRESE
AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES:
At 1July 2019 RZE-nE+tA—H 135,331 35,823 13,902 185,556
Exchange realignment B 5B (1,333) (352) (137) (1,822)
At 30 June 2020 and R-Z-TF
1 July 2020 NAZTHK
—E-FF+A—H 134,498 35,471 13,765 183,734
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHRB AR (153,030) (40,358) (15,662) (209,050)
Exchange realignment fE 5 AR 18,532 4,887 1,897 25,316
At 30 June 2021 RZE=——
~NA=t1H - - - -
NET CARRYING AMOUNT: BR[E E{E
At 30 June 2021 N=F=—
ANA=t1H - - - -
At 30 June 2020 RZE-FF
NA=ZTH = - i _
“T - FE e BRFEREEERAT 187



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ReMBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &ZEZE-Z-_—F A=+THIEFE

18.

188

GOODWILL 18. &
HK$'000
FH&T
COST: RN
At 1July 2019 RZZE—-NFtA—H 110,385
Exchange realignment PE W 2 (689)
At 30 June 2020 and 1 July 2020 RZZEZZEFA=THK
—E-ZTF+H—H 109,696
Exchange realignment ek 5,722
Disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR (59,974)
At 30 June 2021 RZZT=——FA=+H 55,444
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSSES: REBEESE :
At 1 July 2019 R—E—N&F+tHA—H 53,235
Impairment loss during the year FRRERE 56,984
Exchange realignment PE A SR (523)
At 30 June 2020 and 1 July 2020 RZZE_ZEFA=+HK
—E-FF+H—H 109,696
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR (59,974)
Exchange realignment bE H, B 5,722
At 30 June 2021 R-E—_—%FA=+H 55,444
NET CARRYING AMOUNT: BRENFE :
At 30 June 2021 RZZE—_—FA=+H =
At 30 June 2020 RZEZZTFA=1+H =
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is RETRENS  BELIEZEATH
allocated to the cash generating units (“CGU") identified SRR eELEBEM((REEABM])
as follows:
HK$'000
FET
Year ended 30 June 2021 BE-_ZE_—FXA=1HILEE
Hotel hospitality business B JE BRI ST 55,444
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 #HZE—_ZE_—_—F XA=+HILFE

18. GOODWILL (Continued) 18. B8 (&)

HK$'000
TAT

Year ended 30 June 2020 BE—_ZE-_Z5XA=+tHLEE

Hotel hospitality business B E R ET 56,984

New energy business FreeRER 52,712
109,696

Notes: BizE

Hotel hospitality business SBIERIF £

The goodwill was arising from the acquisition of hotel hospitality in the
previous years. The goodwill with the carrying amount of
HK$56,984,000 (before the impairment assessment) as at 30 June 2020
is allocated to the Hotel Hospitality Business CGU. As the recoverable
amount of hotel hospitality business CGU is lower than its carrying
amount, the Directors of the Company are in opinion that full
impairment loss of HK$56,984,000 was considered for the year ended
30 June 2020.

The recoverable amount of the Hotel Hospitality Business CGU is
determined by the Directors of the Company with reference to a
valuation report issued by an independent professional valuer. The
recoverable amount of the Hotel Hospitality Business CGU has been
determined from fair value less cost of disposal, in which fair value is
primarily making reference to the recent sales of similar transactions in

HMEELEBAFEREREREEL - R =
—TFENA =+ BERAEEA 56,984,000 T (F1k
WE G ZEENOEEBERFEERE
EEBMN RN BEEREESRSESLEM A
WESEERERAE  MARREERE  #
ECECTEANACTHLEEEEERERER
18/56,984,0007 7T °

BERFEBRSELBM 2 W@ SEHER
7%%i‘“%%?ﬁl%%fﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ?’f%ﬁ@iﬁiﬁﬁ

E o BEERGREBREELEM 2RO
TJEE’/}J?E/J%H%EXZKWEE mAFEEIES
ZMin B SHE - MHERATIIZE
FHERTFEMN35% (ZF=FF : 35%)HH - It

the market and cost of disposal is estimated at 3.5% (2020: 3.5%) of IRIBEBEIPEEHAFEE °

assessed fair value. It is Level 3 recurring fair value measurement.

BEMANIESATIHERGARBERTFHY -
AR BEIR(E - ZFEEZMMRELK -
DNFHEREERARN A HEFEBE - RZTA

The key significant unobservable input to determine is the discount on
age, location and condition. The higher discount on these factors
would result in the lower in the fair value measurement of the fair
value less cost of disposal, and vice versa.
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 &ZEZE-Z-_—F A=+THIEFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REBREATFIZHEE
2020
—ETF
HK$'000
FET
At beginning of the year REH] 12,989 -
Acquisition of associates IgE AN - 15,600
Share of loss for the year DR EANEE (5,619) (2,611)
Impairment loss recognised FRERZ REEE
for the year (3,883) =
At end of the year RER 3,487 12,989
Details of the Group's associates are as follows: ANEB 2B ENRIZEIFHT :
Particulars of Place of Percentage of
Name of company issued capital incorporation interest held Principal activities
NGRS ERITRARE T X 3L b 26 FEREE AL FEEK
2021 2020
—E--F —T-%F
Zhongke International  HK$10,000 Hong Kong Nil (Note i) 49% Dormant
Finance Limited
("Zhongke")
FRIERERARAR 10,0007 Bk & (feEi) 49% WELEER
(TH®D)
Ming Fong Group HK$10,000 Hong Kong 31.2% 31.2% Manufacturing and selling of
Limited (“Ming Fong") ink and packaging materials
and trading of water-based
ink business
HESBEZERARADA 1000087 Bk 31.2% 31.2% HERBEERERBE
([eAZ]) MEHAR B E KM
BB
Note: M=k
0) Zhongke was dissolved on 5 February 2021. (0} FRIR=ZZE=—F=—ARAHEMEH -
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. RBVEQTRICHER (7)

The summarised financial information of the Ming Fong BRE2NHMEB AR ([BHLEE]) /T
and its subsidiaries (“Ming Fong Group”) extracted from ﬁ“ BRI E T TJ B HEHEEC
its management accounts for the years ended 30 June KT _FFA=1THIE
2021 and 2020 is as follows: ifﬂ’] EERE -
2021
—E_—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&ET FHIT
Ming Fong Group e EE
As at 30 June RANB=1+H
Current assets mENEE 11,235 3,506
Non-current assets EmBEE - 109,707
Current liabilities mEEE (60) (66,786)
Non-current liabilities JEmMEAE = (17,247)
Net Assets EEFE 11,175 29,186
Reconciliation to the Group’s rEERAERENER
interest in Ming Fong Group: HIEIBR
Proportion of the Group’s ownership A& & E’]}%ﬁ%tt 1l 31.2% 31.2%
Group's share of net assets of the AEED (R E AR BE
associate FE 3,487 9,106
Goodwill on acquisition W EE R = 3,883 3,883
Less: impairment loss recognised B FNE R EEE
for the year (3,883) -
Carrying amount of the investment & & K BREE 3,487 12,989
2020
—T-THF
HK$'000
FHIT
Revenue W zs 2,029 1,744
Loss for the year FAEE (18,011) (8,368)
Other comprehensive income Haz2mEmkA = 57
Total comprehensive income FHIRALEE (18,011) (8,368)

Dividend received from the associate B UkEk4 A =1H% & = =

Reconciliation to the Group’s AEESHHEEEES

share of result in Ming Fong HIE AR

Group:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 2 £= & &9 & #E Lk 1 31.2% 31.2%
Group’s share of loss of the associates 2N &< ] 73 1t By B & 2 &) 518 (5.619) (2,611)
Impairment loss on interests B A R 2 R B 18

in associates (3,883) i
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For the year ended 30 June 2021

19.

192

BHE_ZE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

As at 30 June 2021, given that the recent development
and operating result of Ming Fong Group, the Directors
of the Company reviewed the recoverable amount of
interests in associates, in which the goodwill amount
was recognised at the date of acquisition. The
recoverable amount of interests in associates is based
on the fair value less cost of disposal. As a result of
such review, an impairment loss of HK$3,883,000 was
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June
2021.

The fair value less cost of disposal of interests in
associates is determined by the adjusted net assets
value under cost model and is Level 3 recurring fair
value measurement.

The key significant unobservable input to determine is
the discount on age and condition of receivables. The
higher discount on these factors would result in the
lower in the fair value measurement of the fair value
less cost of disposal of interests in associates, and vice
Versa.

In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, an
associate of Zhongke is not significant to the Group as
at 30 June 2020.

The Group has not recognised its share of loss of an
associate for the year ended 30 June 2020. The carrying
amount of the Group’s interests in an associate of
HK$4,900 was fully impaired in a previous financial year.
The amount of unrecognised share of losses of that
associate extracted from the relevant unaudited
management account of that associate is as follows:

——FXA=THIEFE

19. REBIERNRIZER &)

RZE-—FXA=+H" m#m%
EEIAPERENMNEEEE  AQ
é%%@ﬁ%%@TZ%\ZTW@
TR ETEESECKKEER B
B Fﬁ%@ﬂZ%éZﬂW@@%
TR AFEREEXRASE - BREA
AER AR CREBEE-_TE-_—F
ANAZTHILEFEZGAEEKER
R RE SRR (B 5 18 3,883,000 7T °

RS R R 2 2 N FER &K
AR AEN T RHBEEFE
BT UBEIRKLHMUEQTETE -

BEMANTIEEANAHREGAR
B RRUBRIE N ARk MR RRLIR(E
ZERZMRIREA - R QA
ZREm 2 NFHEREEKRANRFE
FTEBE  RZIFA -

ARRIEERE RZF_TFXA
=+8 PRBEQARYANEELE
BAYE -

BE_Z-_FTFA=1tHILFE -

\

AEEWEERE DG sﬁ*é’ATJEﬂE"
$$@7§AH9P§./ TE’”E EEETE49OO
%ﬁé&% THWXWEV
%EZ*%%”E%%%“T%Ei
BT :

The unrecognised share of loss of an

FRARMERD (G L QA

associate for the year B8 5
Cumulative unrecognised share of Lt RER D (HHEE N A

loss of an associate B8 322
The Group has not incurred any contingent liabilities or AEBEWEFLERBE AR 2 ERE

other commitments relating to its interests in
associates.

Eﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ@ KPE o
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

20. INVENTORIES 20. #8

21.

Consumables SHAEGh 199 199
Merchandise o 50,053 46,469

50,252 46,668
TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER 21. B 5 BIRIEIE - H fih FE U =&
RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND IH-maRHAf®RE
PREPAYMENTS

Trade receivables B S pEIREEIR 1,748 2477
Less: Provision for impairment losses & : (B E5 BB (1,296) (2,058)
Trade receivables, net (note a) B 5 R AR S (fifita) 452 419
Other receivables (note b) H fth & Y5k 38 (BT 5ED) 74,752 80,710
Other deposits and prepayments  HEtiZ & R FIA 5,419 9,097
80,623 90,226
Note: PIE
(@  The Group allows an average credit period of 0 to 90 days to its @ AKBEGTHEZREKEBAFHEESEN
trade receivables. F0ZE9H °
The ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of provision for BERAMBMRAEBRBRERIHS
impairment losses, based on invoice date, is as follows: e ERTARR B DATAN T

2020
—E-FTF

= —=

HK$'000

Within 30 days 30BR 411 319
31-60 days 3ME60H 20 11
61-90 days 61290H - 10
Over 90 days 908 A E 21 79

452 419
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 #HE-_ZE_-_—FXA=+HILFE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER 21.

& H
RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND H - BReRAEAMREE)

PREPAYMENTS (continued)
Note: (Continued) M -

The movements in the expected credit loss for trade receivables
for the years ended 30 June 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

YRR IR - H b R MG R

(&)

HE_T_—#R_F_PEAA=+A
\EFEE B REE S R R
o

2020
—EEF
HK$'000
FT
At 1 July RntEA—AR 2,058 2,121
Reversal of impairment loss BB E R (374) =
Disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR (578) =
Exchange realignment JE 5 F = 190 (63)
As at 30 June RANA=+AH 1,296 2,058
(b)  Other receivables mainly represented redemption of investment b)) HMEKKBEEAR-_T=—FA8

fund of HK$61,242,000 as at 30 June 2021 (2020:
HK$61,242,000). This was fully settled subsequent to the
reporting date of 30 June 2021. Other receivables as at 30 June
2020 also included consideration receivables in relation to the
disposal of Miracle True Investment Limited of HK$7,000,000,
which was fully settled subsequently.

The movements in the expected credit loss for the other
receivables and deposits for the years ended 30 June 2021 and
2020 are as follows:

= TREEREES 61,242,000 (=&
T 1 61,242,00077T) © B B RIBR R
EHH(CE_—FNA=Z1+H)RERH
Bt e RZT_TFEXA=THMEME
KB ESBHERYIRERR AR
B FE U X8 7,000,000 7T Mz S 78 E
B EBEEN -

HE_Z-_—FR-_ZT-_FFA=1+H
IFFEEMERFIBRZESHEREEES
BEFHIT :

2020

—EEF

HK$'000

FHTT

At 1 July RntA—AH 4,912 142
Expected credit loss for the year FRTEMEEEE 1,937 4,767
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR (9) =
Exchange realignment bE 7 3
As at 30 June RANA=+8 6,847 4,912
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

22. LOANS RECEIVABLE

22. BERE®

Gross loan and interest receivables  EE L FI 2 48% 241,638 222,238
Less: impairment losses allowances 3 : AEKTEF?TET%% (175,747) (168,401)

65,891 53,837
Less: Non-Current portion B IEMEIER D (554) (1,423)
Current portion mENER D 65,337 52,414

As at 30 June 2021, the loans receivable with gross
principal amount of HK$200,562,000 (2020:
HK$201,808,000) in aggregate and related gross interest
receivables of HK$41,076,000 (2020: HK$20,430,000)
were due from ten (2020: ten) independent third parties.
These loans are interest-bearing at rates ranging from
5.5% to 20% (2020: 5.5% to 20%) per annum. Except for
the balances of HK$554,000 (2020: HK$1,423,000) as at
30 June 2021, all the loan receivables were repayable
within twelve months from the end of the reporting
period and therefore were classified as current assets.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group held collateral over loans
receivable with gross principal amount of
HK$85,155,000 (2020: HK$85,243,000).

Reversal of impairment loss of HK$8,824,000 (2020:
Impairment loss of HK$18,734,000) has been recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 30 June 2021.

Subsequent to the reporting date of 30 June 2021, one
of the loans receivable has been set off by the
consideration of the acquisition of 2.08% of issued
share capital of Zzhong Ji Longevity Science Group
Limited (stock code: 767) as at 13 September 2021 at
the consideration of HK$43,781,000, representing
approximately HK$0.5428 per sale share. The acquisition
was completed on 13 September 2021. Details of the
transaction are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 13 September 2021.

—7

)\5/\‘\::5:_@5/\\)%_"1’5 ﬁﬁ”&""
Z(ZEZTF  +R)BUFE=ZFAK
@ﬁ@%ﬁm,\200562000,%75(_2:73
£F 1 201,808,000/ 7T ) 2 U E F & AR
8 e Uk 1| B 4858 41,076,000/ T (=&
— T 120,430,000 TC) c ZEER
RERRSSBENE(ZT-_TF : 55
EZ20E):HE - RRZZE=Z—F/XA
=+ EHMES540008 T (2 -8
F 11,423,000 7T) 4) - FrEERIE R
ARBERRET—@ARNEE A
HESEBRBEE -

%:Ji—ﬂz/\ﬂ +E| $§E</ﬁ
R4 48%8 /585,155,000 T (ZE-F
F :85243,0008 L) c EKERIFE
Tﬁﬁuu"

RE BT8R @ 8,824,000/ T (ZE-F
F R EETE 18,734,000 7T ) B RN E
E_E-_—FXNA=1THILFENLG
/El\ji\ﬁl'lﬂz %’:PEE%\"

RIREHEEN =Z = —E/\H +8)
CER—HEWEREAR-Z
—T—FAATZHETHRESEER
BREE ZUWBETEALRARE
43,781,000 7T (H8E R F AR E IR D
#405428 L) WEHF ERSEIZEE
BERRAT(RHBARR : 767) H2.08% E
BIIRA - ZWBEER_ZT—_—F
NAT=A%K - ZEXSFBHR
AXRralAAE=-T-_—FNLA+=AH

E/j'\tto

SN
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 &ZEZE-Z-_—F A=+THIEFE

22. LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued) 22. BUgER (@)
The movements in the impairment losses allowances
for loans receivable for the years ended 30 June 2021

and 2020 are as follows:

HE_ZE-_—Fh_F-_FFH
T HLEFE BRERZREEIE
BEEBHNT

2020
—EEF
HK$°000
FET
At 1 July Az = 168,401 141,361
(Reversal of expected credit loss)/ FAN(EHEEBERD),
expected credit loss for the year REEEEE (8,824) 18,734
Adjustment on interest receivables  FABBEERELZ
arising from the impaired loans JFE Y 1 B, 16,170 8,306
At 30 June RANA=+H 175,747 168,401
Reconciliation of gross carrying amount for loan HEz_—_ZTT - —F &_ = _ZF XA
receivables for the years ended 30 June 2021 and 2020 S TRLEFERVEREEEBBE CH

are as follows:

BRNR :

Stage1 Stage2  Stage3
FIRE F2RBR FIRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TR FET
Balance at 1 July 2019 RZE—NEFE+tH—B &% 19,332 103,012 111,366 233,710
Financing originated py=| aaﬂé 813 3,709 16,685 21,207
Repayment B - (1,904)  (30,775)  (32,679)
Transfer B (20,145)  (86,300) 106,445 -
Balance at30June2020and ~ M-ZE-_TFXA=+HRK
1July 2020 —E-TELA-H2EH - 18517 203,721 222,238
Financing originated REREE - 1,027 20,086 21,113
Repayment BN = (1,344) (369)  (1,713)
Balance at 30 June 2021 RZZZ—-FXA=+AHZ
& - 18,200 223,438 241,638
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

22. LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued) 22.

EkRER 2
BE-_ZE-_ K24 ,H

Movements in the expected credit loss in respect of

23.

loan receivables for the years ended 30 June 2021 and
2020 are as follows:

=tHLEE  EHREKEFRNES

EEBIREHWT

Stage 1 Stage 2
F1BER  F2RER
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Balance at 1 July 2019 RZZE—NFtA—B2&EH 1,066 72,070 68,225 141,361
Expected credit loss EHEEER - 1,211 17,523 18,734
Adjustment on interest FEEWF S
receivables - - 8,306 8,306
Transfer R (1,066) (71,0006) 72,072 -
Balance at 30 June 2020 and RZZEZZTFESA=THEK
1 July 2020 —TTFELA—RAZEHR - 2275 166,126 168,401
Expected credit loss/(reversal of & £f *‘éﬁéﬂa v
expected credit 10sS) (FEH=EEi8%@) - 526 (9,350) (8,824)
Adjustment on interest R FEULF B,
receivables - - 16,170 16,170
Balance at 30 June 2021 RZZE-_—F~A=tHZ
ek = 2,801 172,946 175,747

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Compensation from profit guarantee

it MR B w1 (FY 5 (@)

23. FEAFEHARNRZEMEE

2020
—TTF

HK$'000
T

)

(note (a)) 7,500 10,000
Unlisted private funds (note (b)) JEFMAAFES (B D)) 59,805 58,769
67,305 68,769

Less: Non-current portion B IEREE D (59,805) (58,769)
current portion mBNEL o 7,500 10,000

—FER o BRHMEREEERAT
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E-F

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

198

Notes:

(@)

0On 29 May 2015, the Company issued 700,000,000 consideration
shares as the consideration for the acquisition of 85% issued
share capital of Delta Prestige Group.

Pursuant to the acquisition agreement, the vendor has
irrevocably warranted and guaranteed to the Company that the
after-tax audited consolidated net profit of Delta Prestige Group
in accordance with Hong Kong generally accepted accounting
principles for the year ending 30 June 2016 shall not be less
than HK$100,000,000 (the “Profit Target”). In case Delta Prestige
Group cannot achieve the Profit Target, the vendor will
compensate to the Company in cash. The compensation is
calculated in accordance with the following formula:

The compensation = Profit Target — Audited net profit

If Delta Prestige Group records an audited net loss for the year
ending 30 June 2016, the audited net profit will be deemed as
zero for the purpose of calculation of the compensation.

With reference to the operating resulting of the Electric Cycle
CGU for the year ended 30 June 2016, the Directors are of the
opinion that the electric cycles business is not likely to meet the
Profit Target. The fair value of compensation from profit
guarantee is determined by the Directors with reference to the
actual financial result of the Delta Prestige Group for the year
ended 30 June 2016.

On 26 September 2016, the vendor and the Company entered
into a settlement deed regarding the settlement of the
compensation from profit guarantee of HK$100,000,000 and the
additional amount of compensation of HK$850,000. On 28
September 2018, the Company and the vendor entered into a
supplemental settlement deed to further extend the settlement
on the remaining amount of the compensation and additional
amount of compensation to 31 March 2019 and entitle the one-
off additional compensation of HK$500,000. On 27 September
2019, the Company and the vendor entered into the second
supplemental settlement deed to further extend the settlement
on the remaining amount of the compensation and additional
amount of compensation to 30 September 2020 and entitle the
one-off additional compensation of HK$400,000. On 7
September 2020, the Company and the vendor entered into
third supplemental settlement deed to further extend the
settlement on the remaining amount of the compensation and
additional amount of compensation to 30 September 2021 and
entitle the one-off additional compensation of HK$170,000.
Subsequent to the reporting date of 30 June 2021, the vendor
has fully settled the outstanding balance of the compensation.

For the year ended 30 June 2021, no fair value change of
compensation from profit guarantee (2020: Nil) was recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The fair value of compensation from profit guarantee is a Level
3 recurring fair value measurement. The details of assessment
are set out in note 5(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

——FXA=THIEFE

(%)
P -

()
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23. BAFEHARBZEMEE

RZZT—RAFARAZ+NA  KADAET
700,000,000 B HLBR 1D - {EARWKIBEIRIE
ERE85% B HITRAZRE -

BEKERE  BHCEARRTAHE
WIREBERER ERECEEREE-Z
—RNEANAZTHLEFERESLRE:
R E 2 BB EEZG A ERER D
100,000,000 7t ([@F B %)) - f=R=0E
EEBEMEREEIRFBE - EHBMA
RAFHEHRBR S HE - MERATARG
/é’ .

ZHr O

fHE =R B R — EERAT

HWEEREEERERBE_Z— X EXA
=T REFESSEERRERFE - A
SHERET S RERATBRERT -

K2EZBYPETERSELBUERE"T
—RNFERA=THILEFEZEEXER
EERABHATEEB A GLED
FER - HANREMELAFEIHES
REERFECEEBRE_ZT—RFXA
= TRLEFEZERVBERERET -

RZE—RELAZ+AE BEFEEA
A)BE1E 15 5 FI AR 75 4 & 100,000,000 7 7T 40
B SN E £ 55 850,0008 TT AT 3B (B H% -
R-ZZE-NFEAAZF+NAB  AATHE
FRIMATTBERE - E— BRI
BeERBEIMGESEZEEHRERSE
—E-NFE=A=1+—8 TEEESE—
R %8 51 4 1 500,000 T c RZE—
FNA=-+tE ARABREHILEZ
DHABERE  WE—SEHRTHES
BREINGESEZBEPRRERE T
—EFAR=+H THEES - RMLE
SN B 400,000 R=ZZE=TF 1A
+H - ARAIEREF B =BETEE
RE - NE—TERTHESEREING
BBz EAEPRERE-_T-_—FNA
=+tH UTERES - RUEEINHE
170,000 7T - REBHI(ZZE=Z—F <
A=+tH)% BEFEZEEERBEZR
B -

BE—ZT-—FA=ZTHLFE #E
IRAR S 2 UK 8 R FE R A AR S (B
ZATEESH(—F_FF &) -

BHRBHEZAFEBFEIRLFHEA
FEEE - FHEF BRI GRS M B REM
7L 5(D) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021

23.

24.

HE—_Z—

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) For the year ended 30 June 2021, the fair value gain of unlisted
private fund was HK$1,036,000 (2020: HK$9,997,000) which has
been dealt with in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2021.

The fair value of the unlisted private fund is Level 2 recurring fair
value measurement. The details of assessment are set out in
note 5(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND
DEPOSITS IN A FINANCIAL
INSTITUTION

Bank balances and cash

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods ranging from one day to three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The bank balances are
deposited with creditworthy financial institutions with
no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of
the bank deposits and bank balances and cash
approximate to their fair values.

Bank balances as at 30 June 2021 of HK$3,133,000
(2020: HK$6,763,000) are denominated in RMB, which
are placed with banks in the PRC.

RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies.
Under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

— = —

=

—SEARA=THLEFE

23.

24.

—FER o BRHERKEEERAF

BAFEMARSZEMEE

(%&)

BieE - (&)

b BHE-ZT-_—FXA=+THLEFE kL
MR AZEE AT EYR2E5 1,036,000 7T
(ZZ-FF : 9,997,000/ 7T) * Z&ED
REE_ZT=—FNA=ZTHIEFEMNELR
AP ERPEIE -

FLEAMAEENATFEBFE 2RZEN
AP ENE - FHEFHBENGEATBERE
MIEE5(b) ©

R 1THS B B Bl & KL B 1t o 1
WM™

RITERRRE
RITRSBEFARTERNEZZH
M EEREF B - BHEBRFRZFR
PNF—BE=BATE RIELE
B ARREFRME  LIREEH
TE B SRA R EREK B, o SRITAESRTTF
BAEEBRF AROY EIERCERL
TR - RITERARBITERK
ReZREEEERQFEES -

RIBE-—FA=ZTHNRITER
3,133,000/ T (— B =F4F : 6,763,000
BIT) ITAARERE  XFERFES
EX

AREATERABEAEMER - R
BEPBEAEINEEGERRGE - &
[ERMEEERE  AEBEEEEB
EREETIINERH ZRITBARE
ABMAEME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ReMBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &ZEZE-Z-_—F A=+THIEFE

24. BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND 24. BTHKBRRAURR &R
DEPOSITS IN A FINANCIAL WZERE)
INSTITUTION (continued)
Deposits in a financial institution NERBEZER
As at 30 June 2021, HK$318,384,000 was placed in a R-ZEBE-—FXA=1+H ' AAFMA
creditworthy licensed financial institution with no recent EERFBABTEENLEZFE
history of default. The short term time deposits earn & RO TS 17 7 318,384,00078 7T - A #
interest at the respective short term time deposits 52 HATE BA 77 SR AE 8 52 HA TF BR 77 SR A
rates. K BREUF B, o
The carrying amounts of all the deposits in a financial REmMBEZ2BEFERZEMETIA
institution are denominated in HK$ which approximate BITEHE  EEAFERSE °

to their fair values.

25. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES 25. B ZEFIRIE - HthfEfIRIA
AND ACCRUALS REsEH

2{020]
—ETF
HK$°000
FET
Trade payables (note (a)) B Z R (Mt (@) 2,460 1,462
Other payables and accruals (note (b)) E1th Bt K18 N e+ & F
(F=E (D)) 5,449 12,786
7,909 14,248
Notes: BSE -
(a) The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on invoice date, is (@) MR EQHH B S EMNEEER ST
as follows: T :
2021 2020
—BE-—f —EEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Within 30 days 30HA 2,349 728
31-60 days 31E260H 75 62
61-90 days 61E290H 14 564
Over 90 days 90 B A E 22 108
2,460 1,462
(b)  As at 30 June 2021, other payables and accruals consists of b)) RZT=Z—FA=1+RH  HEMKE
accrued audit fee of HK$1,900,000 (2020: HK$2,080,000). KIEstE B eEETERT & A 1,900,000

TT(ZZT T4 : 2,080,000/87T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 26. SWER
The contract liabilities mainly represented the advance AHBEBETFTEACDHUBRERLNTEMRK
consideration received from customers. The Group will B AEBBNRERIZNE(FEEARN K
recognise the expected revenue in the future when or A2 1ME A B A ) BERARRTEH S

as the goods is delivered, which is expected to occur
within the next 12 month.

Movement of contract liabilities EHEBNEH
2020
—E-FTHF
HK$'000
FATT
Balance as at 1 July Rt A — B8 2,275 2,794
Decrease in contract liabilities as a AFEANERRESEYAE
result of recognising revenue Vo
during the year (34) (595)
Increase in contract liabilities as a A< G 4 a B
result of receipt in advance 138 86
Exchange realignment PE 3 3 & 279 (10)
Balance as at 30 June RNA=1TBm4E% 2,658 2,275
27. BORROWINGS 27. &8
2020
—E-EF
HK$'000
FTATT
Bank loans, secured BEHRETER 116,549 128,671
Other loan, secured BIEFEMETK 12,000 12,000
128,549 140,671
Less: Current portion B mEE S (128,549) (20,659)
Non-current portion JEmBNE - 120,012
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For the year ended 30 June 2021

27.

202

HE—_Z—

—FRNA=THLEFE

BORROWINGS (Continued)

Based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements and ignore the effect of any repayment
on demand clause, borrowings are repayable as follows:

27. B8 #)

REEXGHAEFAERBHAY
B REFMREREEGR2EE
fEEARIA T HREERE

2020

—EEF

HK$'000

FET

Within one year or on demand —FRNHIZBERER 128,549 20,659
More than one year, but not ZH—FETBBMRF

exceeding two years - 119,785
More than two years, but not ZRMFETBBASF

exceeding five years - 227

128,549 140,671

Bank loans were secured by (i) land and building with
the carrying amount of HK$375,756,000 (2020:
HK$407,082,000) (note 15); (i) the bank balances of
HK$1,126,000 (2020: HK$6,138,000); and (iii) the entire
equity interest of certain subsidiary as at 30 June 2021
and 2020.

The abovementioned bank loans are charged at floating
rates of 0.75% per annum (2020: 0.75% per annum).

Other loan is secured by a legal charge over investment
properties with the carrying amount of HK$19,600,000
(2020: HK$19,400,000) and is charged at 9% per annum
(2020: 9% per annum).

$R 77 B T () BR E & & 375,756,000 7%
T (=T T4 : 407,082,000 7T) 2
+ b & #Z F (B FE15) 5 ()8R 17 45 &4
1,126,00078 7T (ZZE =4 : 6,138,000
BIr) R EEHNBRARNR T =—
FERN_ZE_EFAZ+HEIRE
{EHR I -

ERRITERDILFBFMEOTSE
(Z2—_2F : FRROIBE)FE -

H i & 5 A BR H {8 /19,600,000 7% 7T
(ZZ=F4F : 19,400,000 7T) H)I% &
WMELZERCIEEM - WIRFENKRIE
(Z2=_2F : FRRIBE)FE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

28. LEASE LIABILITIES 28. lHE &R
The amount included in the consolidated statement of CABBRRESEBEERERE
financial position in respect of the carrying amounts of EmENENSEESHNSEELT :
lease liabilities and the movements during the year is as
follows:
Land and Motor
buildings vehicles Total
T REF AE #et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHEL FET
As at 1July 2019 RZE—NFt+tA—H 4,598 135 4,733
Lease modification AEBN 2,049 = 2,049
Interest expenses FIERAY 230 - 230
Lease payments MENK (2,610) (64) (2,674)
Derecognition of lease liabilities RIFERHEERRE (44) (70) (114)
Exchange realignment b KR 97) (1) (98)

Asat30June2020and 1July 2020 MRZZEZZF A=+HK

“E-TFLA—H 4,126 - 4,126
Interest expenses FEFAZ 9% - 94
Lease payments MENT (1,768) - (1,768)
Derecognition of lease liabilities RIERAHERRE (836) a (836)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHRBAR (1,298) - (1,298)
As at 30 June 2021 R-ZE-—%xB=1+H 318 - 318
Future lease payments are due as follows: AREENROE BB ROT ¢
2020
—TTF
HK$'000
FHIT
Minimum lease payment due RATRRZ| AN &ERE
(NE-
— Within one year ——FQR 322 2,841
— In the second to fifth years, —E_EFRF
inclusive (EEMSBEENRN) S 1,446
322 4,287
Less: future interest expenses B RRFE R (4) (161)
Present value of lease liabilities HEBEREAE 318 4,126
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28. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued) 28. HE AR B
The present value of future lease payments are KK EMNFTIRBEHDH -
analysed as:
2020
—EEF
HK$'000
FET
Current liabilities mEE R 318 2,708
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE - 1,418
318 4,126

2020
—E-FF

HK$'000
TAET

Short term leases expenses MHIRERY 251 1,458

Aggregate undiscounted commitments %2 HAFR & YR BL IR AGE 1A 58
for short term leases 251 1,458

29. AMOUNT DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING 29. [Ef}JEZRERRIA
INTERESTS

The amount due was unsecured, interest-free and EERELAERRT  2RERIKERE
repayable on demand. j

o

i
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

30. DEFERRED TAX 30. iEERIR
Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences B AE R 0B T ER P AN £ B 4K L BT AE B0
under the liability method using applicable tax rates e ERAHRE  NaEERERE
prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group e o

operates.

The following is the major deferred tax liabilities
recognised by the Group and their movements are:

MTFMK%IEE%E Rz ERELEHIA
BELREEZFHISE)

Fair value
adjustment
arising from
business

combination
EBREHEL
ZRAVERE
HK$'000
FET

At 1 July 2019 Rn= nﬁtﬁ B 71,928
Credited to profit or loss for the year (note 12) .:Jr)\ﬁﬁq%a $(FfEE12) 9,111
Exchange realignment ME H, B (208)

At 30 June 2020 and 1 July 2020 R-ZB-ZEFX<A=T1H

k= E_iﬁﬁ—tﬁ =] 62,609
Credited to profit or loss for the year (note 12) s+ AEANEz (3L 12) (5,851)
Exchange realignment e H (1,492)
At 30 June 2021 R=-ZEB=-—FxA=1+H 55,266

As at 30 June 2021, the Group has estimated unused tax
losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$89,021,000 (2020:
HK$99,107,000), subject to the agreement of Inland
Revenue Department, that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. As at 30 June
2021, the Group has estimated unused tax losses arising
in the PRC amounted to HK$35,614,000 (2020:
HK$52,530,000) which are available for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies will expire at
various dates for a maximum period of five years from
the reporting date. As at 30 June 2021, the Group has
no estimated unused tax losses arising in Sweden (2020:
HK$37,986,000), subject to the agreement of tax bureau
in Sweden, that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which
the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these estimated unused tax
losses as these were incurred by the companies that
have been loss-making for some time.

RZEBE-_—FXA=+tHBH ' x&£H
EEBELE LA RBABE
&5 $889,021,0007 jt( = & = T 4 :
99,107,000 7T ) ] £ [R5 A 1E 1 65 8%
BEE AR 2 RKRERT G -
BEBRBRERE N_T_—F/<A
=t+H AEBEFRELEZEEE
&h) /3 F5i 18 5 18 35,614,000 T (ZE =
Z 4 : 52,530,000 7T) SRR B T
(ZEABBESBHEARF) @R

A AEEEZER R Z A KRER H
ﬂ°%:;:—iﬂﬂ_+ﬁ KEE
BB EEL G AREAREE
B(ZZ_F4F :37,986,000/87C) * Iff
BAFHANRERREERAEE &
FRIE ERAEREEEEEZ
NAElZ RRERTEF o KA AW E
MZEET A AR EEBERIELT
HEEE BERAAZSHETADAM
EEBHOHREEE BEREZA

BIFTELE -
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31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. i&F

Number of
shares Amount
A EE NEE

‘000 HK$'000
TRz FHET

Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 eachat W-ZE_ZTFN_FT_—F
30 June 2020 and 2021 NAZTHEESREE
0.058 7T 2 Eifmhk

Authorised: JETE
At 1 July 2019, 30 June 2020, R=F—-NEtA—A8"
1 July 2020 and 30 June 2021 —E-ZEFXNA=1H-
—E-ZEFEtA—-HK
—E-_—%XHA=1+H 30,000,000 1,500,000
Number of
shares Amount
RE AR NEE
‘000 HK$'000
T Ri% FHEIT
Issued and fully paid: BEITEHTE
At 1 July 2019, 30 June 2020, R=ZF—NFtHA—A8"
1 July 2020 and 30 June 2021 —E-_EFXA=1+H"
—E-FEFELA-BAK
—E-—FXA=1+H 15,695,532 784,776
32. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 32. SEIEH
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated ﬁié%ﬁ%ﬁﬁi@gﬁﬁfﬁig
financial statements, the Group had pledged the s (IS P el
following assets to secure borrowing facilities granted EEE A A 2 R (HFE27) « 1%

BEZEEEITNT

(note 27) to the Group. The carrying amounts of these
assets are analysed as follows:

2021 2{070]

—B--—F —ETHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Property, plant and equipment M~ BB R 375,756 407,082
Investment properties KB 19,600 19,400
Bank balances RITEERR 1,126 6,138
396,482 432,620
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33. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 33. FLT MR

Share
Share  Contributed option  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total

ki $ABR  ERERE ZithR it
HK$'000 HK§000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HKS'000
Tin ThEx TiEL TAL TEL

At 1 1uly 2019 RZE-NE+A-H 1,217,887 414,226 72487 (1,599,375) 105,225
Lapse of share options BREL N - - (17483 17483 -
Recognition of equity-settled EANRAEE

share-ased payment expenses B EER - - 787 - 787

Loss and total comprehensive income ~ £RBBR2ARA
for the year it = = = (219.219) (219.219)

At30June 2020and 1July2020 R=B-FAA=tAR

ZRIRELR-A 1,217,887 414,226 55,791 (1,801,111) (113,207)

Lapse of share options BRELT - - (55,791) 55,791 -
Loss and total comprehensive income  EREBRREUA

for the year e = = = (244,068) (244,068)

At 30 June 2021 RZBZ-£xB=1H 1,217,887 414,226 = (1,989,388) (357,275)
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 34. XA FMBERAE
OF THE COMPANY

2021 2020
—E--F —TCEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHTT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREBE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NN P 3 147,954 399,506
Property, plant and equipment WE - BEREE - 998
Total non-current assets FERBEELE 147,954 400,504
Current assets REEE
Prepayments and deposit BRNFERES 9,020 11,350
Deposits in a financial institution ~ A& FIEE 2 FX 318,384 -
Bank balances and cash RIS MRS 9,025 309,522
Total current assets MENEELE 336,429 320,872
Current liabilities PN
Accruals and other payables FE=+E B R H A ER 218 379 462
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERHT B A RIIE 56,302 48,367
Lease liabilities HE&aRE 201 777
Total current liabilities BB ERE 56,882 49,606
Net current assets REBEERE 279,547 271,266
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Lease liabilities HEaRE - 201
Net assets EEZRE 427,501 671,569
EQUITY s
Share capital &7 31 784,776 784,776
Reserves B 33 (357,275) (113,207)
Total equity MR 427,501 671,569

Statement of financial position of the Company was
approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 30 September 2021 and are signed on its
behalf by:

RRARBBRARER T -_—FN
A=ZTHRERE=SHERRENZE
WHTHEEREEE

Liu Shihao
e

Cheng Chi Kin
BFE
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

35. INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL 35. FREEMEBATIZEH
SUBSIDIARIES
Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ Issued and fully interest attributable Principal activities and
Name of company establishment paid share capital to the Company place of operation
AR B MK L/ B % ERTRARRE AAREERERD L TEERRSE Y
Directly Indirectly
B &
DeTai Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Money lending in Hong Kong
BRI BERAR B5 18T WERRH
BB (M) BRAR PRC US$2,000,000 - 100%  Trading and distribution of
Guofeng Liquor & Wine Business 2,000,000% T liquor and wine in the PRC
(Sichuan) Ltd. * (note) RHEEBERHHBEEER
(PzE)
Cambridge Venture Partners Japan JPY10,000 - 100%  Hotel hospitality services in
Kabushiki Kaisha ("CVP KK") BA 10,000 B Japan
1 BARSRAL A E A5 RS
Goldkeen Limited (“Goldkeen”) Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Property investment
=RERAR([SE]) BE 1387 NERE
i The English name is for identification only & B A TBEEER
Note: BIsE -
This subsidiary is registered as wholly foreign owned enterprises under LB A RIRBRBIEEE L AINEBERE

the law of the PRC.
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 &ZEZE-Z-_—F A=+THIEFE

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(a) Disposal of the EPS Group

36. HEMEB LT
(@) HEEPS £

On 5 February 2021, the Group entered into an RZZE_—F_RhHB A%£E

210

agreement with an independent third party to
dispose of its entire equity interest of the EPS
Group at a consideration of HK$5,800,000. The
disposal has been completed on 10 February
2021. Gain on disposal amounted to HK$9,039,000

B—ZBIE=FI L A
HEENREPSEE 2 2 2% # -
R (B 45,800,000/ - HEEIA
RZE_—F_A+HBHEK- - K
£ Uk 25 59,039,000 7T © DTN

was analysed as follows:

g

Net liabilities disposed of: EHEBEFRE
Inventory rE 1,278
Trade receivables Z 5 MR 326
Prepayment and other receivables TEAS FRIE K ELAth 8 W KT8 1,423
Cash at bank RITHE 41
Amount due to non-controlling interests FE S SEVE AR i 2 SRR (44,022)
Borrowings BE (243)
Lease liabilities HEAE (1,298)
Trade payables 2 5 EMNERE (201)
Other payables and accruals HEMENFIEREGNER (8,224)
(50,550)
Add: Release of non-controlling interests A : & 1 FE¥R A AE 25 46,660
Release of exchange reserve to profit HEREHINERZEEBZ
or loss upon disposal 651
Less: Proceeds from disposal B HERT (5,800)
Gain on disposal (note 7) HE e (HEE7) (9,039)
Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement, RIBEEEWZ  ARRIKRBEFE

amount due from the EPS Group amounted to
HK$116,564,000 in the book of the Company has
been assigned to the purchaser of the EPS Group.

The cash consideration of HK$5,800,000 for the
disposal of EPS Group has been fully received by
the Group during the year.
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continved)  36. HHEMRB AT (&)

(b) Disposal of Guoyi Trading (Sichuan) (b) HEBEEE (M) ERA
Limited (“Guoyi Trading”) A(BEEHE)
On 25 November 2019, the Group entered into an R-ZE—hE+—A=-+7B8 "
agreement with an independent third party to AREFBBE—ZB/IE=HE
dispose of its entire equity interest of the Guoyi ZOUHEERBERE 2 2H
Trading at a consideration of RMB500 (equivalent Mt - RE/ARKES0T (HE
to HK$555). Gain on disposal amounted to M558 L )e & W aE A
HK$4,063,000 was analysed as follows: 4,063,000/ 7T * AT -
2020
—ETHF
HK$'000
FH&T
Net assets disposed of: EHEEESE
Other receivables BEME 1
Add: Release of exchange reserve to profit #i : H &R INE R EE B
or loss upon disposal (4,063)
(4,062)
Less: Proceeds from disposal B MBS RIR ©
Gain on disposal & am (4,063)
Net cash inflows arising on disposal HEEAZIRERAFRRE 1
The cash consideration of HK$555 from the BE_Z-_FTFA=THILHF
disposal of Guoyi Trading has been fully received B AEEE2EEREHEEE
by the Group for the year ended 30 June 2020. EEMERSRES5HETT
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—FRNA=THLEFE

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

212

(c) Disposal of Rich Shine Development

Limited (“Rich Shine")

On 25 April 2019, the Group entered into a
provisional agreement with an independent third
party to dispose of its entire equity interest of the
Rich Shine at a consideration of HK$82,820,000
and the disposal had been completed on 13
August 2019. The fair value of the investment
properties are changed from HK$81,700,000 to
HK$80,000,000 at the disposal date. Gain on
disposal amounted to HK$2,755,000 was analysed
as follows:

36. HEMB2F (2)

(c0 H & Rich Shine
Development Limited
([Rich Shine)
RZT—hEWA=+AHB ' K
SEE-ZBLE=HELBGER
&% - DA & E R Rich Shinez
2 EBAR A - X B /282,820,000 %
T HEFHERZ=ZZ—AFEN
A+t=H=K - REEHH - &
& ¥) 3 A F {8 2 81,700,000 4 7T
# /80,000,000 7T & W =
#2,755,000/7C * HATEAT

2020
—T-TF
HK$'000
FAET

Net assets disposed of: EHEEESE:
Investment properties REYSE 80,000
Prepayment and other receivables TE A FRIE K E Ath 8 W KR 65
80,065
Less: Proceeds from disposal B HE RS EIE (82,820)
Gain on disposal & (2,755)
Net cash inflows arising on disposal HEELEZRERANER 82,820

The cash consideration of HK$82,820,000 from the
disposal of Rich Shine has been fully received by
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2020. Net
cash inflows arising on disposal was
HK$82,820,000.

BEZ-_FTFA=1+HLF
€ AEBEB 2 EEE HERICh
Shine FT 1538 & X (& 82,820,000 7%
Lo HEEAZRERATER
82,820,000/ T, °
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. HEMB AR (&)
(d) Disposal of Miracle True
On 7 September 2017, the Group entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party to dispose the entire
equity interest of Miracle True at a cash
consideration of HK$11,000,000. The disposal had

(d HERE
R-ZE—+FNA LB x&EE
BB IE=HVEEW
AL EREZ 2IRE - IR
% £ {8 411,000,000 7T - &
FHEER-F-NF+_A=+1
B o &I A 1,694,000 8

been completed on 30 December 2019. Gain on = AT :
disposal amounted to HK$1,694,000 was analysed ez
as follows:
2020
—_— 7 —_— 7 EE
HK$'000
FHIT
Net assets disposed of: EHEEESE:
Property, plant and equipment L E =Nk 9,573
Cash at bank RITHEE 18
Other payables and accrual Hi BN RIEREAER (438)
9153
Add: Release of exchange reserve to m: HERELIINERFEZER
profit or loss upon disposal 153
Less: Proceeds from disposal B MBS IR (11,000)
Gain on disposal & am (1,694)
Cash consideration received BRRERE 3,000
Less: Bank balances disposed of B BB ZIRITE (18)
Net cash inflows arising on disposal HEEEZRERNFRE 2,982

Deposit of HK$1,000,000 had been received in the
previous years. Remaining consideration of
HK$10,000,000 from the disposal of Miracle True
had been partially received amounted to
HK$3,000,000 by the Group for the year ended 30
June 2020. The remaining balance are settled for
the year ended 30 June 2021.

—7

1,000,000 8 LHIZE ERBEF
BRER - HE_ZE_ZTF XA
=“+HILFE AEECDEEL
7 & B £ &4 T A B 10,000,000
78 JTFR #Y 3,000,000 78 7T © #4845
BREE-_T-—FA=1+H
IEFEEN -
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37. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

214

—FRNA=THLEFE

UNDER ASSET ACQUISITION

On 24 October 2019, the Group acquired entire equity
interest in Goldkeen at a consideration of HK$7,000,000.
Goldkeen holds a property in Hong Kong. The directors
of the Company were of the opinion that acquisition of
Goldkeen did not constitute business combinations as
defined in HKFRS 3, therefore, the acquisition had been

accounted for as asset acquisition.

Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of

acquisition are as follows:

37. RIEREWBUBHE LT

RZZBE—AF+A-+NAE  AEH
WiEm iz 25k - {8 &7,000,000
B BRNEBFEME - AR 7]
EERANBSRYTEXT BTG
HEEREIFERENEBSS 6
o WEEEEE ARIEAEEWDE -

KRB EANEERAFEND

HK$'000
TR

Net assets acquired of: EWEEEFE
Investment properties WEMH 18,941
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB R 4
Other receivables H A FEUGRIR 135
Bank balances IRITHERR 5
Other payables E e FUR (85)
Borrowings BE (12,000)
Net assets BEFE 7,000
Cash consideration paid ENHEENRE 7,000
Bank balances acquired 2R IRTT 4554 )
Net cash outflow from acquisition of a R IE & B U i U B B 8 R )

subsidiary under asset acquisition RE M FEE 6,995
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

38. LEASE COMMITMENTS 38. HHEXRIE
As lessor fERERAA
Rental income generated by leasing the investment FRN EHAANEEFENEKREWED
properties held by the Group during the year was e WAL AE5100008 T(ZE=-F
approximately HK$510,000 (2020: HK$340,000). Tenants  :340,00087T) - HEZT = —F<
who located in the investment properties were A=+HIEFE AREEWENAE
committed the Group for leasing the properties for the R MANEFBERBRARK —FBITE
next one but not later than two years for the year ended PR EHEYE -
30 June 2021.
The Group had the following future minimum lease REEBERENTRESEHESN R
receivables under non-cancellable operating lease AT ARKERERWGEGEEER
contracts, which were entitled to be received as at 30 —E-—FR-E-_TEFA=1+H
June 2021 and 2020: WeER)
2020
—ETF
HK$°000
FHT
Not later than one year TEBRR—F 517 258
Later than one year but not BR—FRETERAME
later than two years 86 58
603 316

TTCFFR o BRFEFEKEARAT 215



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ReMBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2021

39.

216

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A new share option scheme was adopted by the
Company on 13 December 2013, which replaced its old
share options scheme adopted in 2003. Under the share
option scheme, the Directors of the Company may, at
their discretion, grant to full-time employees and
executive directors of the Company and its subsidiaries
the right to take up options to subscribe for shares of
the Company. Additionally, the Company may, from
time to time, grant share options to outside third parties
for services provided to the Group. The share option
scheme, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
expire on 12 December 2023. The subscription price of
options is subject to a minimum which is the higher of
the nominal value of a share, the closing price of the
shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant and
the average of the closing prices of the shares on the
Stock Exchange on the five trading days immediately
preceding the grant date of the options.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
permitted to be granted under the share option scheme
must not exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. No option may be granted which, if
exercised in full, would result in the total number of
shares already issued and issuable under the share
option scheme exceeding 30% of the aggregate number
of shares of the Company.

The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must be
made within 21 days from the date of the offer of the
grant with a non-refundable payment of HK$1 from the
grantee to the Company.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of options granted to each participant
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
in 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares in
issue from time to time unless the same is approved by
the shareholders of the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

During the year, no share-based payment expenses
(2020: HK$787,000) has been charged to profit or loss.

BE_T_—FRA=1THILFE

39. fRRRHERTE

KRR -_ZE—=%F+_-A+=H#K
MEFTERER S MRER=ZZTZ=
FIRPWz EEBRAETS - BIEERE
TE . ARREZARHBERTFARLQA]
MEWBARZREERNITESE
PN RERNRG D ZERRE -
BEAN R AT A B AINRE=F %
LB E  ERRASERHRE 2
WM - BRIES TR ISR - BRI
BEFEBR=_ZE=_=F+=-A+=
BE8 - BRREZREETSERR
HHEE BEEBRGERATATHR
KWmEREERLEREZE AR AME
RBEBRMDEBFAATSR W TE
ZEEE -

R A R 2 RITREBK
BESHE  TREBEEEFMERALQ
A2 BT 10% 2 ETTERBAE
% REBRESICEZEITRAE
BT B AR BB B AN R B D A 2R
30% @ RIS E B REBAE -

MZE =B ARAVGAREHRR
HEBEA2IBA > MAR A
BILZ AR EFRIA

BRIFESARARRRAE  TRIEH
2EER12EAHRBAERTEERZ
BRE(BECTRE - B RHEARTT
2 BHE) M BT RS EETTZ
B8  TN/REBEETHEEITRN
2 1% °

BRI A TR A AU B B R
BRERRERRZIER -

FRHERMDAZAI(ZE=Z
& : 787,000 T) B B8k ©
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 #HZE—_ZE_—_—F XA=+HILFE

39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 39. EBBRHERTE (=
The following table summarised movements of the TEBMANT B HTHERENTY
Company's issued share options during the year: EE 7w
For the year ended 30 June 2021 BE-_E-_—FXA=1+HL#E
E
Cancelled/
Adjusted  Outstanding Granted  Exercised lapsed  Outstanding
exercise at 1July during during during  at 30 June
Capacity Date of grant Exercisable period Vesting period price 2020 the year the year the year 2021
R-B-%% RZB=-%
e tA-A
5t RiAH 8 ] E ﬁfi% HATTE ERRL QR
HK
En
Other eligile employees 13 0ctober 2015 14 October 2015 to Immediate on the 0329 3,896,120 = - (389%120) =
13 0ctober 2020 (note 8) grant date
EftRERET ZE-RETATZA ZE-REtATmAZ RELASHEER
ZECRETATZA(MT)
Other eligible employees 13 0ctober 2015 14 October 2015 to Immediate on the 039 38,689,910 - - (386,689910) -
13 October 2020 (note ) grant date
EftRERET “E-REtAT=A ZE-REtATRAZ RELARIEER
b4 A= A (ML)
Executive director
H18%
Mr. Wong Hin Shek 13 October 2015 14 October 2015 to Immediate on the 0329 33,961,200 - - (38961200 -
13 0ctober 2020 (note &) grant date
EERLE “Z-REtATZR ZE-REATmAZ RELAEHEER

25+ A=A ()

Independent non-execuitive director

BUFHTES

Mr. Chiu Wai On 13 October 2015 14 October 2015 to Immediate on the 039 974,030 - - (974,030) -
13 0ctober 2020 (note &) grant date
it St “2-F+At=A —EZ-RftAtmAZ RELAEHEER

“EEH AT

Independent non-executive director
BUES

Mr. Man Kwok Leung 13 October 2015 14 October 2015 to Immediate on the 0329 974,030 - - (974,030) -
13 October 2020 (note ) grant date
EERRE “E-RFtAt=A ZE-REtATRAZ RELARIEER

- SE+AT=A(a)
Independent non-executive director

e £

Dr. Wong Yun Kuen 13 October 2015 14 October 2015 to Immediate on the 0329 974,030 - - (974,030) -
13 0ctober 2020 (note &) grant date

ERERL ZZ-1f RELARIRER

tAt=H
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 #HE-_ZE_-_—FXA=+HILFE

39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 39. MR #ERTE (&)
For the year ended 30 June 2021 (Continued) BE-SE=-—FXA=1HLEHE
E (&)

Cancellea/
Adjusted  Outstanding Granted  Exercised lapsed  Outstanding
exercise at1.uly during during during &t 30June
Capacity Date of grant Exercisable period Viesting period price 2019  theyear  theyear  theyear

BHAs T 558 BE  HAAE ERii

Other eligible employees 24 January 2017 24 January 2018 to 24 January 2017 to 0241 7,987,046 - - (7.987,046) -
23 January 2021 (note a) 24 January 2018
EtAERET —3—+f —Z-\F-A=tMmAZ =—3—tf
—B=tmR —Z=-%-A=t=A —A=ft@mAZE
(Htska) ZZ-N\F
—R=1+mA
Other eligible persons 24 January 2017 24 January 2018 to 24 January 2017 to 0241 37,500,155 - - (37,500,155) -
23 January 2021 (note a) 24 January 2018
EAERAT e S “E-\§-A-tHAZ —E-t&
—B=tmB =Z=-%-A=t=A —A=tMmAZE
(Wiza) —2-N\&
—fF=1+mA
Other eligible employees 24 January 2017 24 January 2019 to 24 January 2017 to 0241 7,987,046 - - (7.987,046) -
23 January 2021 (note a) 24 January 2019
AfAERET 3 tF “Z-NF-A-1TMAE 3 tF
—A=ZtmA ZZ--%-A=t=A —A=1MmAZ
(Htska) —ENE
—F=1+mA
Other eligible persons 24 January 2017 24 January 2019 to 24 January 2017 to 0241 37,500,155 - - (37,500,155) -
23 January 2021 (note a) 24 January 2019
AftaBRALT e ZZ-NF-A-1tMAE 3 tF
—A=tWA ZZ=—%-A=t=A —A=1MmAZ
(Hfita) —E2nE
—A=tmA
Other eligible employees 24 January 2017 24 January 2020 to 24 January 2017 to 0241 7,889,643 = - (7839643 -
23 January 2021 (note a) 24 January 2020
EtAERET It S ZE-TF-A-tmAE ZE—t%
—A-tmA ZF--%-F-t=A —A-tMAZ
(htita) —E-FE
—-B=1+mA
Other eligible persons 24 January 2017 24 January 2020 to 24 January 2017 to 0241 38217,04 = - (38217,041) =
23 January 2021 (note a) 24 January 2020
EAERAT —Ttf ZZ-TF-A-1MAZ —Ttf
—A=tWA ZZ=-%-A=t=A —A=1MAZ
(Htita) —Z-%F
—-F=t+mA
Total &5t 569,550,406 = - (569,550,406 =
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39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 39. MERRiERTE (2
For the year ended 30 June 2020 BE-_ZEZ-_ZEFXXA=1+HLE
E

Cancelled/
Adjusted  Outstanding Granted  Exercised lapsed  Qutstanding
exercise at 1.uly during during during &t 30June
Capacity Date of grant Exercisable period Viesting period price theyear  theyear  theyear 2020

7y
EN

56 BHEH e 5B kAR EREE RS

Other eligible employees 21 January 2015 21 January 2015 to Immediate on the 0329 1363642 - - (1363642 -
20 January 2020 grant date
EtAERET 1% ZZ-R§-A-t-HE RELASIREE
-A=t-B ZZ-%%5-A=1R
Other eligible employees 21 January 2015 21 January 2015 to Immediate on the 0329 177,273,460 - - (177,273,460) -
20 January 2020 grant date
AfARRAT ZP-RF  CR-RE-ACT-AE  MRHABARGE
—Azt-R  E-FF-ACtA
Other eligible employees 13 October 2015 14 October 2015 to Immediate on the 0329 389,120 - - - 389,120
13 October 2020 (note a) grant date
EtAERET —Z-1f ZZ-RETATMAE RRHBHARGE
+A+=H “Z-TF+AT=ZR
(Fizka)
Other eligible employees 13 October 2015 14 October 2015 to Immediate on the 0329 386,689,910 - - - 386689910
13 October 2020 (note a) grant date
EtAERET —Z-n% Z2-RETATMAE RRHBHINGE
+A+=H “E-ZETAT=H
(Fizka)
Executive director
BiTES
Mr. Wong Hin Shek 13 October 2015 14 October 2015 to Immediate on the 0329  38961,200 - - - 38961200
13 October 2020 (note a) grant date
BREERE —2-n% “E-RETATEAE  RRHAHINEGE
+A+=H “E-ZETAT=H
(Fizka)
Independent non-executive director
BUEHTES
Mr. Chiu Wai On 13 October 2015 14 October 2015 to Immediate on the 0329 974,030 = = = 974,030
13 October 2020 (note a) grant date
REREE 1% “E-RETATEAE  RRHAHINGE
+A+=H = F+A+=H
(Fizka)
Mr. Man Kwok Leung 13 October 2015 14 October 2015 to Immediate on the 0.329 974,030 - - - 974,030
13 October 2020 (note a) grant date
BEREE —Z-1f “E-RETATEAE  RRHAHINEGE
+A+=H ZE-ZETAT=H
(Fizka)
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen 13 October 2015 14 October 2015 to Immediate on the 0.329 974,030 - - - 974,030
13 October 2020 (note &) grant date
BRERL 1% “E-RETATEAE  RRHAHINEGE
+A+=H ZE-ZETAT=H
(Fizka)
Other eligible employees 24 January 2017 24 January 2018 to 24 January 2017 to 0241 7,987,046 - - - 7987046
23 January 2021 (note a) 24 January 2018
EtAERET B tE - \f-A=tMmAZ =Z—tF-A=1MA
—A-tmA ZE--%-A=t=A EZZ-)\§-A
(ska) sy
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39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

220

For the year ended 30 June 2020 (Continued)

Capacity

&1

Date of grant

REAH

Exercisable period

16

Viesting period

BEH

——FXA=THIEFE

39. MERRHERT R ()

BE-E-_ZEFXA=THLHF
E &)

Cancelled/
lapsed
during

the year

Exercised
during
the year

Granted
during
the year

Adjusted  Outstanding
exercise at 1.uly
price 201

Qutstanding
at30June

HAMR  FARE  FRR

Other eligible persons 24 January 2017 24 January 2018 to 24 January 2017 to 0241 37,500,155 - - - 37,500,155
23 January 2021 (note a) 24 January 2018
EtAERAL —E{E-f -E-\5-A-ftMAE —E—+£-f-1MA
Z+mA “F-—%-A=+=A 2=F-\§-A
(htita) —+mA
Other eligible employees 24 January 2017 24 January 2019 to 24 January 2017 to 0241 7,987,046 - - - 7987046
23 January 2021 (note a) 24 January 2019
EtAERET —T—tF —Z-A\F-A-1tMAZ =—Z—tF—A=1MA
-A=tmA —F=-%-A-t=R ZF-N5-A
(Wtita) —+mA
Other eligible persons 24 January 2017 24 January 2019 to 24 January 2017 to 0241 37,500,155 - - - 37,500,155
23 January 2021 (note a) 24 January 2019
EtAERAL 3 tf —T-AF-A-1MAZ =—Z—tF—A=1MA
-A=tmA —F=-%-A-t=R EF-N5-A
(Hita) ity
Other eligible employees 24 January 2017 24 January 2020 to 24 January 2017 to 0241 7,839,643 - - - 7889643
23 January 2021 (note a) 24 January 2020
EtAERET —T—tf —Z-ZTF-A-1MAZ —Z—tF-A=1MA
—AZtER ZZ-—%-A-+=H Z-F-F%F-f
(Mtita) —+mA
Other eligible persons 24 January 2017 24 January 2020 to 24 January 2017 to 0241 38217,041 - - - 320704
23 January 2021 (note a) 24 January 2020
EtAERAL 3 tf “Z-ZTF-A-1MAZ —Z—tF-A=1MA
—A=tWAR —E--%-A=t=A 2-F-FF-§
(Htita) —tmEA
Total 748,187,508 = - (178,637,102) 569,550,406
&t
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 [ E2-F

2=

39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Notes:
(a) The fair value of share options granted to directors, employees
and other parties providing similar services of employees during
the year, determined at the date of grant of the share options,
is expensed over the vesting period. The fair value was
calculated using the Black-Scholes Model.

Number of share options and weighted average exercise price
were as follows:

Number of

share options
BREHE MERHTEE

——FXA=THILEE

39. MRz #EEHE (&)
GEX

FAREE  EEREHEUEEREZ
HAi AL AR B BERREZ A FETRER
REREAMETE  WiREEHHE AT
ETREMN R — FRITEAGFE -

(@)

RSB RO TEELT

2020
—EIEF
Weighted
average

exercise price

Weighted

Number of average
share options exercise price
MEIREEE  NETITEE

HK$ HK$
BT I
Outstanding at 1 July wtHA—H
W ARITIE 569,550,406 0.308 748,187,508 0.313
Cancelled/lapsed [BEES VS (569,550,406) 0.308 (178,637,102) 0.335
Outstanding at 30 June  R/NA=+H N/A
B RITIE = TiE A 569,550,406 0.308

During the year ended 30 June 2021, no share options (2020: nil)
was exercised during the year resulted in an equal number of
ordinary shares issued. The weighted average share price of
these shares at the date of exercise was HK$Nil (2020:
HK$0.308). The weighted average remaining contractual life of
the options outstanding as at 30 June 2021 was Nil (2020: 0.35
year).

T FFR o BRHEREEERATF

=

BHE-_ZT-_—FXA=Z1+HLFE &R
METEERE(CT_TF &) EHE
THEREE LRk - ZZERMHRITER
Bz MEFHRERTHET(ZTZF :
0308%7L) - R=—E=-_—F/A=+A8"
RITEBREZNEFLERTEOFHR
T(ZZEZFTF : 035%F) °
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ReMBRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &ZEZE-Z-_—F A=+THIEFE

40. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 40. JFIERRE R

Set out below are the summarised financial information UA TR B (A 4 4 BT EPS &= B B B1 7%
for EPS Group that had non-controlling interests which BRIEE S h IS YA s
is material to the Group, before any elimination. BmM=EBEkA o

EPS Group
EPS &£
2020

—E-TF
HK$'000
FET

Summarised consolidated HERMBMRRRBE

statement of financial position
As at 30 June WAB=+H
Effective non-controlling BERFERERES L

interests percentage 27.25%
Current B
Assets BiE 3,012
Liabilities aE (167,539)
Total net current liabilities REBAEFEERE (164,527)
Non-current B
Liabilities 1 (& (227)
Total net non-current liabilities FRBEEFHEEARE (227)
Net liabilities BEFHE (164,754)
Accumulated non-controlling interests  ZEitJEiEpRiEz (44,895)
Summarised consolidated statement of HF&2EKFRPE

comprehensive income
For the year ended 30 June BZEAA=THLEE
Revenue W zs 2,072
Loss before income tax FriS A Ea (11,639)
Other comprehensive income Em2ElA 117
Total comprehensive income ZHKRALEE (11,522)
Loss allocated to non-controlling interests D El ZEIEIEBRER Z 518 (3,140)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 2 {JIFIERER 2 KR =
Summarised consolidated HERERERMPE

statement of cash flows
For the year ended 30 June BEASNA=1THLEE
Cash flows used in operating activities KEEBMARERE (9,085)
Cash flows generated from investing activities & /EEAEHRER=E 11,128
Cash flows used in financing activities BEEBARESRE (2,116)
Net cash outflow HERLE FEE (73)
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e M EHRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021

41. NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 41. G SR E&RERME

OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

HE_F

——FXA=THILEE

HEREESMELRE YK

activities:
Amount
due to non-
controlling Lease
Borrowings interests liabilities
EAEER
Gl BENE HEAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL T THL
At 1July 2019 R-E-hFEtA-H 139,727 70,275 4,733
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSRESD
Advance to the Group Al AR S B3 5K 227 2,853 =
Repayment of borrowings Ei%‘é (10,884)
Lease payment HERRK > = (2,444)
Interest paid BERFE (1,891) = (230)
Total changes from financing RERSRERBARE
cash flows (12,548) 2,853 (2,674)
Other changes: Hitn# 5 :
Interest expenses FERX 1,891 = 230
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—EmEA 12,000 =
Derecognition resulting from extinguishment Iﬁéﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬁ MEM - (29,847)
Additions - 2,049
Derecognition of lease liabilities 25? ﬁ& RHEAE = = (114)
Contribution from non-controlling 3 JME SAARARERA
interests to owner of the Company ﬁ - 380 -
Exchange adjustments 5B (399) - 98)
Total other changes Hitt#sam 13,492 (29,467) 2,067
At 30 June 2020 and 1 July 2020 R-B-EEXA=1tHR
“EZ2%+A-H 140,671 43,661 4,126
Changes from financing cash flows:  FBER$RE#E
Advance to the Group AIAEEEZR - 361 -
Repayment of borrowings EBREE (8,738) -
Lease payment HERRK = = (1,674)
Interest paid BERFE (2,110) - (94)
Total changes from financing MERSRESDARE
cash flows (10,848) 361 (1,768)
Other changes: Hitn#5 :
Interest expenses Fl8F% 2,110 - 94
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36(a)) HEMBAR (MT 51 36(a) (243) (44,022) (1,298)
Derecognition of lease liabilities BIEBAREEE 5 (836)
Exchange adjustments BT S (3,141) - -
Total other changes Hit#sam (1,274) (44,022) (2,040)
At 30 June 2021 R-B=--£xH=1H 128,549 = 318
——FFR o EEFEREEERLT 223
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For the year ended 30 June 2021

42.

43.

224

BHE_ZE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Compensation of key management

The key management of the Group comprises all
directors of the Company. Details of their remuneration
are disclosed in note 10 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objective of managing capital is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns and benefits for
members and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which includes borrowings, deposits in a financial
institution, bank balances and cash and total equity as
disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

The Group’s management reviews the capital structure
on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the
management considers the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the management, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through new share
issues as well as the issue of new debts or redemption
of existing debts.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
Statements approximate their corresponding fair values.

——FXA=THIEFE

42,

43.

FREALXS

FEEE AR
KEIEEMEJ\EFJEK ’z\ﬁ“ﬁ
EZ - ABBRECHEFBERNEARM
TSR M TE 109555 o

BemEEE

K’Elﬁ/\”ﬁﬁ’(ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%$&l*ﬁ
RENFHERE  URRRGREHK
ﬂ/\ R REBENGRE - ARUK

AEEZERGEBREBEABFR 2
REEEE REBMEEBEZEFR R
THRAMEEUARNGEAREEH R
RER 2 s o

K’EIE@Ft#EMﬂ‘é$ s —

AERUMAEFES  BEEEZE
J’5 BRIEAR 2 EARA KRR R -
RREBE 2D ~EEKEEE
TR R B TH AR B R A ERE
AP @R E AR -

RARREFERR  NEaMEHRRER
BEAAIRZEREEREREE
ZEREEREEMEREZ A FEMRSE °

DETAI NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE-Z—_—F A=THIEFE

43. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 43. B BMBEER &)

The gearing ratio at the end of reporting periods was as RBERRZBEEAGBGLZRDT
follows:
{020]
—ETF
HK$'000
FHT
Borrowings EBE 128,549 140,671
Deposits in a financial institution RE R 2 1F 5K (318,384) =
Pledged bank balances B IPRITAER (1,126) (6,138)
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LB (16,574) (354,041)
Net debts BEFHE (207,535) (219,508)
Total equity B 802,909 791,746
Net debts to equity ratio BEFHEEERE X (0.26) (0.28)
44. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 44. ERNESCEMEER &R
AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY AREE
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets AEBR-_ZZ—FR-ZTZFTFRX
and financial liabilities as recognised as at 30 June 2021 A=TH®RAZEMEERESHABE
and 2020 may be categorised as follows: FREESRAT :
2{020]
—ETF
HK$'000
FHT
Financial assets SRMEE
Financial assets at fair value through RAFETARBZ 2 S RMEE
profit or loss 67,305 68,769
Financial assets at amortised cost REHEKATECSREE 480,251 501,200
547,556 569,969
Financial liabilities cHAE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost  IZ# s AT B2 2 RA G 136,776 202,706
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HE—_Z—

45. EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

226

(@)

On 6 August 2021, the Company's subsidiary (the
“Purchaser”) entered into the sales and purchase
agreement with an independent third party (the
“Vendor”), pursuant to which the Vendor has
conditionally agreed to sell, and the Purchaser has
conditionally agreed to purchase, the 52% of the
issued share capital of Power Gas (Hong Kong)
Limited (“Target Company”) for the consideration
of HK$185,201,000, which shall be satisfied by the
issue of the convertible bonds in three tranches to
the Vendor by the Company. Upon the completion,
the Target Company will be owned as to 52% by
the Company.

Details of the transaction are set out in the
Company'’s announcements dated 9 August 2021,
3 September 2021, 17 September 2021 and 30
September 2021.

The Company has conducted a series of
acquisitions on listed securities in August and
September 2021. A total number of 3,870,000
shares of Hong Kong Aerospace Technology
Group Limited ("HKATGL") (stock code: 1725) was
acquired. which representing 1.29% of the issued
share capital of HKATGL at a total consideration of
approximately HK$116.1 million.

Details of the transaction are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 17 September
2021 and 29 September 2021.

—FRNA=THLEFE

45. HENERER

@
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T WEARRTmMES S =8
BITAIBRRESFZ ARSI - B
SERE - BIEZARBHEAR R %
B 52% s -

RGFBHINARARIBHAEZ
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NWA=R - —E-—FhLA++
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%o

RXATIR—ZE-_—FNARIA
T —ER LEMEFREEIE
2 48 R(8 49 116,100,000 78 7T U B8
& #£3,870,000 R B B MK EHE &
AR A 7 (THKATGL] » %17 £
% 0 1725) B% 19 + {h HKATGLE %
1TREAN1.29% o
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Financial Summary
MHEE

RESULTS

Years ended 30 June
HZAA=1THLEE

2021 2020 2019° 2018 2017
Z2=-F | ZBECFFT EAF T \F B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEr THET FET FAET TAET
Revenue Wz 24,092 48,922 62,881 59,896 44179
Loss before income tax — FrS i ATE R (47,617) (176,670) (172,920) (202,190) (150,138)
Income tax credit FiETiEe 5,841 9101 3,988 39,777 3,872
Loss for the year from BELEEK L
continuing operations FRER (41,776) (167,569) (168,932) (162,413) (146,266)
Profit for the year from RESIR S
discontinued operations &R A 4,879 - - 4,929 -
Loss for the year FEREE (36,897) (167,569) (168,932) (157,484) (146,266)
Loss for the year AT ATEEER
attributable to: B
Owners of the Company KA &HEE A (35,365) (163,520) (154,992) (156,754) (144,426)
Non-controlling interests ARtz (1,532) (4,049) (13,940) (730) (1,840)
(36,897) (167,569) (168,932) (157,484) (146,266)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAR

At 30 June
RAA=1H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
“E--& ZZTZTF ZT-NF ZZE-NF ZT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
THT FEIT FEIT FET FET
Total assets BERE 1,000,454 1,061,954 1,271,949 1,409,707 1,304,868
Total liabilities BERE (197,545) (270,208) (305,307) (270,603) (550,644)
802,909 791,746 966,642 1,139,104 754,224

“ECFFR « ERHMEREEERAT
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The Group had disposed the electric cycle business during the
year ended 30 June 2018.

The electric cycle business has been presented as discontinued
operations in the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2018. For the purpose of this financial summary,
the electric cycle business has not been re-presented as
discontinued operations for the year ended 30 June 2017.

The Group had disposed the new energy business during the
year ended 30 June 2021.

The new energy business has been presented as discontinued
operations in the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2021. For the purpose of this financial summary,
the new energy business has not been re-presented as
discontinued operations for the four years ended 30 June 2017
t0 2020.

AEBERBE-Z—\FAAS+ALFERH
ETBATELR -

BHRTEEHRERBE_ZE—/\FXA=1H
LHFERZEAVBHRREINBDRIERERT -
RAMBHEMNE  EBETEXBERBE-ZF
—tEFARA=ZTHLFERATEERZIR/ER

AEBEREE—_T_—FXRA=THIFEH
ERREIRETS

M REBNEBEE S —F A NA=ZTHLEFE
ZEABHRERTEINRERIELEER - BA
RBEMENS  RBEE_ZT—+FE_T_TF
NA=THILMEFERERESLEEHRZ
RERIEEEER -
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